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Our vision is to be the leading global
hospitality real estate ownership group

for key gateway cities with effective, in-built
and unique asset management skills.
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Annual report and accounts 2015

Our Company

Who we are

We are a global hospitality management
and real estate group, with 126 hotels
in B4 business and leisure destinations
in Asia, Australasia, Europe, the Middle
East and North Amenca

Our strategy

Qur strategy 1s to creata value by improving
hotel profitabsity through capital investment,
consistent service delivery, lean operations
and a motvated workforce We build and
generale long-term value through dynamic
management of our property portfolio

hﬂ MILLENNIUM COLLECTION

The global travellers’ choice in gateway cities
The Millennium Collection hotels

are created with tmeless elegance and famed
for ther conference and banquet offenngs,
world-class faciities and the ultimate in
perscnalized, gracious service They are
perfect for corporate, letsure, meetings and
Conventions

Brands in the Millennium Collection
nclude Grand Millennium Hotels and
Millenmium Hotels

é LEND S COLLECTION

Unigue hotels with powerfully distinct
personalities — from hustong properties
1o trendy urban escapes The Leng's
Collection hotels represent the legacy
of our founders, the Leng generation
of the Kwek famiy

Brands in the Leng's Collection include
The Bailey's Hotel London, The Chelsea
Harbour Hotet, Grand Hotel Palace Rome,
M Hotels, Studic M Hotels and M Social

How we make money

We eamn profits through the efficient
operation of our hotels and effective
ranagement of our substantial
property portfolio

In each of our distinctive brand offenngs,
we aim 1o provide guests with consistently
hugh levels of service at well-appointed
and conveniently located hotels and
hospitality cullets

Lean operations and low central costs
are our business hallmarks Cormbined
with cur owner/operator strategy and
distinctive business model, this enables
us to deliver goed annual returns to
shareholders

C COPTHORNE COLLECTION

Comfortable hotels at a comfortable

prce The Copthome Collection hotels

are firrnly established as a true global

brand recognized across the world as

the preferred choice for both business

and leisure traveliers In providing comfonable
Service

Brands i the Copthome Collection include
Copthome Hotels and Kingsgate Hotels
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Group at a glance

Overview

Milennium & Copthome Hotels is a financially strong,
globally diversified business, with a growing hotel
portfolio, well situated in vibrant business and leisure
destinaiions. The Group is supported by talented staff
and real estate assets in some of the most valuable
locations in the world.




st e

Inventory

P Cont

Crange

2015 i

Crned ar ieased
Managed

. Franchsed

B Investment

15,984 0044
10.212 8730
1,206 427
4,316 416

Total

34,718 33387

Ruur Gt

Crarige

2015 Bl

Chyrg

Owned or leased
tdanaged
oL Franchsed
Invesiment

5977 5972
2,862 2870

T80 730
2,527 2525

5
8

Total

12,146 12 147

Chettaes Shddh Bl Aites

Rowrn Gt

g

2015 Ak

Croarge

Cwned or eased 20
tManaged 2°
.. Franch sed
B Investment

4680 457
7.090 5763

198

109
*.327

198

Tetal

11,868 0334

United States

()

§.701

Australasia

)

v

\

Rrem Coa ot

Chanre

2015 ot

Orned or eased
Managed

.. Franch.sed

@ Irvestrment

1,626 1800
260 e
426 647

1,681 39

Total

3,803 4785

MBIATAD

Cpe e )oY Ry




||ﬂ| Millenrsum & Copthorne Hotels plc Overview 6

How we performed “In 2015, global hospitality markets were impacted
by fallng commodity prices, mounting concern with
regard to terronsm, health advisory travel alerts and
uncertanty regarding growth of the Chinese market
These external factors, which negatively affected the
year's performance, are expected to continue N the
current year

Although the short term trading outlook 1s uncertain, P
the Group has a long term perspective Management =,
considers that asset ownership I1s key '
to creating long term value in a changing hospitality
industry landscape The Group will therefore continue
to focus on its strategy of ownership and management
of hosprtality real estate assets In 2016, management
will work on optimising returns on the Group’s assets
by undertaking refurbishment projects, whilst remaining
vigilant with regard to controling costs ”

Kwek Leng Beng, Chairman
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Overnew

RevPAR

Group RevPAR for 2015 increased by

0 6% to £71 98 {2014 £7155) In constant
currency, RevPAR decreased by 1 3% The
main coninbutor to the reduction of 1 3%

in RevPAR was the performance of the
Group's Asian hotels, where RevPAR fell

by © 0% across Singapore and Rest of Asia
combined London and New York also saw
RevPAR declines dunng 2015, due mainly
to the impact of refurtishment at The
Baley’s Hatel Loncon and CNE UN New
York respectively

Revenue

Revenue for 2015 increased by 2 5%

to £847m (2014 £826m) reflecting
contnbutions from hotel acquisitions and
the opening of Millennurn Mitsun Garden
Hotel Tokyo in December 2014, together
with favourable foreign exchange
movements

Profit before tax (“PBT")

The Group has recogrised a net charge

of £43m of impairment losses and net
revaluation gans aganst pre-tax profits

in 2015 Trus net charge includes £76m

of imparmment losses relating pnmanty to
four of the Group's properiies located in
New York, Rest of Europe and Rest of Asia,
offset by net revaluation gans of £33m on
its investment properties

Profit before tax for the year fell by 42 0%
to £109m (2014 £188m} Excluding
revaluation gans and impairment losses,
pre-tax profit decreased by 5 6% to
£152m {2014 £161m}

04 & 03 The Balley's Hotel London
02 Millenrum Seoul FHilton
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hl Millernium & Conthome Hotels plc Overview

Building for the future Milennium Sunnyvale is the Group’s innovative
Sunnyvale, California, USA mixed-use development in the heart of Siicon
Valley, the epicentre of nnovation in the United
States Planned to commence mid-2016, this
modular construction project will combine a
263-room hotel with a 250-unit apartment
complex, plus retal amentties
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01 & 03 Aenal view of development
fartist s wmpression)

02 Map showing neighbouring high-tech

businesses
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Overview

Millenmum Sunnyvale wilt be defined

by its sense of place, energy, innovative
design, state of the art features and
ameruties, great architecture and is inviting
and appealing public spaces The project
capitalises on the continued growth and
expansion of Siicon Valley and the City

of Sunnyvale It envisions a dynarmic urban
expenience for residents and guests with
a curated collection of indoor and cutdogr
social spaces, ntegrated with a unique Ife
style hotel, which will be the US flagship
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for the Group's M-Social brand Balancing
hospialty and residential uses with moderm
retal amenities, Millennuium Sunnyvale wal)
be a destinaton for dining and socialising,
Iving and staying The design faciitates
convenient public access with optirmised
pedesinan and traffic flow to and within
the site, whiist captunng the energy and
presence of Siicon Valley It will create an
attractive ervironment that appeals to the
hip, tech-sawy and affluent people dnving
the Silicon Valley market
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hlI Millennium & Copthorne Hotels pic

Building for the future
Seout, South Korea
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Overnew

Work on the Group’s mixed-used
development in Seoul, South Korea is
planned to commence in the rmiddle of
2016, with completion scheduled in 2018
Tne project compnses a 306-room hotel
and 200 serviced apartments with

units ranging In size from 44 square metres
to 182 square metres The duai 20-storey
tower development shares a common,
separable podium and will also have eight

-
-
-
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"

basement fevels, ncluding six

for car-parking The lifestyle hotel,
complementing the Group’s nearby
Millennium Secu! Hitton, waill feature a
dynarmuc lobby atmosphere with cafe/del
style food and beverage outlets and bar
and the serviced apartments will include
a welcoming lobby and a third-party F&B
outlet Other social spaces and faciities
will include meeting and breakfast areas,
swimming pool and gym
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01 Aena! view of development with exX1siing
Millennium Seou! Hilten {ariist s impression)

02 Twin room N new Secul hotel (artst’s
Imprassion)

03 Ground level view of development (artist s
Impression)

04 Cormman area for planned hotel (artist's
ITPressian)
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Strategic Report

Chairman’s statement

Business review and strategy

Key performance indicators

Financial performance

Regional performance—Asia
Regional performance—Europe
Regional performance —United States
Regional performance —Australasia
Corporate responsibility

Qur risks
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Chairman’s statement Hospitality markets in 2015 reflected the impact of
economic and political uncertainty on many parts of
the world, iIncluding a number of destinations served
by our hotels In addition the global hotel landscape
is changing significantly, with consolidation of some
of the largest companies in the sector These are
significant forces for change in the hospitality industry
and the Group I1s focused on making the correct strategic
choices In order to grow earnings and optimise returns
on assets in a rapidly changing competitive environment

01 & 02 Grand Hyatt Taipal
03 Grand Hetel Palace Rome
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Like-for-like revenue and pre-tax profit
for the Group decreased by 0 4% and

4 4% respectively Most of the reduction
N revenue came from the Group’s Asian
hotels, which were affected by reduced
visitor numbers and spending, and with
increasing supply of new room inventory

RevPAR increased by 0 6% to £71 98 1n
2015, but decreased by 1 3% in constant
currency This was due to the continuing
detenoration of trading conditions in the
Group's Asian hotels, where RevPAR
declined by 9 0% Trading was weaker
than last year n London and New York
especially in the second haff of the year

Like-for-ike RevPAR for the year fell by
37% Like-for-ike compansons exclude
the mpact of acgquisitions, closures and
sales of the remaining three Glyndet:oume
condominum units In 2014, and they are
stated in constant currency terms

Hotel revenue rose by 2 0% to £765m
(2014 £750m) reflecting contbutions
from recem hotel acquisitions anc
favouratile foreign currency movements
Hotal gross operating margin was (ower
at 34 1% (2014 36 0%)

The Group 1s addressing shortfalls in

hotel trading through a number of revenue
intiatives, including an enhanced aigital
marketing platform increased focus on
the Chinese outbound market and
identifing further upseling opportunties
across the estate

Kwek Leng Beng
Chairrman

18 February 2016

The Group made several key appoint-
ments dunng the second half of last year
to strengthen Its senor executive talent
pool Including key positions 1n regional
management and the marketing funchon

The Board recommends a final ordinary
dwdend of 4 34p per share (2014 11 51p)
taking into account the Group's current
cash pasition and future capital expenditure
requirements  Together with the intenm
ordinary dividend of 2 08p per share

(2014 2 08p), the 1otai ordinary dwidend
for 2015 1s 6 42p per share (2014 13 59p)
representing a cover of approximately

3 times, which is 11 ne with the Group’s
dividend policy

Subject to approval by sharenolders at
the Annual General Meeting to be held
on 5 May 2018, the final dvidend will be
pad on 13 May 2016 1o sharehoiders
on the register an 18 March 2016

in the first 31 days of trading in 2016 Group
ReviPAR decreased by 5 9%, with Europe
down by 10 1%, the US down by 10 9%
and Asia down by 3 6% RevPAR for
Australasia increased by 20 7%
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I“l Millennium & Cepthorne Hotels plc

Business review
and strategy

Strategic Report

Business model

The Group's hospitalty real estate ownership model enables investors
to partGipate in long-term sisset value growth as well as hotel earfiings
The model 15 de-céntralised with relatively lew central overheads, thé
core amm being to ensure that a hugh proportion of hotel revenues flow
directly through to-the Group's bottom ine In sorme markets where
teal estate. ewnership. is-sub=optimal for fiscal or other seasens, the.
Group may eperate hotels, under management contract

Hams

Strategy
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The core strategic objective of the Group 13 toprovide long-term,

P

impra¥ing fetums on shareholders' capital, whilst growing the business
threughrasset acqpistionrand prudent investreent in the-existing) asset
portfolio We are focused on,capital allocation, promoting: growth,
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delvenngai supenor guest experience throughout - frormigase.ef -, |
boeking! tOfcq,u,alltyé of stay'— and by widening  customer reach through
a flexible, ifiiovative and'targeted revenue gererating: prograrime
Building: a better guest experence 1s a commereial strategy, dgvemgy
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commercial goals "increasing direct sales, reducing distnbution casts,
developing a single bramdi voice and thereby “owning’” our guests
— creating a global cormmunity of fans and friends of the Millenmim:

Hotels & Resorts' brand

Investing intechnolegy

Tobuld a closer
relatonshigrwith our guests
we need- first to- understand
thesn better Fo achieve
that, we are mvesting In
our digital patfosm Our
rvestment in technology
wilt enable the Group o
present a new, Innovative
ardd accessibie face to the
world, putting our hotels
nght where many of our
guests spend most of ther
time — on hne through their
laptops or mobie phones
Upgraded customer
refationship management

{“CRM") systems helps us
to delves targeted, cost-
effective promotions and
offers, ncluding the next
generation of the M&C
Loyalty programme — My
Miflennisrr Launching n
Mearch 2016, My Milfennium
1S a roct to tip rethink of
Loyalty ncher, more
flexible, designed to quickly
recogrise guests for ther

frequent stays and'offenng
a wider range of rewards,
Inciuding but not just kmited
to hotel rooms The scheme
will herald a nurmber of
industry firsts, ncluding

a 'part-points-part-casty’
payment model
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Hotel operations

RevPAR increased by 0 6% to £71 98 1n
2015, but decreased by 1 3% in constant
currency This was due to the continuing
detenoration of trading conditions in the
Group's Asian hotels, where RevPAR
declined by 9 0% Trading was weaker
than last year In London and New York
especially in the secenc half of the year
Like-for-like RevPAR for the year fell
by37%

Hotel revenue rose by 2 0% to E765m
{2014 £750m) reflecting contnbutions
from recent hotel acquisiticns and
favourable foregn currency movements

Hotel gross operating margin was lower
at 34 1% (2014 36 0%)

The Group 1s addressing shortfalls n

hotel trading through a number of revenue

nitatives, ncluding an enhanced digital
marketing platform, increased focus

on the Chinese outbound market and
identifying further upselling opportunites
across the estate

Growing gur China
business

Nowhere 1s knowing your
customer’ more commercialy
importart than in China, ‘
which 1s fast becoming

the largest market for

international ‘outbound’

Strategic Report

Acquisitions

On 18 August 2015, the Group completed
the acquisition of a long 'easehold interest
in Hard Days Night Hotel in Liverpooi

for £13 8m The Beatles-inspired hotel,
which contans 110 rooms and suites,

18 located within the popular Cavern
Quiarter of the city

CDL Hospitahiy Trusts ("COLHT")
which 1s censclidated within the Group's
accounts under IFRS 10 and in which
the Group owns a 36% stake, acquired
the Hilton Cambndge City Centre
{previously known as Cambndge City
Hetel) for £61 5mon 1 October 2015
The property 1s & 198-room newly-
refurbishec upper upscale hotel located
in the heart of Cambndge city centre
This acquisition marks CDLHT's first
investment in Eurcpe

Growing through,
‘Upselling’

Upsalling has long been

a strength of many M&C
hotels, but this year we are
launching a global best

% . practce programme ammed

at creating value for our guests

.

travel With travel visa
restrictions being loosened

in the US and UK, China 1

a crtical growth market for
our hotels Our enhanced
digrtal platform delivers MBC
in Mandarn, directly onto the
mobile devices & platforms-

of-choice of the youngest
and most mchile of alt
Chinese travellers and when
they arnve at our hotels they
will be dehghted by Mandann
speaking staff and eraiure,
authentic Chinese restaurant
options and Chinese TV
channels

anrd incremental revenue for us
The key components are room
upgrades, club packages and
staff ncentives In addstion to
promations

via My Millennium and an
enhanced Group weberte

the upselling programme Is
designed 1o help us maximise
the value of room wventory
whilst surpnsing and detghting
our guests

Developments

In Decermber 2014, Urban Envronmental
Improvernent approval was granted for
the Group’s land N Seoul, South Korea,
1o be used for lodging facilities A more
detaled submission to the Construction
Delberation Commission (*CDC") was
lodged in Septermber 2015 for the
construchon of a 306-room hotet and

a 209-unit seraced apartment complex
The response from CDC s stil pending
In December 2015, construction companies
were Invited to tender for the main bulding
contract The tender closed in January
2016 and the project team 1s currently
reviewing submissions i preparation

for the award once necessary permis
from the authonty are cbtaned The
development cost is estimated 1o be
KRW157b (E90m) for the constructon

of the two buldings and external works
It wil take about two years to complete
from the expected commencement date
in the micddle of 2016
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The Group s enhanced
chgtal platform wilt be fully
faunched dunng the first half
of 2016 Once estabkshed, it
will prowide a sold foundation
for the speedy evolution of
brands, products and guest
Sences
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[lll Milennum & Copthome Hotels pic

Business review
and strategy
continued

The propased development of the 35,717m?2
mixed-use freehold landsite at Sunnyvale

in Calforrua 1s progressing and will include
a 263-room hotel and a 250-unit residential
apartment block in the ndial phase A
subseguent phase 1s expected {0 Include

a retail component This 1S a mixed use
development project located in the heart

of the Silicon Valley The preliminary budget
15 estimated at US$300m (£200m) The
Group expects to break ground on the

site in the middle of 2016, with completion
scheduled for late 2017

Management continues to explore options
in relation to the freehold site occupied by
the Millennium Hotet St Lours, which was
closed in January 2014

Hotel refurbishments

Dunng 2015, the Group completed
refurbishment of all guest rooms at The
Bailey's Hotel London, Millennium Hotel
Buffalo and the remaning rooms at
Millennium Seoul Hiton All guest rooms at
these hotels had retumed to wwventory at
the start of 2016 The total cost of these
refurtishments was £16m In New Zealand,
renovation of 40 guestrooms at Copthome
Hotel & Resort Queenstown Lakefront was
completed n November 2015 Work on the
main lcbby of the Grand Hyatt Tape was
substantialy completed in January 2016,
with a retall comer and two small food and
beverage (“F&B") outlets planned for
completion later this year

The Group will commence refurbishment
of two of its key London hotels in 2016
The cost of refurtishment of Millenrium
Hotel London Mayfair and Millenrium
Hotel Loncon Knightsbndge is estimated
at £80m and £50m respectively ltis
anticipatec that both projects will require
removal of rooms from inventory in stages
but the hotels will not need to be fully
closed dunng the refurtishment penod
The hotels are expected to fully re-open
in late 2017 or 2018

In the US, refurbishrment of the East Tower
of ONE UN New York, with an approved
budget of US$38m (£24m) commenced
at the end of 2015 with all guest rooms

Strategic Repont

scheduled to return to iInventory by July
2016 Work on guest rooms at Millenrium
Hotel Durham is scheduled 10 commence
n March 2016 with work completing in
Septemier 2016 Resfurtbishment of public
spaces at both hotels wit be completed
later The Millenmum Biltmore Hotel Los
Angeles refurbishment s In progress and
15 scheduled to compiete by the middle

of 2017

Work on the overhau! of the icbby and
F&B outlets of the Grand Copthome
Waterfront in Singapore commenced
in December 2015 and 1s targeted for
completion in Q3 2016

In July 2015, Copthome Hotel Auckland
Harbour City In New Zealand was closed
for extensive refurtishment, including
replacement of bulding services, guest-
rooms and public areas The work, to cost
over NZ$40m (£18m), 1s expected to be
compieted in early 2017 Intemal demolition
and other works are currently underway
and are on schedule

Asset disposals

As previously announced, the Group
entered Into an agreement with the
developer of Brmingham's Paradise Circus
redevelopment scheme in March 2014

That agreement grants the Group a number
of options, nclucing an option to sell the
existing site and an option to acqure an
alternate site in the redeveiopment area for
the construction of a new hotel Discussions
with the developer are ongoing

In September 2015, the Group receved
notice of an apphcation made by Network
Rail Infrastructure Limited (*Network Rail"}
for an order under the Transport and Waorks
(Scotland) Act 2007 to temporanly close
and possess the Mdlennium Hotel Glasgow,
and permanently take a portion of the hotel,
in connection with the redevelopment of the
Queen Street Station In Glasgow ME&C has
objected to the applicaton, together with
other affected parties, and continues to
pursue an altemative solution with Network
Ral The inqury currently 15 scheduted to

be held in May 2016

Other Group operations
Jont ventures and associates contributed
£17m {o profit n 2015 {2014 £10m)

First Sponsor Group Limited (“First
Sponsor') was listed on the Singapore
Exchange on 22 July 2014 The Group
has an effective interest of 36% in First
Sponsaor, which now reparts its results
publicly At 31 December 2015, the Group
managed one property owned by First
Sponsgr—the 196-room M Hotel Chengdu
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Strategic Report

Key performance We use a set of carefully selected key performance
indicators indicators (“KPIs") to monitor our success in executing
our strategy set out on page 16 These KPIs are used
to measure the Group’s progress year-on-year against
those strategic pnorities, and are set out below
Strategsc priority KPls
Growth Revenue per Qecupancy Average room rate Hotel revenue
To achieve profitable growth for our Availabie Room
hospitality business These are shown £ 1290 7108 Y 7z £ £m
at constant rates of exchange 80 B0 = % saa 1001e 000 Lo, o
100 BOO
o 8 80
. - 600
40 40 60
- 40 400
2 2 00 " 200
0 2016 2015 0 2014 2015 O 204 2015 0 2014 2015
Average room rate Percentage of rooms  Revenue from room Inctuding room sales,
mutipked by avalable for salethat  sales dwidec by the food and beverage
occupancy were actually sokd to number of rcom sales and meetings
percentage our guests nghts sold and events
Caprtal allocation Nat Asset Value Net debt Basic earmings per share
To ensure appropnate use of the
Group’s capital so that long-term , TR s~ R0 a0
return on investment for the shareholders 2500 500 525 i o -
1s maximised, through a ngorous asset 2000 - 500 )
managemeni programme, selectve 1500 400 18
acguisiions, and an appropnale use 1600 - 300 -
200
of equity Investments s T00
0 2014 208 0 201 2005 00 2014 2015

Total assets less total
labiities

Total borrowings less
total cash

Profit for the year
atinbutable to equity
holders of the parent
dwvided by weighted
average number of
shares i 1ssue

Cost Control

To ensure costs remain in ine with
revenue movements through a
decentralised model, technological
enhancements to anve efficencies
and ngorous monitonng of spending

The Group believes that the KPIs provice
useful and necessary information on
undertying trends 1o shareholders, the
investment community and are used by
the Group for intemal performance analysis
The Group monitors Net Asset Value to
better reflect the property ownership nature

Operating profit Profit before tax

£m £m 188

250 200

195

200 150

150 12 ws
100

100

50 50

g 2014 2005 0 2014 2015

of the Group Given the decentralised
model of the Group, regional management
focuses on operational <Pis as well as the
above These include customer feedback,
hotel gross operating profit and staff
retention General Managers report their
operating KPls to Regional Managers

on a regular basis with companson
numbers for the local competitive set
of each hotel The hotel performance
numbers are then consolidated nto
regional and Groupwide figures
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Financial performance

Full year overview

Profit before tax fell by 42 0% to £108m
(2014 £188m) The fall in profit was
mainly due to £43m net charge relatng

to imparment losses of £76m oifset by

net revaluation gains of £33m They

relate pnmanly to two of the Group’s Asian
properties and two recently acquired hotels

With regard to the two Asian properties,
the market has deterorated over the past
year and the outiook in the short to medium
terrm 1s uncertain and challengng The
region’s current weak financial and
economic positon has affected visitor
numbers and spending, and together with
the supply of new room nventory, these
factors continue to have an adverse nmpact
on the performance of the region Valuation
of one of the impaired hotels was alsc
negatively affected after loss of rental
income following its falure to secure a

new tenant In relation to the two recently
acquired hotels, room rates achieved were
lower than expected

The mpairment losses are a result of
MZ&C's annuat impairment testing whereby
the carrying amount of M&C's assets 1S
compared against the estimated
recoverable amount, which is the greater
of the far value less costs to sell and value
inuse In assessing the value n use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
1o ther present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the nsks
specific to each asset

Nots

1 Like for ke compansons excluce the mpact of acquisitions

closures and sakes of tha remaining three Ghyndebourne

conderminum unts n 2074 and they as stated n constant

curency terms
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For the full year to 31 December 2015, total revenue
increased by 2 5% to £847m (2014 £826m). This
Increase was atinbutable to the three hotels acquired
In 2014, the opening of the Milennium Mitsun Garden
Tokyo last December and favourable foreign currency
movements Like-for-like' revenue decreased by 04%

Asat Average for 12 months

31 December January-December

Cumency =) 2m5 2014 25 204
US dollar 1490 1556 1.532 1645
Singapora dollar 2103 2038 21 2087
New Tawan dollar 48 923 49 419 48 623 43 938
New Zealand dollar 2167 2001 2176 1980
Malaysian nnggit 6.403 5442 5934 5391
Korean won 1,74209 170855 1,73023 172798
Chinese renminbi 96688 9684 9840 i0 138
Euro 1358 1278 1375 1240
Japanese yen 179411 187 334 185880 173950

After removing the effects of the imparmment
losses and revaluation gains, the Group's
profit before tax decreased by 5 6%

to £152m (2014 £161m) Most of the
reduction in profit relates to the Group’s
Asian hotels, where the RevPAR decined
by 9 0% Like-for-like® pre-tax profit fel

by 4 4%

Basic earnings per share decreased by
41 5% to 19 9p (2014 34 Op)

Foreign exchange translation

The Company publishes its Group financial
statements in stering However the majonty
of the Company's subsidianes, joint ventures
and associates report ther revenue, costs,
assets and habiities in currencres other

than stering The Company transtates the
revenue, costs, assets and labiities of those
subsidianes, joirt ventures and associates
Into stering and this translaticn of other
currencies Into stering could matenally
affect the amcunt of these tems in the
Group's financial statements, even if therr
values have not changed in ther onginal
currencies

The above table sets out the stering
exchange rates of the other pancipal
currencies In the Group Sterling
strengthened appreciably compared to

the Singapore dollar but weakened against
the US dollar dunng the year, the impact

of which is reflected i the translation reserve
onpage 73
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Financial Position and Resources
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2015 2014 Change
£m £m £m
Property plant and equipment and lease premum prepayment 2,858 2851 7
Investment properties 506 479 27
mvestment n oink ventures and associales 255 235 20
Other financizl asse:s = 5 {5}
Non-current assets 3,619 3,570 a5
Current assets excluding cash 163 182 (19
Provisions and other habiliies exchicing borrowsngs (255} 271) 16
Net debt (605) (525) (B0)
Deferred tax labibties (210) (221) 11
Net assets 2,712 2,735 (23
Equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 2278 2263 13
Non controling nterests 436 472 (36}
Total equity 2,712 2735 {23)

Non-current assets

The Group states land and bulldings

at depreciated deemed cost, baing

therr UK GAAP carrying vaiue, including
revaluations as at 1 January 2004, together
with additions thereafter less subseguent
depreciation or provision for impairment
External professional open market
valuations ook place at the end of 2015
for all Investment properties and those
property assets identified as having
imparmment nsks

Nen-current assets ncreased skghtly

by 1 4% compared o last year, prncipally
due to the acquisitions of Hard Days Night
Hotel in Liverpool and Hiten Cambndge
City Centre for a total cost of £75m, net
revaluation gans of mvestmernt groperties
of £33m (2014 £27m}, and offset by
ymparment of property, plant and
equiprment of £76m (2014 £nil)

Financial position

Group nterest cover ralio for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (excluding
share of results of joint ventures and
asscciates, and other operating income
and expense) 1s 8 times (2014 10 tmes)

At 31 December 2015, the Group had
£238m cash and £406m of undrawn and
cormmitted faciities avalable compnsing
revolving credit faciities which provide the
Group with financial flexibility Most of the
faciies are unsecured with unencumbered
assets representing 92% of fixed assets
and investment properties At 31 December
2015, total borrowing amounted to £843m
of which ©67m was drawn under £83m of
secured bank facilities

Al 31 December 2015, the Group had
net debt of £605m (Dec 2014 net debt
£525m) Excluding COLHT, the net debt
was £201m (Dec 2014 net debt £185my}

Future funding

Of the Group's total faciities of £1,297m,
£351m matures within 12 months
Excluding COLHT, the Group’s total
faciities was £730m of which £168m
matures within the next 12 months Plans
for refinancing the facilities are underway

Treasury nsk managemeant

Group treasury matters are governed by
polcies and procedures approved by the
Board of Orectors The treasury committes
monitars and reviews treasury matters on
aregular basis A wntten summary of major
treasury actwity 1s presented 1o the Board
on a regular basis
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Regional performance

Asia

01 COrchard Hotel Singapore
02 Grand Hyatt Taipel
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Asia RevPAR for 2015 fell by 9 0% to £64 23
(2014 £70 59) contributed by lower room rate

and occupancy

Singapore

In Singapore, RevPAR 15 7 5% lower

for 2015 as a result of reduced consumer
spending and lower corporate travel
demand against a backdrop of a regional
economic slowdown Those factors,
combineg with increased pnce competiton
from new ang refurtished hotels in the
market and a relatively strong Singapore
dollar relative 1o key source markets in
Asia, the Singapore hotels have seen

a reduction in both occupancy and rate
compared to last year

Rest of Asia

In Rest of Asta, RevPAR fell by 9 3%
in 2015, mainly dnven by a decrease
of 6 7 percentage points In 0ccupancy
The weakerung Chinese currency and
increased rcom inventory In the Xiny!
Distnct have dampened demand at
Grand Hyatt Tapel South Korea also
suffered from the impact of the Middle
East Respiratory Syndrome outbreak
earlier this year

-
Asia

Hotal Revenue (£mr 284 19
RevPARTY 7059 90

Occupancy (Va1 787 1 Gipts

ARR £1 90 4* 1307

e

Singapore
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Regional performance

Europe

01 The Bailey's Hotel London

02 & 03 Harg Days Night Hotel Liverpool

e ————— i,

Europe
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Hote! Revenue (Em) 99
RevPAR (€ 20.92
Occupancy () 65
ARR Y 10552

London
Hoteal Revenue 1€y ‘24
RevPAR (€) 108.68

Occupancy (o 80.2
130.51

ARR (D)

7T

102 33

126
1247
a5.7
131.23

10.91pis

3.3

gy

e T
B

33

N

Rest of Europe

Hotel Revenue (£m) 75
RavPAR (€) 5°.56
Cccupancy o) 2.7
ARR 1£) 70.96

69
4616
691
B8.82

8.7%

177

3 6pts
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Europe RevPAR for 2015 increased by 2 2% driven

by acquisitions Like-for-like RevPAR, excluding the
acquisitions of The Chelsea Harbour Hotel, Hard Days
Night Hotel, Liverpool and Grand Hotel Palace Rome

and the exprry of the lease on Copthorne Hotel Hannover,

fell 1 8%

London

London RevPAR for 2015 fell by 3 4%
Exciuding The Chelsea Harbour Hotel
which was acquired in March 2014,
LLondon RevPAR fell 3 5% Lower RevPAR
at The Balley's Hotel London was the
largest factor in the dechne due to the
refurbishment of guestrooms which started
at the end of 2014 and was completed In
the fourth quarter of 2015

Rest of Europe

Most of the Group's Ewropean hotels
outside London perforrned better than

last year with RevPAR up 11 7%, boosted
by recent acquistions  The main exception
was Copthorme Hotel Aberdeen which

was affected by the significant fall in energy
prces and the consequential impact on the
hotel's ol and gas customer actvity Ona
Iike-for-like basis, RevPAR grew by 2 2%
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Regional performance
United States

01 Millenmum Buffalo
02 Millennium Alaskan Hotel Anchorage
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RevPAR for the US region dunng 2015 decreased by
01% to £79 89 with growth in the newly refurbished
regional US hotels being offset by slower performance

in the New York hotels

New York

New York RevPAR fell by 5 8% as a result
of a 4 6 percentage point fall In occupancy
and a 0 5% fall n average room rate dnven
by an increase n the city's hotel room
invenitory and the weak euro leading lo
reduced number of European travellers to
the aity Excluding Novotel New York Times
Sguare which was acquired in June 2014,
New York RevPAR fell 8 6% and the total
US region was down 2 §%

Regional US

RevPAR for the Regienal US increased
by 3 1% to £48 92 (2014 £47 46)
reflecting contnbuticns from Millennium
Harvest House Boulder, Millennium
Knickerbocker Hotel Chicago and

The McCormick Scottsdale which
were recently refurbished

United States

Hotel Resvenue (Srn ? 247
RePARICT 7. E
Qccupancy « 1 661 685 (24ols
ARR Ty N 4 6 T3 357

New York

Hotel Revenue {£m) 138 132 4574
RevPAR %) 242,92 15173 58
Occupancy 171 821 BT 14.Bipis

ARR (L) 173.99 17495 1051

Regional US

Hotel Revenue (Emi Y 26"
RePARI(C ) 5 3
30.2  20wpts

ARRIT) ' 66

Occupancy ¢
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Regional performance
Australasia

01 Coptherne Hotel & Resort
Bay of Islands
02 Millennium Hotel Queenstown

201 Change

— e
New Zealand

Hotet Revenue (£m) 40 38 5.3
RevPAR (€ 43.33 3849 1267,

Occupancy (%) 771 737 3dpts

ARR(£) 55,18 52.21 v.0¢
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Australasia RevPAR grew 12 6% in 2015 dnven by
an increase IN overseas visttors

Millennium Hotel Queenstown and
Copthome Hotel Rotorua continued

to make gans after completion of thew
refurbishrnent projects The performance
of these hotels and Copthorme Hotel
Wellingion Onental Bay reflected the

fact that New Zealand remains a popular
destination for Chinese, United States
and European wisitors

Copthorne Hotel Auckland Harbour City
which has been closed for a refurtishment
prograr is expected to be recpened in
the first quarter of 2017 The hotel will be
extensvely refurbished and sts operations
will be appropnately repositioned to reflect
the new look and the investment which will
be made to the property
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Corporate responsibility

As a leading hotel chain, we remain
committed to operating our business
n an economically, socialty and
environmentally responsikle manner

We believe that each hotel plays an

active role in is local community, creating
Jjobs, stimulating economic opporturity
and managing its environmental impacts

in a responsible way Our am is to develop
new and better ways to buld and run our
hotels, which create sustanable value for
our brands, business and stakeholders

as well as addressing our socal and
environmental responsibilities

The Board I1s responsible for the Group's
corporate responsibility with the Group
Chief Executive Officer taking the lead

To support our commitment (o corporale
responsibility, the Board supports a number
of policies, collectively referred to as
Responsible Hospitality which are designed
to recognise and manage the Group's
wider impact on the cormmuruties in which
we operate The Board recogrises the need
to review these pohcies regularty and these
are updated as necessary A hst of these
pohcies can be found on our website at
hitp /Awww rmillenniumhotels com/
corporate/investors/pelcies html

Building our team

Our employees are an essential part of our
business and we axm to foster an inspinng.
diverse and collaborative work environment
where our people know they are
appreciated, vatued and respected Upon
cammencement wath the Group, new
colleagues are provided with an exiensive
inducticn which gives them an update on
the business and introduces them to our
unigue company culture and brands

Suitable traning and personal develop-
ment opporiunites are provided to our
employees and we use a number of ways
to engage them, which helps promote team
bulding and create a better understanding
of the Company

Consistent with ocur Responsible Hospitality
approach, we also have in place our

brand definng ‘Qutstanding Service
Excellence’ programme where colleagues
are empowered to adapt and deliver
personalised service to each guest

Thws inspiration-based service approach
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s designed 10 engage both colleagues and
guests on an emotional level, encouraging
a genuine connection and creating true
‘fans’ of our brand

The Group mantans a code of ligh
ethical standards, to which all employees
are required to adhere Our Code of Ethics
and Business Conduct {*Code”) requres
that we comply with all laws of general
application, all rules and regulations that
are Industry specific and proper standards
of business conduct The Code prohibits
the gmving or recesang of ot payrents
and regurres all colleagues to be treated
fary, mpartially and with respect It also
requires that all managers must be fully
aware of therr obligations under the Code
and must establish procedures to ensure
compliance at all levels within their
organisations Further guidance in specific
areas 1s provided through related corporate
and regronal policies and guidance, such
as our Anti-Bnbery policy and the Business
Hospitality and Gifts policy

Procedures are also in place by which
colleagues can raise, In confidence,
matters of senous concem in areas such
as financial reporting or complance

We support and protect human nghts
wherever we can As a responsitle
company with cperations across the
world, we believe that strong ethics and
good business go hand in hand and we
are committed to complying with the
laws and regulations of the countrnes and
Jjunsdictions n which we cperate The
Group has adopted a human nghts poicy
which 1s designed to communicate and
enhance awareness of our valuas and
commitment to certain fundamental
human nghts pnnciples which are algned
with those of the Intemational Labaur
Orgarusaton and the United Nations
Universal Declaration of Huran Rights

The Group has also adopted a formal
slavery and human trafficking staterment
which 15 avalable at http /Awww
millenriumhotels com/utiiies/slavery himi

The Group continues to be fully committed
to equality of opportunity and more
information can be found on page 38

of the Directors’ Report
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For the year ended to 31 December 2015,
the Group employed an average of 10,870
peopie woridwide in over 20 countres
{2014 10,257)

Employees by genctar Male Fernale
Drirectors 8 1
Seror managers' 181 97
QOther employees 5789 4794
Note

1 This excludes 38 subsiciary directors who were external
non independant/indepencient appointrments of which 28
wes male and 7 female

The average number of employees
employed by the Group (including the
Company’s Directors) dunng the year
analysed by category was as follows

L 2;o5 2014

Number Number

Hotei cperanng staff 8392 7954
Management/

administration 1,385 1253

Sales and marketing 466 484

Repairs and mantenance 620 586

10870 10,257

A safe workplace

Providing a safe and secure environment for
our guests, employees and subcontractors
1s essential To ensure therr protecton and
well-being, our health and safety functions
ensure that comprehensve processes and
procedures are In place at all properties
and comply with relevant legislation Such
measures also support our hotels toidentify
hazards, assess nsks and implement
appropnate controls to reduce occupational
injunes, accidents and fataities

Heaith and safety 1s a pnncipal nsk

and as part of our nsk management
effective trairing, supervision and regular
communication on health and safety
matters i1s regularly prowded to our
employees To support this, a com-
prehensve schedule of audits, inspections
and dnlis 1s camed out both intemally
and by independent bodies to check
awareness, comphance and readiness
to deal with emergencies

For example, our UK region has pub-
Iished and launched health and safety
management policies and procedures
certified to OHSAS 18001 {externally
audited by the Batish Standards Institution)
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Management 1s currently in the process of
roling out the system across the remaning
UK hotels which is designed to ensure
robust and comgrehensive nsk assessment
and recognition across the business These
efforts are supported by new compiliance
management software resuiting in tighter
control of statutory/mandatory actmties,
inspections and creation of audi trals

Quarterly reports covenng health and safety
maiters are also presented to the Board
These prowide statistics on accidents,
incidents and prograss 1 fulfiling targets
Iinked to continuous Improverment, reporting
and review of health and safety matters

Cartng for the environment

We understand that sustainabiity impacts
nearly al aspects of our hotel operations,
s0 we embrace it as a rmeans 1o preserve
our environment, to provide Increased
guest comfort and 1o engage and inspire
our colleagues We encourage our hotel
managers to seek new ways to reduce and
manage erssions and energy use across
our hotel estate by adopting emvircrimental
best practices and optimising efficiency

Feor example, as part of an ongoing
process, our hotels have been converting
incandescent ight bulbs 1o LED As

LEDs are extremely energy efficient,
consuming up to 90% less power than
incandescent bulbs, significant benefits are
being derved in terms of reduced power
together with savings on maintenance and
replacement costs due to ther longer
Ifespan Other energy saving projects have
included nstallation of new energy efficient
equipment, use of renewabla energy
technology and optimising the performance
of existing equipment

A number of our hotels In Asia and the US
have also participated in a soap recycling
programme set up through a nonprofit
organisation called Clean the World that
collects partially used scaps and other
nygiene ameniies Collected iteras are then
hygrenucally recycled and distnbuted globally
o communities N need

Dunng 2015, our London hotels ook part
n the Mayor of London's Business Energy
Challenge awards which provides an
excellent oppoertunity for businesses to
showcase therr cnve for energy efficency
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and cuts to ther carbon emissions
Although we were not successful in
achieving an award, our contnbution
helped the government to develop &
better understanding of energy
efficency in London

QOur UK business also participated in

the Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme,

a UK mandatory energy assessment
scherme for large organmisalions As part

of the scherne, energy audts were camed
out a1 a selection of cur hetels The energy
audits identified energy efficiency measures
which we are considenng 10 terms of cost
and consumplion savings

Details of qur total carbon footpnnt are
summansed in the table on the nght The
base year was set as 2010 being the first
year the Group reported greenhouse gas
emissions This year our carbon footprnt
was 389,257 tonnes

To calcutate our emissions, we have

used the Greenhouse Gas ("GHG")
Protocel Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard methodology and

the operational control approach to
determine what properties are included
Franchise hotels and investment hotels
that are managed by thwd party operators
have not been inciuded in the data collation
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’ be;! nngs of COe

2010 |

Bass |

2015 2014 year

Scope 1! BO543 59200 73308
Scope 22 296906 262,918 235916
Scope 1 ang 2 carbon
ntensity
{tonnes of GO e/room
Includes scope one, two
and three ermissions but
not travel) 13 44 1238 1332
Scaope 3? 31808 27 323 19214
N¢ of rooms 28744 27925 24 658
Total gross emssicns 389 257 349442* 328 439
Notes

1 [wect emissons from acivibes owned or controded by our
organisation that release emswons nto the eumospherns

2 indwect ermussons that are a consequence of our
organsatons actmties but which OCCur Bl SOUICes we da
not own or control

3 Cthee incirgct emissions that are a consaquenca of our
acthities which occur at sources Which wa do not own or
control and which are not classed 85 SCOPe 2 emMISSions

4 Ingludes business travel

Absolute emissions for the year have
increased due to the opening of a number
of new hotels However, f newly opened
hotels were {0 be excluded, overall group
emissions would show a decrease of 5%
compared 10 2014 Emissions per unit floor
area have decreased by 15% since our
base year of 2010 Emissions per room has
increased siightly by 1% since our base
year of 2010 Thes 1s due to hotels opened
since 2012 being larger In sze but with a
smaller number of rooms and being located
in hot climates where there 1s a higher ar
conditioning requirement

Relative: Carbor Emissions by Source e S00r 212
- R00M
gtOymimt HCO/Room
i) 180
1m 154 82 170
——
58 \ 100
148
150 143 150
139
140 1410
130 13.32 13.29 13744 1340
1268
20 1228 1238 120
no na
00 2030 2 012 2ama 2014 a5 100
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Corporate responsibility
continued

Measunng our carbon emissions against
relative metncs gives us the opportunity
to improve the efficiency of our operations
through the implementaticn of new
techncloges and intiatives It aiso allows
us to focus on reducing the consurnption
of natural resources including through
reuse and recycling to work towards

a lower carbon business

Sourcing responsibly

In order to affirm our commitment to
soureing responsibly, we contnually
develop unique cppertunities for sustainable
sourcing In each aspect of our daily
operations with a specific focus on food
and beverage ingredients Our focus
inciudes reducing food miles and using
supphers with a demonstrable commitment
to sustainable production methads For
example, our UK man food supplier has
Introduced best practices and nvesiment
programmes with goals to reduce CO,
ermissIons, MINIMISE enargy consumption
and waste to landfil

In 2015, our US properties worked with
a national food distnbutor to develop
programmes around sustanabdity which
support positive change n fishenes and
agriculture

Moreover, new standards and protocols
have been set up In the US which identify
products that meet an established set of
sustanability standards, such as products
that have been Bovine Growth Hormone
free and Humane Farm Animal Care
certified, which help our hotel procurement
teams to source respensible products

In the UK, we have also started to
optimise the frequency of land trucking
delvenes so as to reduce our overall
pollution and emissions  Our project of
‘zerc waste being transferred to landfil’,
which commenced in 2014 and piloted
by two of our UK hotels, continues

Supporting Jocal communities

We fully embrace the communities in
which we cperate and we are committed
to conducting our business N ways ihat
have a positive Impact on socigty We
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encourage every hotel to get involved

in ts community in ways that make the
most of therr skilis and for causes about
which they are passionate Our colleagues
are encouraged to participate directly,
whether through volunteenng, fundrasing
or coordinating evenis for local chantable
causes

Below are a few of the commurity
initiatives from our hotel cofleagues, who
are helping 10 buld a bnghter future in their
communities

Orchard Hotel Singapore supported

the ‘Adopt a Wishing Star’ foundation by
collecting handwntten wishes from children
of low-income families of Thye Hua Kwan
Moral Chanties Limited and Sengkang
Family Service Centre and encouraging
hotel staff and guests to fulfil the wishes

Millennium Hotel Sirnth Jakarta, held in
2015 a golf tournament N conunchion with
the Jakarta Hotels Association which rased
nearty £8,00C for Habitat for Humanity
indonesia The money was used towards
bulding homes for five families with chidren
at Desa Bojongkoneng, Sentul in Indonesia

Miltenruum Comiche Hotel Abu Dhabi
joined hands with Bnghtpoint Royal
Women's Hospital dunng the month of
QOctober, known intematicnally as Breas!
Cancer Awarenass monih, 1o raise
awarengss of the disease Ladies who
attendec a coffee moming session at

the hotel's bar Cristal were given a 50%
discount card for a mammogram test
Representatves from Bnghtpoint Hospdal
explaned the iImportance of routine
examinations and early detection to beat
the disease thal remans a global killer

Millennium Hotel Cincinnati employees
have been collecting children’s books for
Adopt-A-Bock, a non-profit organisation
dedicated to prowiding underpriviieged
children with books of thetr own The larget
was to collect 500 books, however the
hotel team were so passionate about the
cause that they exceeded the target with

a total of 1,539 children’s books
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The Hentage Hotel Mamia sponsored
30 runners to participate in the Milion
Volunteer Run organised by the Philippine
Red Cross to raise funds for those affected
by disasters

Copthorne Hotel London Gatwick
continues to support the local community
by providing desserts for a homeless shelter
on Chnstmas

day This contnbution was part of a local
Operation Santa appeal by the local press
in Crawley and involved businesses
contnbuting items to help feed over 70
homeless people at Crawley Open House
in Stephenson Way, Three Brdges over
Chnstmas The hotel's pastry department
baked over 70 desserts for the shelter
Other staff at the hotel also helped by
collecting toothbrushes and {oletnes to
gwe as Chnstmas gifts for the homeless

Copthome Hotel Roterua organised

a 'Can for Can' imiative which involved
colleagues donating a canned food tem
and the hote! matching the total number

of cans donated which were divided equally
between a local woman’s refuge and the
Salvation Army foodbank chanty

Our hotels also help young people from
disadvantaged backgrounds by provicing
employment skills training and vocational
opportunities For example, our ONE UN
New York hotel prowided traning and
hands on work expenence to students
from the New York University Similarty,
Maingate Lakeside Resort teamed up
with a mentonng organisation called Jurior
Acrievernent and provided seven weeks
of nstruction to tigh school students on
“Career Success and Getung Hired”

Looking forward

We will continue to commit time and
resources 10 our corporate responsibility
programme, refine our practices and
contnbute to our communities In a
meaningful way
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Our risks

Risk factors

We provide nforrnation on the nature of
each pnneipal nsk Not all potential nsks
are listed below, scme nsks are excluded
because the Board considers that they are
not matenal to the Group as a whole Our
processes am to provide reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the nsks significant
to our business have been dentified and
addressed Addtionally, there may be nsks
that are not reascnably foreseeable at the
date of this report such that the Group

can assess fully ther potentiat iImpact

on the business

The order in which nsks are presented
below 1s not indicatve of the relative
potential impact on the Group The

nsks may, to varying degrees, Impact
the Group's revenues, profits, net assets,
financial and other resources and
reputation 15 often difficult for manage-
ment to assess with accuracy the likely
impact of an event on reputation, as any
damage cften may be disproportionate
io the event's actual financial Impact
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Like any other business, we are subject to a number of
rnsks and uncertanties, which are influenced by both
internal and external factors, often outside our control

In this section, we describe the principal nsks that could
have a matenal effect on the Group's ability to deliver
against Its strategy together with the controls and
actvities In place to miigate such nsks

Management of risk

In general, the geographical spread of

the Group provides a natural hedge aganst
many of the pnncipal nsks identified on
the following pages Our nsk management
actmty 1s directed by the regional
operational heads and functional heads,
led by the Group Chief Executive Officer,
and is monitored by the Audit & Risk
Committee with assistance from the
Internal Audit function as shown in the
diagram below Risk registers, which

map the nature of the nsks relatve to

ther Lkelhood of occurrence and seventy
and associated trends, are compiled and
perodically updated Members of the
executive management team are assigned
responsibiity for devising nsk treatment
plans to eliminate, minimise or transfer the

relevant nsks for which they are responsible,

and they undertake regular reviews of the
nsk register and progress with nsk
management plans The Board has overall
responsiility for nsk management and

for ensunng that the Group's nsks are
managed appropnately

Board of Directors

CRRNELoNP R 1 0 ol IV L1 B

Group Chief Executive Officer and the
functional and regional operating heads
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fisk assessment

Matenal nsks are identified through
a detailed bottom up approach as
well as a holistc top down review

The bottom up review encompasses

the identification, management and
monitonng of nsks in each area of the
business Including the hotels and ensures
that nsk management controls are
embedded in the businesses’ operations

The top down review led by the

Audit & Risk Committes, supported

by management, evaluates the Group's
operating environrment with a particular
focus on the cash flows of the Group
for the three financial years ending 31
December 2018 Such evaluation also
includes sensitvity analysis based on a
significant deciine in hotel profit due to a
combination of the pnncipal nsks, as set
out on pages 31 to 33, matenalising for
a sustained period or faling to renew
debt faciities matunng in the penod as
they fall due
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Our risks
continued

Rewview penod

The Direclors have assessed the viabiity
of the Group over a vanety of penods
Whilst the Directors have no reason to
believe the Group will not be wable over
a longer pencd, given the inherent
uncertainty involved, the penod over
which the Directors consider it possible
to form a reasonable expeciation as to
the Group's longer-term viability, 1s the
three year penod to 31 Decemnber 2018
This three-year penod has been selected
for several reasons

 First, the three-year penod 1s 10 ling
with the Group's rolling strategic and
financial planning  Plans are reviewed
by the Board on an annual basis, and

» Second, the tandscape of online
competiion has been changing rapidly

and Is likely to continue to change further

In the foreseeable future It would be
ditficult to form a reascnable judgment

of how the online marketplace will evolve

beyond a period of three years

Strategic Report
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Strategi: Report

Risk and Potential Impact

Kl

Mitigating Actrvibies

Reputation and brand protection

Quality of service delvery
and product

Consistent delivery of service and product gquality 1s witalty
important to creatng and mantaning brand loyalty and value
perception and influencing consumer preference Lack of
rwvestment In the Group § assets or the removal of a signiicant
number of rooms from inventory 1IN order to compiete needed
refurtishment programimes could have a signficant wnpact on
those factors and therefore on the revenues that hotals are able
1o achieve As supply increases, particularty in our key gateway
cies business may be lost ta newer hotels and/or rates may
have to be reduced to remain competitve

In addiwen management of thrd party owned hotels under
management agreements particularty in the Mxidle East and
Chinaregions and the usae of jont ventures in the Middle East
and other markets gves nse to the nsk of non-performance on
the part of the hotel owners and joint venture partners, and the
ability of the relevant hotels to detver sennce and product quaity
to Group brand and operating standards especially when the
strategic objectives of those parties are not fully afigned with
those of the Group

Generally the Group operates properties which 1 owns,

and therefore 15 able to exercise control over the service

and preduct qualty of those hotels

For those hotels we own but do not operate such as the

Novotet New York Times Square the Group asset manages

those properties to ensura cormphance with 1s serice levels

and contractual regurermnents

« The Group contir.as to develop proceny spec c asset
management plans which focus on the capital requirements
of each property in terms of regular mantenance and
product enhancement to help ensure the products remain
competitve Refurbishments are phased appropnatety in
orger to minmise the mpact of those programmes
on operations to the extent possible

* The Group currently endeavours ta reinvest one-third

of its EBITDA into its hotel estate

The Group has in place brand anc operating standards

and regularly refreshes those to provide for congistent

sennce delivery and preduct quality among s hotels

aven (f they are owned by thurd parties and/or operated

through joint ventures

s Management representatves are assigned (o manage

the relationships wath jent venture partriers and third party

hotel owners

Intellectua! property rights
and brands

Future growth and pricing power and the image and reputation
of the Group iIn general will in part be dependent on the
recogniion of the Group s brands and perception of the values
nherent in thosa brands The ability of the group 1o protect its
intellectual property nghts in those brands 15 instrumerntal in
preventing them from detenarating in value

In addiion, the profferation of 8-commerce and online sales
channels whether through affitates cnline ravel agencies meta
search websites or otherwise can give nse to brand confusion
and further difution If the Group s ntellectual property 1s not used
appropnately and in accerdance with the Group s brand and
marketng standards

= n 2015 the Group allocated its hotels and brands into
distinct coliectons and updatsed its brang and marketing
standards to enhance and clanfy its brand portfolo
Substantial Investment continues to be made in protecting
the Group's brands from misuse and infnngement, by

way of trade mark registration enforcement of intellectual
property nghts and domam name protecticn The Group
utiises thed party online brand menitenng and protection
agencies to assist wih the Group s enforcement acivities

Increasing competition

The heoiel ndustry operates within an inherently cychical
marketipiace where competiton both online and offine

5 INcreasng An increase n market room supply without
comesponding Increases in demand may leac to downward
pressure on rates which in tum could negatively \npact the
Group s performance

With regard tc online competiion the Growp's hotel rooms

are bocked through a numiber of distnbution channels, one

of which 15 the onling travel agency ["OTA™) OTAs tend 10 have
higher commigsion rates than mare traditonal distnbution
channels and are taking an ncreasing share of bookngs across
the sector Over ime consumers may develop kyalles 1o the
OTAs rather than to owr brands These trends may impact owr
profitabdity In addtion, shanng economy platforms such as
Arbnb may expand ther market share and compete with more
tracktional business and lesure accommodatons

The Group's flexiale fnancial control a-d revenue
managsment systems help it 1o control costs and achieve
better yields in volatle trading condiions
+ The Group continues to refresh its digital marketing
strategy and invest n s & commerce customer retationship
management revenue maragement and seservatons
systems in order to help ncrease rates retain exsting
customers and generate ngw Dusness
= Anew athvanced central reservations system was
mplemented in 2014, providing a platform for future
anhancements Additionally the Group's website and loyalty
programme are in the process of being upgraded to halp
improve brand recogrition and drive more: bookings through
the Groups own less costly distnbution channels
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Qur risks

Strategic Report

continued
Risk and Potential Impact Mrtigating Activities.

Talent rr G 11 and SuC
Exacution of the Group s strategy depends on its ability 10 » The Group has a strong senice culture supported by
attract develop and retain employees with the appropnate performance management and recognilion systems
skils expenence and apttude This becomes more difficul: compensation ara benefits arrangements, and rainng
as world travel becomes more prevalent and competition n and development programmes  Labour refations are
the hospialty mdustry increases actively managed on a regional and local basis

s |n the second half of 2015 the Group with the support
Faiure of the Group to properly plan for the succession of key of an external compensalig~ and benefits consuliant,
management roles may cause operaticnal disruption patentialy completed a revew of its below Board level executive
detaying the execution of the Group s strategies and ncreasing compansation a~c benefts arrangements and wil be
costs and inefficiences implernenting certain changes in 2016 n an effort o
enhance employee engagement and performance
Financial

The Group cperates N numerous junsdictions and trades n
vanous intemational currencies, but reports 15 financial resufts
n pounds sterkng  Fluctuations n currency exchange rates and
interest rates may either be accretve or diutve to the Group's
reported trading results and net asset value

Unhedged interest rate exposures pose a nsk 1o the Group
when interest rates nise, resulting n Ncreased costs of funding
and an impact on overal financial performance

F]

The Group g mternal Treasury Management Commuttes
montors and addresses treasury matters including
Investment and counterparty nsks in accordance with
the Group s treasury poiicy The Board and Auds & Risk
Committee receve regutar updates on reasury matiers
Foreign exchange exposure 15 pnmanly managed through
the funding of purchases and repayment of bomowings
from income generated in the same cumrency

Interest rate hedges are only used 10 manage ntgrest rata
nsk to the extent the percenved costs are considered to
outwa gh the be~efits of having flexble, vanable--ate debt

Compliance and corporate responsibility

Legal and reguiatory complance

The Group operates in many junsdictions and 18 exposed

1o the nsk of non-compliance with ncreasingly complex
statutory and regulatory requirernents including competiion
law, & brbery and cotruption and data prvacy compliance
regimes Non-comphance with such regulations, which differ

by junsdiction and are an area of increasing focus by regulators
could resuit i1 fines andvor other damages including reputatonal
damage being incurred particularty in the event a data breach
shoutd occur

In addition the Group may be at nsk of Iiigation from

vanous parties with which it interacts erther through direct
contractual amangements or as a result of prowding senices
{0 customers Significant costs could be incurred where clams
are not Insured of are not fully msured and ingabion could

give nse tc repulatonal damage being suffered and
management distraction

In certain countries where the Group cperates, particuiarty

in emerging markets, kocal practices and the legal environment
may be such that enforcernent of the Group s legal nghts 1s
challenging

The Group continues to monitor changes i the regulatory
environments in which it operates, identify its compliance
cbligatons and implement appropnate compliance and
traiing programmes  The Group has comprehensive global
and where applicable regional polcies and procedures
n place 1o address competiticn law data privacy athical
busness conduct whistle-blowing, anti-corruption and
bnbery gifts and hospitabty and chantable donations
among others

The Group mantains in place mdustry standard insurance
cover to mitigate many potential ihigation nsks such as
empioyment practices liabiity, workers compensation

and general hability polces

The Group has contrals in place to manage and help
mitigate the nsks associated with 48 vanous contractual
relationships from execution through to terrmination
insured and uninsured liigation and other disputes
Regular imgation reparts are prowded (o the Beard

Health and safety and
social responsibility

The Group is exposed to a wide range of regulatory
requIrerments and obligations concerming the health and
safety of employees wisitors and guests Falure to implement
and mantam sufficient controls regarding health and safety
1ssues could expose the Group to sgndicant sanctons, both
cml and cnminal, fimangial penalties and reputational damage

Furthermore as a significant property owner and operator

of hotels In multple unsdicticns, the Group must do more

than smply comply with focal reguiations We most actin @
responsible way towards our stakeholders and the cormumtes
n which our hotels cperate

The Group has established and maintans health and
safety and emaronmental management systemns which

it seeks to ahgn with the requirements of ISQ 14001 and
OHSAS 18007 By using these standards the Group 18
committed te working to the highest standards of health
and safety and to an internaticnally accrecited system
The Group has adopted vancus corporate responsibility
niatives in relation to its employees guests and the
enwrorment The Group s cperatng regons have flexibility
to tarar Such htiatves and adopt new ores 1o better
conform to local and regional customs and practices
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Risk and Potential Impact

Mitigating Activities

Vulnerability to cyber attacks or fraud

Increasng rellance on onkna distnbuton channels and
transactions over the internet and the aggregation and

storage of guest and other information electromcally both on
company-controlled servers and netwonks and in cloud based
eraronments present hesghtened nsks of attacks affecting the
operation of those systems and networks andfor a potental loss
or misuse of confidential or propnetary information The
accurrence of cyber nsks could disupt business, the ability of
the Group to take or futfil bockings or lead to reputatonal and
monetary damages Itigation or regulatery fines

In addition vanous aspects of the Group s operations are
required 1o achieve compliance with the payment card ndustry
data secunty standards (‘PCI-DSS") and fadure 1o do sa couid
result n penalties and/or withdrawal of credit cand payment
facilties

In 2015 the Group engaged an external consultancy

finm to conduct security and cengtration iesting services

n refation to certain of the Group s websites and
mplemented enhancements followang that review Also,

as part of the Group's PCI-DSS comphiance actmties, all
regrons conduct additional nternal and external penstration
testing annually as reguirec

The Company has n place and regularly reviews cyber
nsurance coverage to protect against cartan cyber nsks
Software systermns are regularly updated 1o allew for the
latest secunty updates and patches to be nstalled

Whera the Group outsources cntical informaticn

technology systems, ncluding its pont of sale and property
management systems, the Group utiises reputable
supplers that have industry standard or best-in class

data secunty protocols The Group s hotels utilse Oracle's
MICRQS property managerment system for example

The regronal iInformation technelogy tearns have developed
disaster recovery plans and guides with regard to ther high-
priority systems that need to be up and running and tests
are conducted on select mission-crticat systems annually
to verify their recoverability offsite

Information technology pelicies and procedures have been
updated 1o reflec 'mpiemen.ation of the latest PCOSS
compliance standards

Natural, geopolitical and economic events

Sustained levels of occupancy and the Group's abilty

to oplrmise room rates and profitatility can ba adversety
affected by vanous external events that may reduce travel
or ncrease the Group s operating costs

Such events, which often are beyond the control of
management, may be locahksed 1o a particular community,

CRy o country or they may have a wider niematonal impact
Examples of such events incluce severe weather condians
and natural disasters acts of tefronsm war or percened nsk
of armed conflict epidemics, natonaksauon of assets of
restnclions on the repatnation of funds Increased travel COSts
ndustrial action and paliical ana/or social unrest Notaby the
forthcoming UK referendum on EU membership will gra nse to
further political and economic uncedtanty Appropnate insurance
coverage may not be avalabia n the market in some Nstances
or coverage may nat be avadable on commercially vabie terms

The Group has in place disaster recovery CnsIs response
and business continuity plans to enabls it to respond to
MaYor INCIdents or emergencies

Managermert pro-actively monitors gecpolitical
developments and seeks to dentify emerging nsks

at the eariest opporturity and implements cwnership
structures internal controls and other steps (o minimise
these exposures 10 the greatest extent possible

The Group's flexible fnanciat and revarue management
systems help it to control costs and acheve better yelds
n velatle trading conditions

The Group's insurance reguirements are reguiarly reviewed
by management to ensure that the coverages cbtained are
appropriate to the company s nsk prof le relative to e cost
of cover available in the relevant markets

The wsde geographic spread of the Group s properties s

a natural hedge aganst the impact of natural, geopoliical
and economic events

Nota Dueto:r'enndepthmvmandras!atsn'emonheGrmpspmuommfomngmemWatmolmVabﬁﬁySrmmmaywmyearmpasmUHMSmusofeachmkwasml

performed as n poor years

Approval of Strategtc Report
The Strategic Report compnses the following sections Charman's statement, Business review and strategy, Key perforrmance indicators,
Financial performance and regional performances, Corporate responsibility (which incorporates inforrnation relating to greenhouse gas
emissions requered to be included In the Directors’ report) and Qur nsks sections The Strategic Report was approved by the Board and
has been signed on its behalf by

Aloysius Lee

Group Chief Executve Officer

18 February 2016
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Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2015

Governance

1 Kwek Leng Beng"
Chairman of the Board and Chairman
of the Norminations Committee

Kwek Leng Beng has been the Chairman of Millenniurm
& Copthoms Hotels pic since its incorporation He s
also the exacutve chasrman of City Developments
Lmed chawman and managing director of Hong
Lecng Finance Limited ana Gity e Solugons Limted
and the chamman of Hong Leong Asia Limited

Mr Kwek holds an honcrary doctorate in Business
Administration in Hospitality from Johnson & Wales
Urwverstty in the US and an honorary doctorate from
Cxford Brookes Unversity 10 the UK He alse serves
as a member of the INSEAD East Asia Council

Kwsak Leng Beng has distinguished timself in property
nvestment and development hotel ownership and
management financial senaces and incustnal
enterpnses He deads a business empire worth over
1SS32b In diversified preryum assets woridwide and
comprising companes traded on six of the world §
stock markels Mr Kwek heads a worldwide staff of
over 40 000 across & range of businesses in Asia-
Pacific, the Middle East, Europe and Nerth Amenca

2 Aloysius Lee Tse Sang
Group Chief Executive Officer
{rom 1 March 2015)

Aloysius Lee Tse Sang was apponted to the Board
and as Groug Chief Executive Officer on 1 March
2015 He 15 a non-executve director of Millenum &
Copthome Hotels New Zealand anet CDL Investments
New Zealand Limited bath of which are Ested on the
New Zealand stock exchange having been apponted
on 1 Apnl 2015 and ne was appainted as a non-
executive director of First Spansor Group Limited
which 15 isted on the Singapora Exchange on 2 April
2015 Mr Lee serves as president and charman of the
board of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation, whch 15
tstec in the Philippines  after s appontment oa

15 May 2015

Wr Lee was previously the Chief Executive Officer

of South Beach Consortiurn Pte Ltd  ajoint venture
established by City Developments timited and other
parbies 10 create a mixed-use real estate development
n Singapere Pror 1o that Mr Lee held senuor
leaciership posibons at Shu Cn Land, Heng Kong
Telecom Star Cruises and Singapore Airlines He

15 a fellow of both the Chartered Management insttute
and the Chartered Institute of Marketing and earned
a masters degree in business administration from the
Unrversity of Hong Kong He alsc holds management
qualifications from Harvard Unnersity and the
Urwversity of Hawan

3 Nicholas George*™
Senlor Independent Diractor

Nicholas George was appainted 1o the Board in

June 2008 A chartered accountant by profession

Mr George sis on the board of GK Geh Holdings a
company listed in Singapore and Aberdeen New Dawn
Investmeant Trust which 1s bsted on the London Stock
Exchange He also sits on the boards of euNetworks
and Nutmeg Savings and lnvestments

Mr George was a founding partner of KGR Capal
aleading Asian funds of hedge funds that was sold to
LGT Capital Partriers in 2008 He has over 30 years of
expenence N nvestment banking and was a managing
drector of JP Morgan Secunties {premously Jardine
Flerming) n Asia from 1993 to 2002 and a managing
drector of HSBC Secunties in Asia from 2002 to 2003

4 Kwaok Eik Sheng
Non-Exgcutive Director

Kwek Ek Sheng was appointed to the Board in Apnl
2008 He has been with the Hong Lecng Group of
companes in Singapore since 2006 and yoned City
Developments Limited n 2009 where he currently
serves as the Chief Strategy Cfficer

Mr Kwek holds a Bachelor of Engineenng n Electncal
and Electronics Engineenng from Impenal College of
Sacence Technology and Medicine and a MPhd in
Finance from Jucdge Business School, Cambndge
Unwversty
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5 Kwek Leng Peck™
Non-Executive Director

Governance

Kwek Leng Peck was appainted to the Board in
February 1885 prior to the fotaton of the Company
on the Landon Stock Exchange He holds
directorships on most of the listed companies within
the Hong Leong Group of companies in Singapoere

37

Committes membership

A Audit & Fisk Commitiee
N Nominations Committee
R Remuneration Commitiee

ncluding City Developments Limited Hong Leeng
Finance Limited and China Yuchay Intemational
Limted He alsc serves as an executve drectar for
Hong Lecng Asia Limited and i1s the non-executve
charman of Tasek Corporation Berhad

6 His Excellency Shaukat Anz™
independent Non-Executive Director

Shaukat Aziz was appointed to the Board n June
2009 He was elected as Prime Minister of Palstan
and served between 2004 and 2007 having previously
held the post of Finance Minister for five years

After graduating from Gordon College Rawaipindi

n 1867 Mr Aziz earmed a masters of business
administration degree from the Institute of Business
Admuristration  University of Karachi An internship
at Citibank marked the beginning of & 30 year career
in global finance

As an Executve Vice President he held several semicr
management posihions in Ciibank, including head of
nstitutional barkng for Central Eastern Europe the
Middle East and Africa and Tater for Asia Pacific
followed by Chief Executive of Citibank's global wealth
rmanagement business A renowned public speaker on
economic and geopolitical affars Mr Aznz 15 a member
of several boards of directors and the adwvisary beards
of vanous commercial and non-profit entibies around
the world

7 Susan Farr™®
Independent Non-Executive Director

Susan Farr was appointed to the Board in December
2013 She has been a business directar of Chime
Communication birnited (formerty Chime
Commurication ple} since 2003 a position now held
on a pant time basts She alsc serves as a non-
executive drector of Bntish American Tobaccopl ¢
Dairy Crest plc ang

Accsys Technologies pic A specialist in business
cevelopment ang marketing Ms Farr previously held
a number of seniar management postions at Vauxhall
Motors, the BEC arnd Tharmes Telewision She s also
the former char of The Marketing Socisty and the
Marketing Group of Great Bntan

8 Gervase MacGregor®®
Independent Non-Executive Director and
Charrman of the Audit & Risk Comnuttee

Gervase MacGregor was appointed to the Board
in December 2014 He has been a pariner of BDO
LLP since 1891 where he is currently the head of
ntematonal adwsory risk and qualty services
speciaiising in forensic Investigations and expert
witness senices

Pror to joining BDO LLP, Mr MacGregor worked as
a petroleun geologist In the North Sea Austrabia and
West Afnca He has expenence in the hesprtality sector

over the last 25 years, first as an auditor of
nternational five star hotels and more recently
with nvestigations and disputes 1n the sector

Gervase MacGreger is a felow of the insttute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
a graciuate of the University of Livenpool and he has
a masters degree from HEC in Pans

9 Alexander Waugh**
Independent Non-Executive Director and
Chawrman of the Remuneration Committee

Alexander Waugh was apponted to the Board in June
2009 MrwWaugh has commercial expenence in event
managemeant the media industry and 15 the founder
of a successful publshing business Mr Waugh 1s also
a well-known author, fiterary e and composer

He is Honorary Presdent of the Shakespeare
Authorship Coalien and Semor Visiting Fellow

at the Unnversity of Leicester
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Directors’ report

introduction
The Directors sulomit their report for the
financial year ended 31 December 2015
This report includes nformaticn required to
be disclosed under the Companies Act
2006 (the “Act™, the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”), the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules and the
Listing Rutes Gertain nformation required
to be included 1n this report 1s set out In
other sections of the Annual Report, which
are cross-referenced and incorporated
herein In particular, the Corporate
Governance Statement on pages 42 tc 46
and the Directors’ remuneration report on
pages 49 to 64 form part of this report
Cisclosure

Section Pages

Viabilty statement  Strategic Report 30

Future developments Strategic Report B-8

Greenhouse gas Corporate 27-28

ermIssions Respansibiiity

Financigl instruments  Note 22 1o the 108-119
financial statements

Internal controls Corperate 45
Governance
Statement

Chartable actvies  Corporate 28
Responsibity

Policy on payment  Drrectors 54

for loss of office Remuneraticn Report

Changes to share Note 28 1o the 128

capial financial statements

Strategic Report

The Act requires the Directors 10 prepare a
strategic report that provides a far review of
the Company's business, Including an
anatysts of the devalopment and
performance of the Company’s business
dunng the year and position of its business
at the end of the year and a description of
the Company’'s strategy and business
model This report 1s found on pages 14 1o
33, and cerlan information required to be
disclosed in this report has been included
within the Strategic Report as noted abave

Board of Directors

The names and biegraphical detals of the
Directors hoiding office as at 31 December
2015 — ncluding identification of the
Chairman, Senior Independant Cirector, the
other Directors who are considered by the

Governance

Board to be independent and the chars of
the Board’s standing commitiees - are
shown on pages 36 to 37

In addion to the Directors hoiding office as
a1 31 December 2015, Wong Hong Ren
served as a Director and the Group Chief
Executive Officer of the Company untl he
stepped down on 28 February 2015
Except for Wong Hong Ren and Aloysius
Lee Tse Sang, who was appomted asa
Dwector and the Group Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 March 2015, all
Directors served on the Board during the
entire year

Director shareholding

Detalls of the Directors’ shareholdings at
the year-end are shown on page 59 No
changes to these shareholdings have
ocecurred between 31 December 2015 and
the date of this report

Appointment and removal of Directors
A Drectar may te appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addiional Director by an
ordinary resclution of shareholders In
addition, the Directors may appoint a
Director to fil a casual vacancy or as an
addrtienal Director, provided that the
indnadual retires at the next annual general
meeting

In ine with the Code, which prowides that all
directors of FTSE 350 companies should
stand for glection or re-glection by
sharehclders every year, all members of the
Board will retire ang seek election orre-
election at this year's annual general
mesting The eligizility requirernents for
drrectors to be appointed at a general
meeting are spectied N the Company's
Articles of Association

A Director may be removed by the
Company in certain circumstances as set
out n the Company's Articles of Association
or the Director's appointment agreement,
including by an ordinary resolution cfthe
Company, upon beng given written notice
to resign signed by all of the other Directors
or in the event the Director becomes
prohibted by law from acting as a Director

Results and dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015 are sel out on pages
7210139

An intenm dividend for the year ended

31 December 2015 of 2 08p per share was
paid on 2 Octeber 2015 The Directors are
recommencing a final avdend of 4 34p per
share (2014 11 51p), which, if approved at
the annual general meeting in May 20186,
wil be pad on 13 May 2016 to
sharenolders on the register on 18 March
2016

Poltical donations and expenditure

The Company operates a politically neutral
policy with regard to political donations and
expendture No donations wera made by
the Group for political purposes and the
Group did not mcur any political expenditure
dunng the year (2014 £nil) See the
Corporate Responsibiity review on page 28
for detalls of the Company’s non-political
chantable activiies

Financial mstruments

An indication of the Group's financial nsk
managerment objectives and pohicies In
respect of the use of financial INstruments
and exposure of the Company to pnce nsk,
credit nsk, hqudity nsk and cash flow nsk
are set out n Note 22 to the consclidated
financial staternents

Greenhouse gas emissions

All disclosures concermning the Group's
greenhouse gas emissions can be found n
the Corparate Responsibility review on
pages 26 to 28

Employee involvement and disabled
persons

The Group operatas in aver 20 countnes
and empioys over 10,000 employees
worlgwide Wa value highly the nch ethric
and cultural dversity of our people We are
an equal opporturities employer and our
objective 1s to ensure that no employee or
ather worker or job applicant recenves less
favourable treatment, directly or indirectly,
on the grounds of age, cisabiity gender
reassignment martal or civil partner status,
pregnancy or matermity, race, colour,
nationalty, ethnic or national ongin, religion
or belief, sex or sexual onentation
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Furiher, our policies encourage the
employment, traning and advancement of
disabled persons, having regard to their
particutar aptitudes and abilities, provided
that they can be employed in a safe
working environment  Suitable employment
would, If possible, be found far any
employee who becomes disabled during
the course of employmenit

The Group values the engagement of its
employees and endeavours to keep
employees informed about matters of
concern to them and the performance of
the Company, whether through
management presentations, regional
Intranet sites and other communications
Likewise, the Group seeks to consult with
employees on a regular basis so that their
views can be taken into account The
Group operates an HM Revenue &
Customs approved Save as You Earn
Scheme in the UK, a long term incentive
plan, executive share plan and deferred
share bonus plan for certain levels of
executives globally The pnmary aims of
these plans are to Incentivise and engage
our employees and align ther interests with
the Group's performance Further details on
empioyee benefits are set cut n Note 23 to
the consciidated financial statements

Future developments

The Group’s strategy and business model
including proposed future developments
can be found n the Strategic Report on
pages 14 to 33

Research and development

Whilst we continue fo review ways to
improve our service and product offenng,
the Group did not conduct significant
research and development activibies dunng
the year

Branches
The Company did not have any branches
outside the UK gunng the year

Going concern

In assessing whether the Group 1s a going
concem, the Directors follow a review
process consistent with the pnnciples set
out in the "Guidance on Risk Management,
Internal Control and Related Financial and
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Business Reporting 2014" pubiished by the
Financial Reporting Council Cash flow
forecasts for the Group have been prepared
for a penoc In excess of twelve months
from the date of approval of these
consoldated financral statements These
forecasts refiect an assessment ¢f current
market conditions and show that the Group
will be able to operate within the current
committed debt facilities and continued
compliance with the financial covenants
applicable to the Company In addition,
management has considered vanous
mitigating actiens that could be taken in the
event that market condiions are worse than
the curent assessment Such measures
nclude further reduction in costs and in
capital expenditure, among others

(On the basis ¢f the exercise as descrnbed
above and the avalable committad debt
faciities, which are descnbed further in
Note 21 to the financial staterments, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Company and Group as a whole
have adeguate resources to continue in
operational existence for at least 12 months
beyona the date of signing of these
accounts Accerdingly, they continue to
adopt a going concermn basis in prepanng
the financial statements of the Company
and Group

Amendment to the Company’s Articles
of Association

The Company's Articles of Assceoiation may
only be amended by specal resolution of its
shareholders in accordance with the Act

Significant agreements

There are no significant agreements to
which the Cempany i1s a party that take
effect, are altered or terminate upon a
change of conirol of the Company following
a takeover bid

Share capital and related matters

The Company's 1ssued share capital at

31 Decernber 2015 consisted of
324,730,301 fully paid crdinary shares of
30 pence each The shares are traded on
the Main Market of the London Stock
Exchange Dunng 2015, 58,240 new
shares were issued under employee share
plans Further detals of the changes to the
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ordinary 1ssued share capiial dunng the year
are shown in Note 28 to the Company’s
financial staterments

Rights attaching to shares

Rights and obligations attaching to the
Company's ordinary shares are set out In
the Company’s Articies of Association, a
copy of which can be obtaned from
Companies House or from the Company's
investor relatons website at www
millenriurmhotels com/corporate/investors/
governance-staternent htrmi Each ordinary
share In the capttal of the Company ranks
equally in &l respects

The voting nghts attached to the
Comipany's ordinary shares are not
resincted and there are no restnctions on
the transfer of the Company's shares aside
from certain restnctions which may from
time to time be imposed by laws and
regulations, such as nsider cealing laws In
addition, pursuant to the Company's share
dealing code, the Company's Directors and
persons discharging managenal
responsibility are required to seek approval
to deal In the Company's shares

None of the Company’s shares carry
special nghts with regard 1o control of the
Company Neither the Company's
management nor Its Directors are aware of
any agreements between shareholders that
could result n restrictions on the transfer of
shares or voting nghts

Employee share schemes

The Company has in place a discretionary
employee benefit trust {("EBT"), the
Millennium & Copthorne Hetels plc
Employee Benefit Trust 2006, which s
funded by loans or gifts in order 1o acquire
shares for the potential benefit of
empioyees Oetalls of shares held by the
EBT at 31 December 2015 are set out on
page 128 Dunng 2015 no shares were
released from the EBT in respect of share
schemes for employees The trustee of the
EBT has the power 10 exercise all voting
nghts in reiztion to the Company’s shares
held within the EST, but abstans from
voting

[9]
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Directors’ report
continued

Payment for loss of office

The Company does not have agreements
with any Director or employee that would
provide compensation for loss of office or
employment resulting from a takeover bid
However, all of the Company's employee
sharg plans contan provisions relating to a
change of control pursuant 1o a general
offer, scheme of arrangement or similar
event On such a change of control, ophions
and awards granted to employees under
the Company's share plans may vest and
become exercisable, subject to the
satisfaction of any applicable performance
conditions at that ume

Further detalls about payments to be made
to Directors for loss of office can be found
in the Directors’ remunearation report on
page 54

Power of Directors

The Directors may exercise all the
Company's powers that are not required by
the law or the Company’s Articles of
Association to be exercised in a general
meeting In parbcular, the Directors may
exercise all the powers of the Company to
borrow money, 1Issue shares, appomnt and
remcve directors and recommend and
declare dndends

At the Company's annual general meeting
in May 2015 and in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association, the
Directors were authonsed to allot new
shares pursuant to Section 551 of the Act
up to a total norminal amount of
£32,468,540 and to disapply the pre-
emption provisions centaned in the Act In
order to allot shares fer cashup tc a
nominal valug of £4,870,281 In addition,
the Directors were authonsed to make
market purchases of up 1o 10% of the
Company's 1ssued share capital All of
these authonties remaned in effect as at
31 December 2015 and sharehclders will
be asked to renew them at the annual
general mesating in 2016

The Co-Operation Agreement between the
Company and City Developments Limited
("CDL", the Company's controling
shareholder, contans a provision that
requires the Company to use all reasonable

Governance

endeavours to ensure that any ssue of
voting secunties for cash (cther than
pursuant to an employee or executive share
cption scheme) which takes place while the
Company 15 on the Official List of the
London Stock Exchange, 1s carned outin a
manner that provides CDL with an
oppartunity tc acguire additional ordinary
shares at the time of such proposed 1ssug
for cash 10 such amounts as are necessary
to enable it to maintain its voling nghts In
the Company at the same percentage fevel
as 15 held mmediately pnor to such issue
These pre-emption nghts are put 1o & vote
of shareholders each year and mosi
recently were approved at the Cormpany's
annual general mesting n May 2015

Controlling shareholder ndependence
disclosure

As of the date of trus report, COL 1s the
controling shareholder of the Company As
required under Listing Rule 9 2 2AR(2), the
Company and CDL have entered into the
Amended and Restated Co-cperaticn
Agreement dated 14 Novermber 2014 (the
“Co-Operation Agreement”) , which 1s
intended to ensure that the Company's
controling sharehoider complhes with the
independence prowvisions set out in Listing
Aules The Co-Operation Agreement allows
COL to appoint up to five Directors to the
Board As at the date of this report, CDL
has appointed three Directors

The Company confirms that dunng the year
it has complied with the Independence
provisions included within the Co-Operation
Agreement and, in so far as it 1s aware, COL
has comphied with such provisions as welt

Directors’ indemnities

The Articles of Association of the Company
permit it to ndemnify the Directors of the
Company or any Group comparny aganst
liabilities ncurred by them in relation to or 10
connection with thewr duties, powers or
office, to the extent permitted by law The
Comparty has prowded each of s Direciors
with a qualifying third-garty indemnity, as
defined in section 234 of the Act In
addition, the Cormpany has provided
qualifying pensicn scheme indemnities 1o
the drrectors of Millenrium & Coptheme
Pension Trustee Limited, which acts as
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trustee of the Group’s UK pension plan,
and qualifying third-party indemnities tc the
directors of its Eurcpean subsidiary
companies The ndemmities do not apply n
the avent the relevant Director 1$ proved 1o
have committed a cnminal offence or
otherwise where indemnification is
prohibited by law These indernnities rermain
in force as at the date of this report

In 2015, the Company purchased and
mantained Directors' and Officers’ lablity
nsurance, which coverage has been
renewed for the current year

No claim was made under any such
indemnity or nsurance policy dunng the
year

Annual general meeting

The 2016 annual general meeting will be
held at the Chelsea Harbour Hotel, Chelsea
Harbour Drive, Londan, SW10 0XG on

5 May 2016 at 10 00am The Chairman's
letter and the Notice of Meeting along wath
this report, with notes explaning the
business to be transacted at the meeting,
will be sent to shareholders

At the meeting, resoluticns will be prapesed
to declare a final dividend, to recene the
Annual Report and Financial Statements, to
approve the Directors’ remuneralion report,
to re-elect all Directors, to re-appoint KPMG
LLP as auditors, and io renew the
Ceompany's Long Term incentive Plan and
Sharesave Plan for 10-year penods In
addition, sharehciders will be asked to
renew both the general authonty of the
Directors to issue shares and to authonse
the Directors to 1ssue shares without
applying the statutory pre-emption nghts In
this regard, the Company will continue to
adhere to the provisions In the Pre-Emption
Group's Staterment of Pnnciples
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Essential contracts

The Group has contractual and other
arrangements with numerous third parties in
support of its business activities Whilst the
termnination of some ¢f these contracts
might cause temporary disruption, none of
the arrangements 1s, Indvciually,
considered to be essential 1o the Group’s
business

Re-appointment of audrtor

KPMG LLP has expressed tharr wilingness
to be reappointed as audior of the
Company Upon the recommendation of
the Audit & Risk Committee, resolutions to
reappoint them as auditor and to authonse
the Directors 1o determine ther
remuneration will be proposed at the 2016
annual general meeting

Significant holdings

As at the date of this repert, the Cempany
had recewved formal notification, under the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules, of the
following significant holdings 1n its shares
(the percentages shown are the
percentages at the time of the disclosure
and have not been re-calculated based on
the 1ssued share capital as at the date of
the repcrt)

Governance

Statement of the Directors as to
disclosure of information to the auditor
Each Director who held cffice as at the date
of approval of this Directors’ repert confimis
that, sa far as he or she 1s aware, there 15
no relevant audit information of which the
Company's audrtor 1s unaware, and the
Director has taken all the steps that he or
she ought to have taken in order to make
himself or herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditor 15 aware of that
information

Approval of Directors’ report
The Directors’ Report and Corporate

Governance Statement were approved by
the Board on 18 February 2016

By order of the Board

Jonathon Grech
Company Secretary

18 February 2016

# of onthnary Nctried
Significant shareholder shares Iterest (%)  Nature of holdmg
City Developments Limited 212006624 553 Indirect holding through vanous
subsidianes
International Value Advisers LLG 16 490 496 B0  Investment acvsor
Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited 16 459,003 51  Discretionary mvestment manager cn

behalf of mutiple managed portfolios
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Governance

Corporate governance statement

Dear Shareholders,

In 2015 the business faced challenging
trading conditons in several key markets,
particularly in Singapore, while at the same
time some positive developments came to
pass, such as the successful on-boarding
of our new Group Chief Executive Officer,
Aloysius Lee Tse Sang, and other key
managerment appointments, acquisiion of
the Hard Days Night Hotel in Liverpooi and
the cormmencerment and completion of
several significant refurbishment and
development proects, all to halp drive the
business forward Dunng this tme, the
Company has been committed to
mantaining robust corporate governance
practices throughout the Group As with
last year, the Board has determined thal the
Company has comphed with the provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code, as
revised by the Financial Reporting Council
N September 2014 (the “Code”)

We contnually review developments in
corporate govemance, both in the UK and
internationally, In order to ensure that the
Group's governance regime 1s fit for
pumpose and 1s not simply a tick-the-box
exercise This past year saw the
introduction of the wiability statement, the
stavery and human trafficking transparency
staternent under the UK's newly enacted
Maodern Slavery Act 2015, increased focus
on the remuneraticn of executive directors
and other corporate governance
enhancements | would like to thank the
Directors for therr hard work and diigence,
as members of the Board and its
commitiees, to help the Group effectvely
manage 1its nsks and implement good
governance in an ever changing and
increasing global regulatory environment

Pages 29 to 33 describe our corporate
governance framework in more cetall,
outline our pnncipal nsks and how we seek
to mitgate them and explain how our
govemance 15 applec on a day-to-day
basis You will find more about the work of
the indmidua Board committees in therr
respective committee reports My
chyjectives for the Board this year are to
ensure that the focus and composition of
the Board continues to evolve to support
the refinement and executicn of our
strategy and address the opporturities and
challenges we face

Kwek Leng Beng
Chairman

18 February 2018
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Compitance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

Millenruum & Copthome Hotels ple {*M&C”
or the “Company"} i1s the halding comparny
of the Millennium Hotels & Resorts group of
companies {the "Group”) M&C s a
premium histed company with equity shares
traching on the Main Market of the London
Stock Exchange and therefore the
Company Is subject o the UK Corporate
Governance Code {the “Code™ The Code
sets cut standards of good practice in
relation 1o board leadership and
effectiveness, remuneration, accountatility
and relations with shareholders This year
the Board has assessed the Group’s
complance aganst the version of the Code
which was last amended by the Financial
Reporting Council in September 2014, a
copy of which s avallable at www frc org
uk, and the Board has determined that the
Company has complied with the provisions
of the Code

This statement forms a part of the Directors’
Report The Strategic Report on pages 14
to 33 provides nformation about the
Group's strategy and outiook, its
businesses, the financial and operating
performance dunng the year, the principal
nsks and uncertanties and its corporate
responsibility inmatives A descnption of the
Group’s business model 1s Included on
page 16 as required by provision C 1 2 of
the Code

The role of the Board and its committees
The Board provides leadership to the

Group It sets the Group's strategy and
oversess implementation of that strategy,
ensunng that acceptable nsks are taken

and mitigated where possicle The Board
ensures that adequate resources are In

place in order to deliver long-term value to
shareholders and benefits to the wider
communities in which the Group operates

The actvities of our Audit & Risk,
Remuneraton and Nominations
Cornrmittees are set out In the reports of
each committee’s chairman, which reporns
are deemed to be part of this repart The
Company Secretary acts as secretary to all
slanding committees of the Board
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The Board has a schedule of matters
reserved for its attention and which require
its approval, ncluding the following

s Long term chjectives and commercial
strategy,

» Oversight over the Group’s operations and

intgrnal controls,

Annual gperating and capital expenditure

budgets,

Extension of the Group's actvities into

new busness or geographic areas,

» Changes relating to the Group's capital
structure, corporate structure and Istng
status,

+ The half-yearly report, intenm management
staternents and any preliminary
announcement of the final resuits,

+ The annual repert and accounts, ncluding

the corporate govemance statement and

Directors’ remuneration repart,

Divdend poiicy, declaration of the intenm

dvidend and recommendation of the final

dvidend,

« Signficant changes in accounting policies
or practices,

« The Group's treasury policies,

« Capital expenditure above £5m and

matenal contracts and ieases,

Any acauisition of land, property, or any

addition of a hotel into the portfolic by

acquisiion or by means of a management
contract,

* Major investments, ncluding the

acquisition or dispesal of Interests of more

than five per cent of the voting shares of
any company or the making of any
takeover offer,

Marketing campaigns or sponsorships

where expenditure exceeds £500,000,

Approval of resolutions and corresponding

documentation to be put forward o

shareholders at a general meeting,

» Approval of all circulars, prospectuses and
iIisting particutars,

« Changes to the structure, size and

compositicn of the board, followsng

reccrmmendations from the Norminations

Committee,

Appointrments 1o the board, following

recommendations by the Norminations

Committee,

+ Membership and chamanship of Beard
commitiees,

Governance

» Appontment, re-appcintment and removal
of the external audrtor to be put to
shareholders for approval, following the
recommendaten of the Audit & Risk
Committee,

Determining the remuneration palicy for
the directors, company secretary and
other senior executives, and

The introduction of new share incentive
plans or major changes to existing plans,
to be put to shareholders for approval

-

Ceriamn of those reserved matters have
been delegated to the Board's standing
committees with specific delegated
authonty Copies of the terms of reference
for each committee can ke found on the
investor relations section of the Group's
website at www milennmumhctels comy/
corporatg htrmi

The Group Chief Executive Officar,
supported by an executive comimittee
compnsed of the regional heads of
cperaton and key functional heads, 1s
responsible to the Board for the Group’s
operational performance, ncluding

« implementing the Group strategy as
getermined by the Board,

* maintaining adegquate internal control
systems and sk management processes,

« monitonng operational performance
against plans and targets and reporting to
the Board any significant vanances, and
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« mantaning an effective management
tearn and succession planning

The respective responsibilities of the
Charman and Group Chief Executive
Officer are set out below and have been
approved by the Board agan this year The
Board currently 1s compnsed of ning
directors including the Chaurman, one
Executive Director, five independent Non-
Executive Directors and two other Nen-
Executive Directors who, like the Chairman,
are appointees of the majonty shareholder,
City Developments Lmited Each Director 15
expected to fulfil us or her duties for the
benefit ¢f all sharehclders

Board and commuttee attendance

The Board generally meets up to ten times
aysar The actual number of regularty
scheduled Board and Committes meetings
attended by each Director dunng the year Is
shown below next to the maximum number
of such meetings that each Directer could
have attended dunng the year In addiion
to the seven regularty scheduled Board
meetings, the Board also held two ad hoc
meetings dunng the year The Audit & Risk
Committee and Remuneration Committee
each beld one ad hoc meeting dunng the
year while the Nominations Committee
meetings were scheduled as needed

Auciit & Fisk Nominations Rsmuneration

Soard Caormnrmites Commvttee Committes:
Kwek Leng Beng 7{7) - 213 -
Aloysius Lee Tse Sang’ £ (8) - - -
Wong Hong Rer? {1 - - -
Shaukat AziZ 60 - 20 49
Susan Farr m - 23 56
Nicholas George 7N 616 28 5
Gervase MacGregor® 7N 6 - @
Kwek Leng Peck 47 - 1@ -
Kwek Bk Sheng 70 - - -
Alexander Waugh 7{7) 5 (6] 2{3 S (5)

1 Aloysus Lee Tse Sang was apponted ta the Board with effect as of 1 March 2015
2 ‘Wong Hong Ren stepped down from the Boara on 28 February 2015
3 Gervase MacGregor wes appointed 10 the Remuneration Commdtee on 7 May 2015
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Corporate governance statement

continued

The Chairman

The Chairman provides leadership to the
Board on all aspects of is role His key
dulies are to

formulate and set the strategic direction

and organisational structure of the Group,

subject to the Board's approval,

set a clear wision for the Group,

mentor the Group Crvef Executive Officer

as and when required,

balance the interesis of management and

the Board as welt as the needs of

sharehoiders and management,

« act as a laison between management anc
the Board as well as between the
Company and its shareholders,

* manage communications and information

dissemination processes between the

Company and its shareholders and work

closely with the Company's pubiic

relations team to achigve this objective,
establish the agenda and manage Board
meetings,

offer agdwee and tap the collective wisdom

and expenence of Board members,

» take a proactve role In the appointment of
Dwectors and, following such
appointments, cversee the development
of Individual Dyectors, and

+ deveiop the top management team, in

particular the Group Cheef Executive

Officer, and establish a succession plan for

the Group Chief Executve Officer position

There have been no changes 10 the
Charman's other significant commitments
dunng the year

The Group Chief Executive Officer

The Group Chief Executive Officer reperts
to the Board and has ultimate accountability
for the day-to-day running of the Group He
is responsible for leading the management
team, operational actviies and
performance of the Group, Including the
effective delivery of the Company's strategy
and business plan, as agreed by the Board,
while managing and mibigating the prncipal
nsks faced by the Group

His duties are to

« receive the strategic wvision of the Group
from the Board of Directors and to

implement such strategic wsion, develep
the strategic plan, business plan and
budget and deliver the same to the
satisfaction of the Board,

= lead and act as an advocate for the
executive management team of the
Group,

« oversee the execution of the sirategic
vision and plans, and assess the Group's
performance and progress in meetng
them,

« promote the growth of the Group,

develop the management tearm and

establish & succession plan for key
management appontrments,

act on the feedback of the Chairrman,

be responsible for the day-to-day

management of the Group's business and

affars and ensure that significant ssues
that anse are resclved in an efficient and
tmely rmanner, and

« lead the management team to iImMprove
performance in every dmsion

The independent Non-Executive
Directors

The majonty of the Board 1s made up of
independent Non-Executive Directors who
have wide ranging ntemational expenence
at senior levels in 2reas of finance,
accounting and investigatory work, fund
management, media, tranding and
international affars They bnng strong,
independent judgement 1o the deliberations
of the Board, particularly in respect of the
Group's corporate govemance regime

Nicholas George, as the Senior
Independent Director, is available to meet
with our institutional shareholders and
sharenolder representative bodies and to
discuss any matters where 1t wouid be
Inappropriate for conversations 10 be held
with either the Charrman ar the Group Chief
Executive Officer He aiso acts as a
sounding board for the Chairman and as an
intermedchary for other Board members
when necessary

On appointment, each independent Non-
Executive Director receves a letter of
appaintment setting out the terms of therr
appointment, fees to be paid and matters
such as confidentiality of information,
potentiat cenflicts of nterest and share
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dealing restnctions Such letters of
appointment are subject to termination by
aither party gving one month's notice
Appointment and any subsequent re-
appomntment of a Non-Executive Director is
subject at all times to the Articles of
Association of the Company and any
necessary sharehclder approval or
ratification

Pursuant to Listing Rule 13 8 17 and based
on the panciples outhned n prowision B 11
of the Code, the Board regularty reviews the
independence of each of the Company's
Non-Executive Directors, taking inte
account whether the Non-Executive
Director 1s ndependent in character and
Judgement, and whether there are any
relationships or circumstances that are ikely
to affect, or could appear 1o affect, their
judgement Following that review In
December 2015, the Board has determined
that there 15 no change to the independent
status of the five current independent
Non-Executve Directors Therr diverse
pusiness backgrounds, skills and
expenence enable all of them to continue to
bnng ndependent judgement to bear on
1ssues of strategy, performance, resources,
key appontrments, standards of conduct
anct other matters presented to the Board

In addition, in kne with the pnnciples
outined n Cade provision B 2 3, the
continued service ¢f any Non-Executive
Director for a term beyond six years should
be subject to parbculary ngorous review
Nicholas George, His Excellency Shaukat
Aziz, and Alexander Waugh each were
appointed in June 2009 and reached six
years of Board service dunng 2015
Consequently, the members of the
Nominations Committee, excluding those
Directors who are members of the
commitiee, reviewed ther performance and
Independence dunng a mesting in May
2015 and determined that ther continued
appontment was appropnate for the
following reasons

» their length of tenure provided them with a
deep understanding of the business that
enabled them to challenge management,

« they continue to make valuable
contnbutions to Beard discussions, and
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e the three directors provided continuity to
the Board given the relatively recent
appaintments of Susan Far, Gervase
MacGregor and Aloysius |ee Tse Sang in
December 2013, December 2014 and
March 2015 respectively

At least once dunng the year the Charman
and independent Non-Executve Directors
met, without the Executive Cirector being
present, to discuss the performance of
senior managerment, the Board and other
matters of iImportance

Director training and information

Al Directors have access to the advice of
the Company Secretary, who 1s responsible
for ensunng the Board procedures and
applicable corporate governance rules and
regulations are observed In addition, the
Directors are able, f necessary, to take
independent professional advice at the
Company's expense The Non-Executive
Directors also have the opportunity to meet
separately with the Chairman dunng the
year

The Chawrrman, in conunction with the
Company Secretary, 1s also responsicle for
ensunng that Directors receive appropnate
training at the Company's expense where
specific experbise 1s reguired in the course
of the exercise of ther duties All Directors
receve a Board compendium detailing
matters relating to Beard procedures A
bespoke Induction programme 1S
estathshed for any new directors who are
appointed, based on ther needs and
expenence

Conflicts of interest

The Board has established agreed
procedures for managing potential
operational conflicts of iInterest These
procedures and any potential conflicts
authonsed in accordance with section 175
af the Companies Act 2006, as permitted
by the Company's Articles of Association,
are reviewed by the Board at least annually
and other potentiat conflicts are reviewed as
they may anse from ime to time  The Board
1s satisfied that the proceduras for
managing potential conflicts ramain
effective

Governance

Evaluation process

An independent, externally-faciitated Board
evaluation was once again conducted by
Lintstock Limited  In the fourth quarter of
2015, the Directors anct Company
Secretary completed on-line questonnares
and a number of one-on-one Intensews
with members of the Lintstock team The
evaluaticn process covered the Board and
the Audit & Risk, Remuneration and
Nominatigns Committees and focused on
the following key themes

» board composition, expertise and
dynamics,

= time management and Board support,

the operation of Board committees,

strategic oversight,

= nisk management and internal contrels,

and

succession planning and human resource

management

As part of the Lintstock exercise, an
evaluation of the Charman was completed
by the independent Neon-Executive
Directors, led by the Senior Independent
Director, and individual performance
reviews were submitted by the Directors

Following completion of the questionnaires,
a prelminary report was produced based
on feedback received The results of the
surveys were presented and discussed at
the Board Meeling held in February 2016
and the outcorne of the interviews will te
considered in due course

Untstock Limited has no other significant
connection with the Group

Internal control and nsk management
system in relation to preparation of
consolidated accounts

The Board is responsible for the Group's
nternal control and nsk management
systems, IN¢cluding oversight over the
processes and procedures which are tn
place in connection with the preparation of
the Group's consolidated accounts In
establishing these systerns, the Directors
have considered the nature of the Group's
business, the prncipal nsks to which the
business 1s exposed, the lkelihood of such
nsks occurnng, therr potential Impact and
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the costs of protecting against such nsks
However, such systems are designed to
rmanage or mitigate these principal nsks,
rather than elminate them, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance aganst matenal missiatement
The Group's pnncipal nsk factors and
mitigating actvities are descnbed on
pages 29 t0 33

The main features of the Group's intemal
control and nsk management framewaork
are set out below

Strategy

= The Group's strategic direction 1s reviewed

by the Board, generally on an annual

basis Often as part of that process, a

dedicated Board strategy session 15 held

with the Group Chief Executive Officer and

other senior management as appropriate

Further detail about the Group’s business

medel and strategy can be found on

page 16

Management prepares an annual budget

for each year, 1n ne with the Group's

strategy, and that budget 15 submitted to

the Board for its review and approval

* The Board reviews, at least quarterly,
management's progress In executing the
Group's strategy and how the Group’s
performance 1s tracking against the annual
budget

Internal controls

» The Company reviews and confirms its
level of complance with the Code on an
annual basis

= The matters reserved to the Board require

that significant transactions, projects and

programmes must have specific Board

approval

if Board approval 1s net required, authonty

levels are prescribed and delegated to

ensure segregation ameng management

and proper escalation of approval imits

» Group financial and treasury palicies,
controls and procedures are in place and
regularly reviewed and updated

= All financial nformation published by the
Group 1s subect 1o the approval of the
Audit & Risk Committee and the Board

SOURMIFACD)
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Risk managerment

» The prncipal nsks of the Group are
assessed annualty

Dunng the year, there is an ongoing
process for dentifying, evaluatng and
managing those nsks and, f appropnate,
modifying the nsks in ight of changing
conditions This process 1S reviewed by
the Audit & Risk Comimitiee on behalf of
the Board and has been in place for the
year under review and up to the date of
approval of the Annual Report

Qperation

« Primary responsibility for the day-to-day
operation of the intemal control and risk
management systems (s delegated to the
Group's Chief Executive Officer and the
executive management team The heads
of the Company’s operating regions and
global functions camy out regular reviews
to ensure approprate actions are
implemented to meet the Group's
objectives and manage its pnncipal rsks
appropnately

Assurance

« The effectiveness of the internal control
and nsk management systems 1s reviewed
by an internal audit function and, where
appropriate, by the Group's extemal
auditor and/or external consultants, who
report to management and to the Audit &
Risk Commuittee As part of that process,
the intemal audit depariment procduces
indvidual reports, which are issued 1o
appropnate senior management, who are
accourtable to rectify any deficiencies and
implement any recommendations These
reports are summansed and distnbuted,
as appropnate, to the Audit & Risk
Commitiee members, the Group Chief
Executive Officer, senior management and
the external auditors and, where
necessary, I55Ues are drawn to the
attention of the full Board

Communications with sharehalders
The Board and executive management
team regularly interact with shareholders
and analysts In particular

» Presentations are made after the
announcement of the Group's final and
half-yearly results Ounng these
presentations, analysts have the
opportunity 1o ask guestions of the Group
Chief Executive Officer and Charman of
the Board

« Management meets with institutional
shareholders on an ongaing basis to

review the Group's performance, business

model and objectives In addition, the
Senior Independent Direclor often
conducts meetings with a range of major
shareholders dunng the year, other Non-
Executive Directors have the opportunity
to attend such meetings Significant
feedback expressed by shareholders
dunng those meetings 1s then provided to
the Board in a tmely manner

« As part of the Company's regular investor
relations actties, the Group Chief
Executive Officer, the Company Secretary
and senior finance personnel are avalabie
to answer quenes raised by analysts and
institutional investors from tme to tme

« The Group's website provides regular

updates for investors and contans al

announcements made by the Group

At the annuat general mesting, al

shareholders have the opporiunity 10

question the Chawmnan and other

Directors, including the Chairs of the Audit

& Risk, Remunaration and Nominations
Committees The Company prepares

indmdual resolutions on each substantially

separate issue to be put to shareholders
and does not combing resolutions
together nappropnately, and the Annual
Report and Accounts is faid before the
shareholders at the annual genera!
meeting Notice of the annua! general
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meeting and related papers are sent (e
sharenolders at least 21 warking days
prior to the date of the meeting, and the
Company enccurages all shareholders to
make positive use of the cpportunity to
communicate with the Board A schedule
of the proxy votes cast at the meeting 1S
then mage avalable on the Company’s
website after the conclusicn of the
meeting
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Annual chairman’s statement

Dear Shareholders,

The composition of the Committee 1s
descnbed on page 48

The Committee holds regular, structured
meetings and consults with senior
management including internal audit, where
appropnate, and external auditors The
Committee frequently requests that senior
operational and functional heads attend
meetings In order to update the Committee
with events in the business Occasionally
external business consultants were also
nvited to attend the meetings 1o present
specific projects such as the hotel
refurbishment programme and IT secunty
These meetings provide the Committee an
opportunity to understand the projects and
assess managerment's decisions

The Committee regularty reviaws strategic
and operational nsks and the associated
conitrols and mitigating factors The
Commitiee recewes regular reports and
briefings from internal audit and has
reviewed the leve! of internal audit resource
avallable within the Group and believes that
it 15 adequate for the size, structure and
business nsks of the Group and 1s
supplemented with appropnate external
resources where needed

The Committee's review of the intenm and
full year financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 focused on the
following areas of significance

= reviewed the Group's hotel performance

with reference to RevPAR and hote!

revenue,

monitored the performance of newly

acquired hotels,

» reviewed the selection and testing of
assets for impairment purposes,

« assessed whether matenal judgemental

assumptions that were used in the

valuations were within reasonable

parameters,

monitored transactions with the

Company‘s majonty shareholder,

reviewed the Group’s {ax arrangements

including transfer pncing, and

« reviewed debt recoverabiiity and agree on
write-off, if deemed necessary

Impairment of hotel assets

Note 12 to the consolidated financial
staternents states that the carryng amount
of assets as at 31 December 201515
£2,764m (2014 £2,753m) The Group
continues 1o engage external valuation
experts to assist with the valuation exercise
and mparment review Financial
performance and sensitivity of the valuation
models 1o the other key inputs means that
the valuation remans inherently subjective
The property, plant and equipment assets
are camed at histoncal cost, which
mitigates the nsk of impairment of these
assets

During the year, the Cormmittes examined
managerment’s recommendations in
respect of the valuation cf the Group’s hotel
and property portfolic and agreed that

the selection of assets to be tested was
done appropnately, taking into account
ingicators of imparment nsk and
matenahity,

there was the appropnate use of third
party valuation expertise,

sufficient robust challenge was given to
managerment by the external auditors,
matenal judgemental assumptions that
were used in the valuations were within
reasonable parameters, and
conclusions have been appropnately
drawn

Valuation & classification of investment
properties

In general, the carmying amount of
investment properties s the far value of the
properties as determined by a registered
independent appraiser Far values were
determined having regard to recent market
transactions for simdar properiies in the
same location as the Group's investment
properties Where a far value cannot be
reasonably determined, the property s held
at cost

Classificanon of an asset as investment
property requires jJudgemen, and 18
determined by reference to future intentions
and the Group's business model The total
carrying ameunt of nvestment properties as
at 31 December 2015 15 £506m (2014
£479m) as shown i Note 14 to the
consclidated financial statements

Dunng the year, the Committee examined
management’s recommendations n
respect 1o the classification and valuation of
investrnent properties and agreed that

there was appropnate classHication of
assets as investment properties,
there was appropriate use of third party
valuation experiise,
« sufficient robust challenge was given to
management by the external auditors,
» matenal judgemental assumptions that
were used n the valuations were within
reasonable carameters, and
conclusions have been appropnately
drawn

Internal controls and nsks

The Commitee 1s responsible for reviewing,
and conducting an annuai review of the
effectiveness of the Group's system of
internal control and nsk management
procedures

Accepting that nsk is an inherent part of
doing business, the Committee reviewed
the Group’s nsk management sirategy (o
ensure that any required remedial action on
any identified weaknesses s taken This
includes a regular review of the nsk register
which contains the significant nsks faced by
the Group and dentifies therr potential
impact and Ikelihood

Where specific actions are agreed io
mitigate risks 1o a level deemed acceplable
these are agreed with specific imeframes
for delivery and are monitored closely untl
fully mplemented

The system of nternal controls audited by
Internal Aucit {and commented on by the
external auditor from time to bime})
encompasses all controls Including those
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Committee governance

relating to financial reporting processes,
operatonal and comphance controls and
those relating to nsk management
processes

The Committee ensures that arangements
are In place for employees to raise
concems, In confidence, about possible
fraud nsk or wrong-doing in financial
reporting or other matters Where a
whistleblowing incident occurs, thisis
investigated by Intemal Audit on a
confidential basis and in a proportionate
manner Appropnate actions are
recormmended and undertaken which are
reported to the Committee which then
reviews the recommendations and focuses
on possible trends and potential systematic
weaknesses

The Commitiee also reviewed the Group's
cash position and future commitrments,
borrowings, faciibes and covenants and
reported its assessment to the Board

The Committee also receives reporis and
presentations from servor management cn
significant actvities of the Group, including
branding, talent and sales sirategies
ncluding the upgraded website to be
launched soon Frequent bnefings are
receved on Health and Safety, Risk
Management, Whistleblowing and
Corporate Governance generally

The Commitiee had discussions with the
extermal auditor on audit planning, fees,
accounting policies, audit findings, internal
controls and non-audit services rendered
by them The external auditor attended all of
this year's Committee meetings Meetings
are also held with the auditor without
management present The effectiveness of
aucht was assessed through the review of
audtt ptans, reports and conclusions and
through discussions with management and
the extemal auditor The Committee was
satsfied that the audit was effectve

The Committee acknowledges the recent
change in the law requinng mandatory
auditor rotation There has been regular
partner rotation, and Jonathan Downer wall
take over from Steve Masters following the

sigrung of the 2015 full year results The
Committee 1s satisfied that KPMG
continues to possess the skills and
expenence requred to fulfilits duties
effectively and efficiently

The Commuttee s respons:ble for
recommending the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the exiemal
auditor Consideration 1s given each year to
an audit tender process and the Commitiee
may undertake a tender exercise n 2036 as
KPMG LLP has been the Group's auditor
since the hsting of the Company on the
London Stock Exchange in 1896 Under
the current transihional rutes, the latest year
in which KPMG would be able to undertake
an audt of the Company 1s to 31 December
2022

In order to ensure the continued
independence and objectmty of the
Group's external audior, the Group has
stnct policies regarding the prowision of
non-audit services rendered by the external
auditor The Committee's approval is
required in advance for the prowision of
non-audit serviices If the fee exceeds
£50,000 for an ndmwdual assignment The
Commiitee reviews non-audit fees regularty
The Group's external auditor 15 prohibited
from prowiding any services thatl would
conflict with their statutory responsitiities or
which would otherwise compromise their
objectvity or ndependence Dunng the year
ended 31 December 2015, KPMG’s audit
fee amountad to £2m and KPMG's
non-audit fees were £1m in total

The Commitiee’s performance i1s reviewed
annually through a faciitated evaluation
conducted by Lintstock Limited, the results
of which showed that the Commities was
effective

Gervase MacGregor
Charrman of the Audit & Risk Committee

18 Fetruary 2016

Qur objectives

The key objective of the Committee
throughout the year has remained the
provision of effective governance over ihe
appropnateness of the Group’s financial
reporting ncluding the adequacy of refated
disclosures, the performance of both the
nternal audit function and the extemal
auditor, and the oversight of the Group’s
systems of intermal control, business rnsks
and related compiiance actvities

Qur members

The Board believas that amongst the
members of the Committee they have
suitable broad commercal knowledge and
significant business expenence The Board
has determined that Gervase MacGregor
has recent and relevant financial expenence
as requrred by the provisions of the UK
Corporate Govemance Code

The Group Chief Executve Officer, senor
finance managers, Company Secretary and
Head of Internal Audt, although not
members of the Commitiee, also attend the
meetings, as does the senior statutory
audrtor from our external avditor, who is not
present when we discuss the auditor's
performance and/or remuneration

As part of this process of working with the
Board and to maximise effectiveness,
meetings of the Committee generally lake
place just pnor to a Company Board
meeting The Chaimman of the Committee
reports to the Board as pani of a separate
agenda tem, on the actwty i the
Committee and matters of particular
relevance to the Board in the conduct of
their work

Qur role

The Commitiee’s terms of reference are
available from the Group's website at
www millenruumhctels com/corporate/
investors htrml

Financial repoarting

The Committeg menitars the integnty, pnor
to submission ta the Board, of penodic
financial staternents, annuai accounts,
reports to sharehoiders and any other
public anncuncement concesming the
Group's financial position, corporate
govermnance staterments and statements on
the Group’s system of internal controls and
reperis its views to the Board to assist in its
approval of the resuits announcements and
the annual report
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Annual chairman's statement

Dear Shareholders,

Fallowing a busy 2014, dunng which tme we finalised and ganed
shareholder approval for our Directors’ Remuneration Policy and
approved the remuneration arangements for our outgoing and
incoming Group Chief Executive Officers, 2015 proved to be a
quieter year for the Remuneration Commiitee

As the Rermuneration Poiicy approved by shareholders at the 2014
annual general meeting has, in the Committee’s view, been
implernented and utiised successfully over the past two years,
particularly with regard 1o the remuneration package developed for
Aloysius Lee Tse Sang as the new Group Chief Executive Officer
and et arrangements for Wong Hong Ren when he stepped down
in February 2015, we are not proposing any changes to the policy
this year Therefore, it will not be put to shareholders for re-approval
until we are regurred to do so again at the 2017 annual general
meeting

In terms of significant maiters considered, the Commutiee has
awarded Mr Lee a bonus for 2015 of £127,122 which represents
18 5% of the maximum opportunity for the portion of the year
dunng which Mr Lee served as Group Chief Executive Oficer This
amount takes o account the performance of the Company and
the personal achieverments of Mr Lee since his appointment, and
further details of the calculation can e found on page 57 of this
report We also agreed Mr Lee’s 2016 performance abjectives, and
that his salary would remain the same for 2016

Tuming to our share schemes

« Under the Long-Term Incentive Plan (*LTIP), the performance
measures of total shareholder retum and eamings per share for
the three-year penod ended on 31 December 2015 did not meet
the required mirimum thresholds and, as such, the awards
granted in 2013 will lapse

« The current LTIP and Sharesave Plan expire In May 2016 Since
no changes are being proposed to our remuneralion policy and
the LTIP scheme already incorporates many of the recommended
bes! practices, such as clawback and malus provisiens, # 1S being
put to shareholders for re-approval at this year's annual general
meeting without significant revision except to include the flexibiity
to iniroduce a two-year holding pencd on vested LTIP awards, n
addiion 1o the standard three-year performance pened, to be
used at the discretion of the Committee This change 1s o
acknowledge the revised 2015 Panciples of Remuneration 1ssued
by the Investrment Assocation and the expectation that LTIPs
include performance and helding penods of at least five years in
total The Commutiee does not anticipate mplementing the
additional two-year holding penod for the LTIP grant to be made
this year instead, the Committee intends to examine the
applicable LTIP metncs and holding penod requirements gunng
2016 as part of a holistic remuneraticn policy review gnor 1o

submitting the remuneration policy for sharenolder approval at the
2047 AGM The guiding pnnciples for this review will be that
remuneration should be linked to performance and ahgn
management with the interests of shareholders

The Committee supportec management's efforts to review the
global compensation and benefits packages of the Group's senior
management team below the Board level and approved policy
changes to simplify the packages and make them more
understandable, engaging anc effectve

Finally, dunng the year we were pleased to weicome Gervase
MacGregor to the Committee Following his appointment in May
2015, all of the ndependent Non-Executve Directors now sit on the
Commuttee | would Iike 1o thank them for ther diigent efforls over
the past year and | look forward to a productive 201 6

The Directors’ remuneration report, consisting of this annual
Chairman's staterment, the Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the
Annual Report on Remuneration, 1s prepared v compliance with
applicable reporting requirements ard | hope you waill find 1t helpful
The Commitiee welcomes any feedback from our shareholders and
we trust that you will support the policies and practices outlned in
this report

Yours faithfully,

Alexander Waugh
Charrman of the Remuneration Committee

18 February 2016
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Commiitee governance

Membership

Alexander Waugh charrs the Remuneration Committee (the
“Committee”} and all of the other ndependent Non-Executive
Directors are members, Including Shaukat Aziz, Susan Farr,
Nicholas George and Gervase MacGregor All Committee members
served throughout the full year except Gervase MacGregor, who
was appointed to the Committee in May 2015 The Committee held
five scheduled meetings in 2015 and one ad hoc meeting
Attendance of the regularly scheduled meetings s shown on

page 43 The Charman of the Board and the Group Chief
Executive Officer are Invited 10 attena meetings as appropnate, but
they are excluded when their own performance or remuneration are
being discussed

No member of the Comimittee has any personal financial interest,
other than as a shareholder of the Company, in the matters to be
decided by the Committee or nvolvernent in the day-to-day
management of the business of the Group

Further Information regarding the Commitiee's acvisors and iis
evaluation can be found on page B3 of this report

Qur role

The Committee has delegated authonty from the Board to
determine, N consuitation with the Charman of the Board and
Group Chief Exacutive Officer as approprate, the broad
remuneraticn pelicy and indwidual remuneration arrangements of
the Charrman, Executive Directors, Company Secretary and senior
management team W also oversees the Group's share-based
Incentive arangements

In addition, the Committee 1s authonsed to

administer the Company's share oplion schemes,

oversee maor changes to employee benefit structures throughout
the Group,

ensure that performance related elements of remuneration form a
sigruficant proportion of the total remuneration of Executive
Drrectors and are designed to align therr nterests with those of
shareholders

consider whether the Executive Directors should be eligible for
annual bonuses and benefits unger long-term incentive schemes,
provide packages needed fo attract, retan and motivate Executive
Directors of the qualty required,

« approve the terms and duraton of any service agresment to be
entered into with an Executive Director,

consider the compansation commitments payable to Executive
Directors under their service agreements or otherwise In the event
of early termwnation, and

« select and appoint consultants engaged to adwse the Committee

The Committee's terms of reference are avalable at
www millenniumbotels cf rate/investors himl
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Directors’ remuneration policy

The Company's Remuneration Policy was approved by shareholders at the Company’s annual general meeting held on 1 May 2014 and
remains unchanged

The Remuneraticn Policy set out below 1s as disclosed in the 2014 Directors’ remuneration report The Committee retains discretion to
make non-gignificant changes to the Remuneration pokey without reverting tc shareholders

Policy for Executive Directors
Presently there is only one Executive Director, the Group Chief Executive Officer, but a similar policy would be applied to any other
Executive Directors apponted to the Beard

Base salary

Purpose and lnk to strategy Salanes are a key cormponent of the reward package in attracting matvating and retaning executves

Operatian Salaries in the Group are based on the value of the indmdual the level of responsibility expenence and market condbons

Salaries are reviewed at keast annually but are not necessanly increased In reviewing salanes account 1S taken of market
conditions signficant changes in role pay and conditions elsewhere in the Group nflanon and budgets

Maximum The maximum salary payable 1s the amount agreed by the Remuneration Committee for the penod The Cornmittee does not
prescnbe a maximum salary for any employee n the Group as it wishes to retamn the flexbility o set levels of pay appropnate
to roles and market condiions  The establishment of maximum salanes couid result In unrealistic expectations of employees
and weaken the Company s negetiating pasition

Annual bonus

Purpose and link to strategy Executive Directors are eligible to participate in an annual banus scherme to

* ncenbvise executves to drve Group strategy and performance over the short term and
= ongure that a signficant proportion of the total reward of executves packages 18 Inked to performance dunng the year

Operation The performance penod for annual bonuses comesponds with the financial year Bonus measures weaightings and targets are
set annually at the start of the firancial year by the Committee which retains discretion to revise any caloulated benus
downwards but not upwards f itis feit to have become rmisaigned with the Group s performance

Payment of the annual bonus 15 contingent on the employee stil being employed by the Greup at the time of vesting and not
hawng served notce

Annual bonus 1s nat pensionable The Cammittee may defer and pay a propertion up to 100% of the annual bonus in shares
which must be held for three years before vesting No perfarmance conditions apply to such deferred bonus shares other
than a requirement for continuous employment but such deferred bonus share awards would be eligible for a dandand
equvalent

In the event that annual bonuses are found to have been paid on the bass of any matenal misstatemnent of financial

performance the rules of the scherne pronade for apprognate means of redress including the adustment of future bonuses
and any unvested long-term incentive awards '

JIUBILIFACYH

ORI

Maximum The level of bonus opportunity for Executnve Directors 1s

Group Chief  Bonusasa % of
Exectitive Officer basa salary

Threshoid 0% 0%
Target 75% 50%
Maxmum 150% 100%

The maxmum value of a deferred bonus share award 1s the value of the cash bonus that would otherwise have been paid

B P Y IR

Performance ? 70% of benus potential will be inked to financial performance with the remander knked 10 persona clyectives and ndmdual
contibution However the Commuttee has discretion to vary those percentages by plus or minus 10% for any performance
pencd 1o reflect particular corporate objectives Financial measures may include but ara not bmited to - operaung profit profit
before tax revenue and revenue per avalable room

Notes.

1 The Remuneration Committes wishes 1o clanfy that clawback nghts with respect 1o pad bonuses do and will continue to- exist within its Rermuneraton Policy

2 The Corumtes cetemmings DONUS DeAOIMANCE measures weghtngs and targets annually wh ich arg closely aligrad with Ine Croup’s snort term strdtag ¢ promies, TAIGeNs 'o. finanwal measules
are set by reference 1o (he Groups budget wie the persenal element of the bonus 15 dnven by personal <Pls set at tha stan of the year.




hil Millennium & Copthome Hotels plc

Governance 52

Directors’ remuneration report

continued

Directors’ remuneration policy continued

Long-Term [ncentive Plan

Purpose and ink to strategy

The Company adopted a Long-Term tncenive Plan ("LTIP7 n 2006 wiich forms the long-term vanabie element of executive
remuneration The Plan allows for the award of performance shares nil cost share options and deferred bonus shares

Performance share awards aim to drve and reward sustained performance over ihg long term align the nterests of executives
and shareholders and support retention

Operation

Performance share awards are made arnually and vest on the third anniversary of the date of grant subject to the achuievernent
of perfarmance conditions over three years and continued empicyment with the Group, subject to the rules of the plan There 1s
no re-testng  The Plan provdes for dadends or ther equivelent to be pad

in the event that performance shares are found to have vested on the basis of any matenal migstatement of fnancal
performance the rules of the scheme provide for appropnaie means of redress including the adjustment of future bonuses and
any unvested long term incentive awards

Maximum

The maximum value of an award of performance shares and nil cost share oplons s 150% of base salary though 200% may
be awarded n exceptional cireumstances including but net imited (o the recrutment of new Executve Directars The level of
awards 15 otherwise determined by the Committee at the time of grant '

Performance?

The performance measures are Eamings par Share ('EPS } Relatve Total Sharehcider Retum (TSR ) and Net Asset Value lplus
dradends) [ NAY }

The waightings appiying to each perfonmance measure may vary year-on year reflecting strategic prionties Whilst a number of
performance measures are appled waghting for any one measure s expected to range between 10% and 60% Under each
measure entry level performance will result in 25% of maximumn vesting for that element nsing on a straight-ine basis to tull
vesting

Pension

Purpese and Ink 10 strategy

The provision of retirement benefits 15 an mportant element of execulive reward packages in afiracting and retaining executves and
prometing long-term retirement planning

Operahon A defined cash contnbution may be made Mo ether a Company Sponsored pension plan or a private pension plan or as cash in
ieu of pension

Maximum 20% of base salary and by exception up to 30% of base salary

Other benefits

Purpose and Ink 1o strategy

Help recrut and retan through the provision of cost effective benefits consistent with market practice

Operation

Benefits are determinegt to ensure they are compelitive with market practice by location and the responsibilites of the indmidual
These may compnse (athough are not imited to) a rotor vehicle and driver or an appropriate allowance insurances for ife
personal accident disability and farmity medical cover

Additional benefits such as relocation removal tax squatsation, ouse purchase/rental and children s education may need 10
be offered te attract the nght cancidate in the event that an Executive DireCtor 1S appointed on expatnate or nternaticnal
assignment terms

Maarmum

There s no Maximum The vaiue of other berefits 15 consistent with market practice and s kept under remew by the Commitiee
bt would not be expected to exceed more than the equvalent of a month's salary, other than in excepticnal crcumstances
{such as a relocation requirement)

Notes

1 The Commitee re'ans oiscreten to use Liutng Rule 84 2(2), within the renit ceniirmed on page 53 1o maka awards I excestional crcumstances
Z Thae Cemmittes determines the level of LTIP awards and the associated performance measures targets and weghtings annualy The performance measures of EPS and relatve TSR ensure that
exacuties are ahgned with snarehoider intevests and are consstent with FTSE market practice The introduction in 2014 of a third measure NAV plus dvdends improves the alignment with the

Crisup - strateg. proriies By captun

'y & bala~ue sheet measura The largsts for the fnancial meas.res dre set by reference Lo the Groups budgst and st ategiG plans &y well s ta[ng 4000 At

of tyoker forecasts for both the Group and other sector peers The TSR target measures comparatve performanca against a relevant benchimark whuch for 2016 wil be spit equaty hetween the
FTSE250 market ndex and an index of peer compantes
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Shareholding requirements

Within five years of being appointed to the Board, Executive Directors are required to buld up, and retain, ordinary shares in the Company
equwalent In value to 100% of therr base annual salary Provided that Executive Directors hold and maintain the appropnate level of shares,
they may seil shares, sutyect to the normal reguirement for directors' deaiings uncer the Listing Rules and Disclosure and Transparency
Rules

Share interests which do not count aganst the shareholding gudelines include

¢ unvested performance share awards,

SAYE options,

unvested geferred bonus shares, and

= any noticnal accrued dvidend eguivalent shares

Directors to whom this requirement appiies are prehitited from engaging in any hedging transactions with respect to Millennium &
Copthome Hotels plc shares including trading in any denvative secunty

There are no formal shareholding guidetines for the Chairman, the Non-Executive Directors and the senior management, howaver, they are
encouraged te held shares in the Company in order to ahgn ther interests with those of shareholders

Non-Executive Director Policy
The remuneration policy for Non-Executive Drectors 1S set out below

Fees
Basic fee Fees pad 10 Non Executve Directors are determined by the Board as & whole taking into account the time commitment anct
responshiities The policy 15 to sl fees at or around the median for companies of 2 simiar size and complesaty Therr purpose (§
{0 attract and retan Non-Executve Drrectors
Addtional fees Non Executve Directors are paid an addstional fes for being a member of a Beard commdtee and for chainng a Boarg o
committee )
1]
Other maiters The independent Non-Executive Directors each have roding letters of appointment which may be terminated by either party on ?
ong month’s notice §
o
Al {fees are pad In cash Non-Executve Directors are not entitied to bonuses benefits or pension scheme contnbutions or to participate in any share

scheme operated by the Company

In addition to any remuneration payable, & Non Executve Director may be paid reasonatle traveling hotel and other expenses
property incurred in aischarging the Director s duties

Fees cease immediately in the event the Non Executive Director ceases to be a Dirsctor

Remuneration on recrutment

Reward packages for new Executive Directors will be consistent with the policy set out on pages 51 to 55, which descnbes each
component of remuneration for the Executive Directors of the Company Fixed remuneration elements would be paid only from the date of
employment and any bonus will be pro-ratec to reflect the proportion of employment over the year The maxmum level of vanable
remuneration Is as stated n the policy table above If, consequent to oining the Group, a new director forfeiis elements of vanable reward
linked to thewr previcus employment, the Commitiee reserves the nght tc make compensatery awards up to the maximum amount of the
individual's ioss  Any such awards would be made taking into account the performance conditions and time horizon of the forferted awards
In the event that an intemat candidate 1s appointed as an Executive Director, any contractual obligation in respect of a previous role will be
honcured even If it is Inconsistent with this policy at the time the obligation 1s fuffiled

As disclosed on the Company's website in Apnl 2014, the Commitiee confirms that Listing Rule 8 4 2{2) will only be used to compensate
an Executive Directer for long-term ncentive scheme awards forfeited on leaving a previous employer Such buycut awards will have a far
value no greater than the awards forfaited The arrangements that exist for current Executive Directors, as set out in the Policy Table, would
then apply to the balance of the indivdual’s remuneration package
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Directors’ remuneration report
continued

Directors’ remuneration policy contnued

Directors service agreements and letters of appointment
To reflect current practice, 1t 1s the Company's policy for Executive Directors 1o have service contracts that provide for a notice pencd for
termination of up t¢ 12 months

The dates on which Directors’ indial service agreements/letters of appointment commenced and the current expiry dates are as folows

Nama Date of contract Notice penod / Unexpirad term
Chairman
Kwak Lang Beng - Nominee of controbing sharehalder

Executive Director

Aloysius Lee Tse Sang 10 December 2014* 12 months writlen NOUCE gven By efther party

tndepandent Non-Executive Directors

Shaukat Aziz 16 June 2009
Susan Farr 12 December 2013
Rollng letters of appontment temminable by erther party
Nicholas George 168 June 2009 o one moanth's notice
Gervase MacGregor 11 December 2014
Alexander Waugh 16 June 2009

Other Non-Executive Directors

Kwek Eik Sheng _

Nominees of contraling shareholder
Kwek Leng Peck -

~ The commencement date was 1 February 2015 and the effectve date of Mr Lee s appointment to the Board was 1 March 2015

Service coniracts are kept at the Group's corporate headquarters at Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc, Scarsdale Place, Kensington,
London, W8 55R

There exists no other abligation that might give nse 1o or impact on remuneration payments or payment for loss of office which is not
disclosed elsewhere in this report

Termination payments

The Cormpany's normal policy is to hmit payments to Executve Direciors on termination to entitlements under their service agreements and
the rules of any Incentive and pension plans There 1s No automatic entitierment to bonus as part of the termination arrangements and the
value of any terminating arrangement will be at the discretion of the Committee, having regard to all relevant factors This discretion allows
the Committee 1o determine good leaver status, the conseguences of which are set out In the table on page 55
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Incentive schemes
The rules of the incentive schemes prowide that

Good legvers Other leavers Changs of Control Discretion

Performance Shares Performance conditions Award lapses Performance condibons The Committee has discretien to
apphed taking nto account the appled taking ntoc accourt the disapply the pre rata vesting or
foreshortened performanca foreshortened performance decide that the award will vest on
penod penad the normmal vesting date
A time pro rata rechiction is then A time pro rata reduction s then
apphed apphed

Annual Bonus Performance condibons No bonus payable Perfomance conditons The Committee has discretion to
applied taleng sto account the applied takang nto account the cksapply pro rata reduction and
foreshortened performance foreshortened performance mantan onginal sum
penod percd
A time pro rata recuction s then A time pro rata reduction s
applied then apphed

Deferred Bonus Shares Vest in Rl Award ‘apses Vest in ful To determine the number of

shares which vest up 1o the value

of the applicable bonus -

Reasons for "good leaver” nclude death, ill health, retirement, office of employment ceases to be a part of the business or any other reason
determined by the Commitiee

Pay Scenanos
The following chart shows the vanous remuneration scenanos for the existing remuneration package of the Group Chief Executive Officer,
calculated based on the stated assumptions

M Fixed
@ Annual bonus o
HLTR =}
2
v ; E
I - E
|
Manmm _— =
(£ 000) ol £500 £1000 £1500 £2 000 £2 500
AsSUmplons.

Base - The Basa ~cenar o reflacts “xed remuneralion incuding bise salary pension and benefits wheh are Ihe only elernent= af ihe Group Gheef Exacutve Ofiicer s package ' ot [nked to
periomancea

Target - The Target scenar o refects The *xod Termunerd 1on elementa 45 set out diove Kius a target bonus cavoul of 50% ol maxmur Jnd LTIP threshold vasting at 25 - of the maximum award
Maximum - The Maxamum scenaro refscts ed rerruneration ps el payout Jf 8l ncentves.

No shame proe growth has been assumed n &y scenano

Consideration of employment condrtions in the Group

When setting the policy for executive remuneration, the Committee does not consult employees Management does, however, ensure that
the Committee is aware of pay and conditions throughout the Group and that these are taken into account when framing execttive
remuneration As a global group, in a sector with ready mobility, the more senior the role, the more reward needs to reflect the global
market, whilst for the majonty of employees it is set with greater consideration of local market conditions and practices The annual bonus
scheme and awards under the LTIP are limited to the semor management team and those employees responsible for managing the
hospitality business

Shareholder views
When determining remuneratian, the Committee takes nto account the views of nvestar representative bodies and those of its key
shareholders and s commitied to undertaking consuliation before committing to sigruficant changes in aspects of remuneration
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Directors’ remuneration report
continued

Annual report on remuneration

Audited Informaton

Single total figure of remuneration for each Director in 2015
The total remuneration for each perscn who served as a Director of the Company dunng 2015 is set out In the table below

Resmuneration {£ 009)

Salary and fees Al taxable benefits Annual bonus LTP awards  Penswon contributions? Total
Director 2015 2014 2015 2014 2075 2014 2015 2ma 25 2014 2015 2014
Chairman
Kwek Leng Beng? 268 268 - - - - - - - - 268 288
Executive Directors
Wong Hong Ren? 863 650 7 40 g 808 £ - 22 130 7 1,429
Aloysius Lee Tse Sang® 458 - 1 - 127 - - - 92 - go8 -
Non-Exscutive Directors
Shaukat Aziz 57 56 - - - - - - - - 57 56
Susan Farr o7 €5 - - - - - - - - 57 55
Nichclas Gecrge 72 59 - - - - - - - - 72 59
Kwek Eik Sheng 52 51 - - - - = - - - 52 51
Kwek Leng Pack 53 57 - - - - - - - - 53 57
Gervase MacGregor 68 3 - - - - - - - - 68 3
Alexander Waugh 72 Il - - - - - - - - 72 A
Total” 1828 1270 18 40 136 609 - 114 130 2094 2049

Notes:

P

Salanes and fees are shown mclusive of SUMS racevable by the Cirectors from the Company and any of ts subsidiary undertakings

Both Wong Hong Ren and Aleysius Lee Tse Sang receved ther pansion contributicns as a cash allowanca equal 1o 20% of ther base salary

In addtion to his basic fes Kwek Leng Beng recewed £18 487 in fees from subsidiary companies

wong | ong fen sicoped dawn as Graup Ghief Executve Cfficer and @ Director as of 28 Tetn ary 2015 Untl That hime fis bencfits cormnponsad a motor vihicde ard grver medical personal
acoident and travel msurance As ncicated n this report he was paid his base salary n monthly mstaiments through February 2016 and sccrued hofiday pay (£12 500) in accardance with hus
senvice agreement

The Long Term Incentre Plan award of 203 B98 ghares made to Mr Wong on 16 August 2012 lapsed on 16 August 2015 since the rinimum performance canditions for this award which were
reasured over the three years ended on 31 Decernber 2014 wers not achieved The 175 834 sharss awarded to MrWong on 11 September 2013 wil lapse on 1 1 September 2016 since the
minmum performance canditions for s award which were measured over 1he thres years ended on 31 Decemnbar 2015 wete not achieved and therefore have been valued at nil

Aloysius Les T5e Sang was apporied as the Group Ch &f Exectitve Oificer ang & Director with effect fram 1 March 215 after serang as Group Chiet Executive Othcer deswgrate fro™ 1 FebiLary
2015 Mr Lee 18 the highest paid Director His trography on page 36 @oors the drectarships and pasitons he halds n other Group subsitanes and associate Companes

For companson purposes the total excludes amounts paxt to lan Batey and Sean Coling n 2014 They resigned from the Boar on 20 February 2014 and 11 December 2014 respectively

2015 annual bonus for Executive Directors

The annual performance benus for the two Executive Directors who served In 2015, Wong Hong Ren and Aloysius Lee Tse Sang, was
dided into two compenents including financial performance measures, which representad 60% of the bonus opportunity, and personal
key performance indicatars, which combined represented 40% of the bonus opportunity for each Executive Director Since Wong Hong
Ren was set to step down as Group Chief Executve Officer at the end ¢f February 2015, his personal objectives were iimited in scope
accordingly Both his and Mr Lee's bonuses were adjusted cn a pro-rata ime basis for the number of months they were employed by the
Group during the year
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The following descnbes how the annual bonuses for Wong Hon Ren and Aloysius Lee Tse Sang were calculated for the year ended

21 Degember 2015, including a summary of the Committee's assessment of the personal objectives for each The Committee considers
that the specific target figures remain commercially sensitive given therr close alignment with the Company's strategic plans  Additicnally,
the Commitiee Is of the view that disclesing the targets could put the Company at a disadvantage ta some of ts competters, which are not
subject 1o similar reporting requirements However, the Committes commits to disclose such targets when the Committee determines that
they are no longer commercially sensitive, such disclosure to be within the next two years In any event

Financral Performance Objectives representing 50% of the opporiunity

Financial Performance Mezsure Targst Mrwmum and Maximum Threshokds Weghting Achevement

Group Revenue Not disclosed No payout below threshold of 95% of budget nsing on a straight 10% Q49%
line basis 10 maximum gayout for 105% of budget or more:
Groun Proft Before Tax Not disclosed Ne payout below threshold of 92% of budget nsing on a straxght 50% nil%
line basis to maximum payout for 108% of budget or more:
Personal Obyectives representing 40% of the opportunity
Personal Key Performanca Indicator Weighting
Wong Heng Ren € derly transion of the Growup Chief Exec.tive Cfiicer respensibiities to Aloysus Lee Tee Sang 20%
Delvery of the Annual Report and Accounts 2014 to agreed trmescale and cuality 20%
Total 40%
Aloysius Lee Objectves concerning the development of the senor executive management leam 10%
Tse Sang 1US business development and performance obiectives 15%
Group growth caprtal and asset management chjectves 10%
Foorn rate and room accupancy growth cbjectves 5%
Total A0%

The Commttes assessed that Mr Lee achieved 18% of the 40% of his bonus opportunity related to his personal key performance
indicators (KPls) due to his achieverments dunng the ten months of his tenure as Group Chief Executive Officer and one mornth as Group
Chief Executve Officer designate despite the difficult trading conditions in certain jurisdictions The Committee recognised the progress in
developrment of the semor executive managerment team and medium term strategy, particularly the orogress with the development and
refurtishment projecis

While a transition of the Group Chief Executive Officer role and responsibiities to Mr Lee occurred dunng the year and the 2014 annual
report and acceunts were delivered on tme, in light of the short time served dunng 2015 and the Group's financral performance over the
year it was considered appropnate to award to MrWong 5% of his maximum benus potential under his personal KPIs

Each bonus was prorated for time served resuiting in Mr Lee recenving a total bonus of £127,122 and Mr Wong a total borus of £8,922

Scheme interests awarded in 2013

Performance share awards made under the Long-Term incentive Plan (“LTiP"} in 2013 were subject to performance coenditions compnsing
both eamings per share (“EPS”) growth and relatve total shareholder retum {“TSR"} performance over the three-year penod ending

11 Decernber 2015 These awards were due to vest on the third annversary of the awards beng made, with 50% vesting in the event the
Company’s EPS growth over the penod exceeds the growth of the UK Retail Price index by set targets aver the same penod and the
remaining 50% vesting if the Company's TSR performance over the relevant penod meets or exceeds the median TSR performance of a
comparator groug compnsing those companies within the FTSE 250 index, excluging investrment trusts, over the penod

Based on the Company's EPS growth and refative TSR performance for the three years ended 31 December 2015, the Committee has
cetermined that the LTIP awards made on 11 September 2013 will iapse in full
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Directors’ remuneration report
continued
Annual report on remuneration continued
Scheme interests awarded duning 2015
The only Drector to be awarded performance shares under the Cormpany’s LTIP dunng 2015 was Aloysius Lee Tse Sang The award was
made on 3 August 2015 and, subject 1o achievernent of the relevant performance measures and LTIP rules, wi! vest on 3 August 2018
Detalls of the award and the performance measures and targets attaching 1o the 2015 LTIP awards are provided in the tabies below The
Directors did not participata n any other share-based incentive plans durng the year

Aloysius Lee Tse Sang

Date of award 3 August 2015
Awards made dunng the year 134 408
Market pnce of shares used to calculate award' £5 5800
Basis of award 150% of salary
Face value of award on date of grant {£'000) £750
% vesting at threshold performance 25%

Performance measures and targets

See following 1able

Performance penod end date

31 Decemnber 2017

Vesting date 3 August 2018
Market price at the vesting date -
Monetary value of vested award -
Note

1 The number of shares awarded was calcufated using the middle market share price on 31 July 2013 one business day pror 10 the date of grant

The performance measures, targets and vesting threshoids are set out below

Performance Measure Weighting Mimmum Threshold Level of Vesting Masamum Threshoeld! Levsl of Vesting
Cumulatve EPS 60% 114 pence 25% 138 pence 100%

Net Asset Value growth plus drvidends 20% €%pa 25% 13%pa 100%
TSR - FTSE 2502 10% Ingdex 25% Index + 9% p a 100%
TSR - Peer group® 10% Median 25% Medan + 9% pa 100%
Notes

1 Vesting levels between thresholkd end maxmum will be assessed cn a straight Lkne basis
2 The FTSE 250 comparator group excludes investment rusts

3 The peer group compnses Accor Banyan Trea Holdings Belmond Choice Hotels (nternational Hongkong & Shanghat Hotels Hotel Properties Hyatt Hotels InterContinental Hotels Group
Mandann Criental Marnott International Melia Hotels International NH Hotels: Overseas Union Enterprse Rezidor Shangha Jin Jiang Internatonal Shangn La Asiz Starwood Hoteis & Resorts

Whitbread and Wyndham Worlchada

Payments made to past directors

Except as disclosed elsewhera in this report, no payments to past Directors were made dunng 2015 in particular, no special project fees
were agreed with or pad to Wong Hong Ren under his consultancy arrangemeant as Senior Adwisor to the Group

Payments for loss of office

The termnation arrangements agreed with Wong Hong Ren were fully disclosed n last year's report, and &l sums pard to him in respect of
2015 are ncluded in the single total figure of remuneration table There were no other payments for Ioss of office made dunng the year
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Statement of directors’ shareholdings and share interests
The interests of the Directors who served dunng 2015, and their connected persons, n the ordinary shares of Milennium & Copthorme
Hotels pic were as follows

Number of ordinary sharas cwned outright’ Nurnber ¢f scheme intarests
(TP awards which are  LTIP awards whch are
nct subject 1o subject to futura Value of ordinary shares

Holding on Hokiing on  performance condions  performance condtions Total nterests s at owned outright as a
Director 31 Decernber 2015 1 January 2015 at 31 December 2015 at 31 Decembar 215 3t Decamber 2615 parcentage of satary
Chairman
Kwek Leng Beng® - - - - - N/A
Exscutive Directors
wong Hong Ren 498 B38° 498 B38° -~ 349 830 848 468 N/A
Aloysius Lee Tse Sang® - - -~ 134 408 134 408 0%
Non-Executive Directors
Shaukat Aziz - = ~ - - N/A
Susan Farr - - ~ - - N/A
Nicholas George 12500 12 500 ~ - 12500 N/A =z
Kwek Ek Sherg® - - ~ - - N/A e
Kvek |eng Peck? - _ _ ~ - A ;
Gervase MacGregor - - - - - N/A B
Alexander Waughn - - - - - NZA -

Notes

1 Incudes benetic al foldngs ~eld by 1o Drectors personally and by ther connes e persons inuuding tran 5pcuses and mnor Lnildien

2 Forthe purposes of determining Executive Director sharsholchings as a percentage of salary the iIndmdual's safary and the share price as at 31 December 2015 werg used

3 The interests of tha Directors appanted Sy City Developments Limited in that companty and ts ultimate parent company Hong Leeng Investment Holdings Pte Ltd are disclosed In the aceounts of
those companies

4 LTIP nterests compnsa the 175 834 shares granted to Wong Hon Ren pursuant 10 the 2013 LTIP award which wil lapsa i full as disclosed in this report and the award of 173 796 shares held by
Mr Wong relgnng 1o the LTIP award mada on 4 Apnl 2014 details of which can be found i the 2014 Annual Report and Accounts

5 Shares helc by Mr Wong en tis »gtremant as Group Cheef Executve Otficer an 28 Fubnary 2015 and s at 3 Janu wv 2015 the Latter restated to include his cannected persons

& in additon to shares of schema interests in the Company Aloysis Lee Tse Sang due 10 NS appointment as a director of the following subsidianes hoids 1 share in the followng subsdianes of the
Company Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation Rogo Reatty Corparation and Harhour Land Corporation These shares were transfered from Mr Wong
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Director sharehoiding reguirements are as disclosed earler in this repont, on page 53 Given Mr Lee was appointed as an Executive Director
with effect from 1 March 2015, he was not required to have met the requirements by 33 December 2015

There have: been no changes 1 the Directors’ interests between 31 December 2015 and the date of this report
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Directors’ remuneration report
continued

Annual report on remuneration continued

Unaudited Information

Implementation of Remuneration Policy in 2016
This section provides an overiew of how the Committee 15 propesing to implement our Remuneration Policy in 2016

Base salary of the Executive Directors
Given the recent appontrent of Aloysius Lee Tse Sang in 2015, the Committee has determined that his base salary of £500,000 per
annum will rermain unchanged for 2016

20186 annual bonus for Executve Directors

The Committee established the following 2016 annuat bonus performance conaitions for Aloysius Lee Tse Sang as Group Chief Executive
Officer As in previous years and in line with the Remuneration Pelicy, the bonus will be compnsed of two elements, including financial
performance measures and personal objectves The Committee has decided to retan the 40% weighting on personal performance as
apphied last year i order to ensure strong alignment with the Group's strategy and 1o raflect the importance of the selected KPls which are
felt to be key drivers of future financial performance The financial performance measures iIndicated below will apply to any other Executve
Director who 1s appointed dunng the year whilst such Director's personal objectives will be agreed by the Committee at the appropnate
tme, In conuncticrn with any appointment

The Committee believas that the specific financial targets and detaled measurements for Mr Lee's personal objectives are commercially
sensitive given therr alignment with the Company’s cperating budget and strategic plans for 2016, and that consequently 1S not
apprognate 1o drsctose them in this report. The Commiitee will consider the extent such targets and objectives will be disclosed in the 2016
Annual Report on Rernuneration after the conclusion of the year

Fnancial Performance Measure Wesghtng
Group Revenue 10%
Underly ng Gro.o Praft Before Tax S0%
Parsonat Key Performance inticators for Aloysass Lee Tse Sang Waenghtng
Obyectives conoerming the furiher development of the serior execuiive management team 10%
US busness development anc performance chiectves 15%
Group growih capital and asset management obiectives 10%
Room rate and room occupancy growih ohjecives 9%
Totat 40%

2018 Long Term Incentive Plan award

The maximum value of any LTIP awards granted during the year will remam at 150% of base salary for Aloysius Lee Tse Sang as Group
Chief Executive Officer and 100% of base salary for any other Executive Director The Commuttee has reviewed the current LTIP structure
and has agreed that the performance conditions will remain the same as in 2014 and 2015, namely earnings eer share (“EPS”), net asset
value ("NAV") and total shareholder retumn (‘TSR] The table below descnbes the apphcable performance measures, weightings and
targets The vesting thresholds have been updated to reflect the Group's three-year forecast, based on its strategy and business plan over
the coming years, and are considered 1o be approprately stretching when compared to other FTSE companies
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The Committee has decided that the awards 1o be granted n 2016 will vest on the third anniversary of the grant date, without an additional
holding penod, but subject o continued employment, achievernent of the above performance measures and the LTIP rules No consideration
will be payaibie for the grant of awards and no payment will be due fram the grantees on the vesting and exercise of their awards

Performance Measure -We|gntlng Mimmum Threshoid Lawvel of Vesting Maxamum Threshold' Lavel of Vasting
Cumulative EPS 80% 95 penice 25% 115 pence 100%
Net Asset Value growth plus dividends 20% 5%pa 25% 11%pa 100%
TSR - FTSE 2502 10% Index 25% index + 9% pa 100%
TSR - Peer group® 10% Median 25% Mediar + 3% pa 100%
Notes

1 Vesting levels between threshoid and maximum wil be assessed on a straght hne basis

2 The FTSE 250 comparator group exciudes investment trusts

3 The peer group comprses Accor Banyan Tree Holdings Belmond Chorce Hotels International Hongkong & Shangnal Hatels Hotel Properties Hyatt Hotels InterCantinentat Hotels Group
Mandann Oriental Marnott Intarmational Meia Hotels International NH Hetels Overseas Union Enterprise Rezdor Shanghas Jin Jiang International Shangr La Asia Starwooed Hotels & Resorts
Whitbread ang Wyndnam Worldwide

Pension and benefits
Asin 2015, Aloysius Lee Tse Sang will recerve a cash pensicn contrbution worth 20% of his base salary n 2016 He aiso will continue to
recene a standard package of other benefits consistent with those recenved in 2015

Non-Executve Director fees

The basic fea for the Non-Executve Directors will continug tc be £50,000 per annum in 2016, having increased from £45,000 per annum
on 1 Apnl 2014 Non-Executive Directors also will continue to receive separate annual fees for therr service as a member and, to the extent
appicable, the char of a Board committee, and the Senior Independent Director will be paid an additicnal fee of £10,0C0 per annum to
serve In such capacity Detals of the additional committee fees are set outin the table below

Committes Annugai fes for membership of a committes Adgrbonal annugt Chaiman s fee
Audit & Risk Committee £5,000 £10 000
Remuneration Committee £5,000 £10 000
Nominations Committee £2000 -

The annual fee for the Charman of the Board will reman unchanged at £250,000 for 2018, having increased from £200,000 per annum
from 1 Apnl 2013 Also, the Chairrman will continue to recenve feas for serving as a director of certain subsidiary companies
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Directors’ remuneration report
contnued

Annual report on remuneration continued

Additional disclosures

Performance of the Company and histonc remuneration of the Group Chief Executive Officer

The following graph dlustrates the total shareholder retum of the Gompany’s shares and comparator indexes over the past six years As the
Company 1s a constituent of both the FTSE 250 and the FTSE Allshare Travel & Leisure ndex, the Directors consider these indices to be
the most appropnate broad equity market indices aganst which the Company’s performance should be compared for these purposes The
ramunaration hstory of the Group Chief Executive Officer over the same penod also s provided

wemmmm Millennium & Copthorre Hotels pI07
e T SE250 excluding nvestment trusts
e FTSE Allsfiafe Travel & LBisure

Total shareholder return (“TSR"}
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2008 2009 2010 201 2012 2013 2014 2015
Rernuneration istory of the Group Chief Executive Officer
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 205
{€ 000} {€ 0D0) (£ 200) {€ '000) (£ 000} (£1000)
Total remuneration £1243 4 404 £1 485 £2 287 £1,429 £1,389
Annual bonus (as a percentage of maximum opporunity) 100% 63% 37% 67% 62% 19%
LTIP vesting rates (as a percentage of maximum cppartunity} 0% 100% 100% 50% 0% 0%
Notes

1 Hchad =3'man reteed as Group Chict Executne Cificer and Wang Hong Ren was 2ppain ec o 170 post on 27 June 207 1 T ese igures are tor botv and are restzted to be conzistent with the
other years

2 Wong oy Ren stenped down as Croun Chief Execuane Cificer on 28 February 2015 and Aloyaius Lea Tse Sang was appo nled as Group Jhief Executva Oficer Designate irom 1 Fenruary 2015
andd daeurmed the 1k role d. of 1 March 7015 These figures are fon both

Percentage change i remunieration of the Group Chief Executive Officer
The tabies below show the percentage change i remuneration (pased on salary and fees, taxable benefits and annual bonus) between
2014 and 2015 for the Group Chief Executive Officer and employees within the Group's bonus poal

% Changa from 2014 to 2015
Base Salary Benefits Bomus
Group Grief Executive Officer? (23) 68) 79
Employees 3 5 8

1 All percentages are based gn converting relevant local urrencies nte pounds stering using the average rates for the respective year

2 Croup Chiet Exacutve Officer change s ihe percen age crange berween e remuneration pad te Mr Wong 01 2014 and Mr Lee n 2015 The salary 210 DENGiks CAG (0 M Lgg have been tiued
Lp to equate to a full year

3 Change in bonus relates to payments made n the respectve year
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Relative importance of spend on pay

The table belaw llustrates the year-on-year change 1 total pay for colleagues across the Group (ceing the aggregate personnel expenses
as set out N Note 8 to the financial statements) and distnbutions to shareholders {being declared dividends) The average number of
colleagues employed by the Group in 2015 was 10,870 {2014 10,257}

2014 2015

{&m) (€m) Change (%) '
Empicyee remuneration cosls 325 351 8%
Dwdends distributed 73 a4 [Bon

1 Includes a specal dvidend paxd of $ 15p per share drven Ty te Ghyndebowrne develonment profit Lke tor bhe percantaga change was nika

Statement of voting at general meeting

The following table sets out the voting in respect of the rasolutions to approve the Drrectors' Remuneration Policy and the 2014 Directors’
rernuneration report, which resolutions were put {0 shareholders at the Company’s annual general meetngs held on 1 May 2014 and

7 May 2015, respectively The Oirectors were pleased with the support recenved from shareholders

Vates

Resotution Votas for % of vote agamnst % ofvota Votes withheld 9 of vota
Approve the Directors Remuneration Palicy 281 458 849 99 09% 2 573,555 081% 10612 954 380%
Approve the Directors remuneration repert for the

year encled 31 Decamnber 2014 279 396 939 a7 70% 6 567,005 2 30% 645 484 0 23%

Trus Directors’ remuneration report will be put to an adwiscry vote of the shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held on 5 May
2016 No changes to the Remuneration Policy are progosed for 2016 In line with best practice, the Commitee intends to prasent the
Remuneration Palicy to shareholders for approval once again at the annual general meeting in 2017 unless any modifications are required
before then

Conasideration by the Comrmuttee members of matters rei2hing (o directors’ remuneration

The Committes 15 authonised by the Board to appoint extemnal advisers if it considers such an appaintment to be beneficial In 2012 the
Committee conducted a tender process and selected Kepler Associates as the Commitiee’s remuneration acvisor Kepler Assaciates, who
are now known as Kegler, a brand of Mercer, continued to act in that capacity dunng 2015, where over the course of the year, consultants
from Kepler attended most of the Committee’s meetings and provided advice on a range of topics, ncluding remuneration trends and best
practices and the design of the performance share incentive plans

JIUBLHIAOY

Separately, the Company also recenved from Kepler advice on the accounting treatment of share options reguired by FRS 2 Share-based
payments Kepler provided no other services to the Company

Kepler s a founding member and signatory 1o the Code of Conduct for Rermuneration Consultants, details of which can be found at
www remunerationconsuftantsgroup com The consultants from Kepler are routinely asked to confirm any conflicts and the Committee 1S
satisfied that the advice received was objectve and independent

Kepler generally charges on an hourly basis The aggregate amount of fees paid to Kepler dunng 2015 was £62,000 (2014 £70,000)

The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee The Charman of the Scard and Group Chief Executive Officer are invited to
attend Committee meetings In addition to the remuneration consuitant, the Committee considers their views when reviewing the
remuneration of Executive Cirectors and other senior executives Individuals who attend Remuneration Committee meetings do not
participate in discussions conceming their own remuneration

-

External appointments

The Company recogrises that Executive Drrectors may be inwvied to become non-executive directors of other comparies and that such
appoiriments can broaden the executives’ knowledge and expenence, ic the benefit of the Group Fees payable to Executive Directors in
connection with extenal appointments may be retained by them with the approval of the Committee As at the date cf this report, Mr Lee
does not hold an external appontment for which he receves a fee

TR
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Directors’ remuneration report
continued

Annual report on remuneration contnued

Satisfaction of performance share awards

Performance share awards are made for ni consideration and are satisfied either by the 1ssue of new shares or through market purchases
of shares Currently the company has in place an employee benefit trust known as the Millenrium & Copthome Hotels pic Employee Benefit
Trust 2008 {the “EBT"), which was established to acquire shares to satsfy performance share awards that may vest from time to time As at
31 December 2015, the EBT held 5,758 shares (2014 5,758 shares), representing approximately 0 00177% of the Company's issued
share capital as at the same date Executive Directors who participate in the LTIP, together with other employees of the Group who
participate In the LTIP and other performance share schemes, are potential beneficianes of the EBT and, as such, are deemed to be
interested in any shares held

Dilution

The Company ensures that the ievel of shares granted under the Company's share plans and the means of sansfying such awards remains
within best practice guidetines so that dilution from employee share awards does not exceed 10 per cent of the Company’s 1ssued share
caprtal for all-empleyee share plans and 5 per cent In respect of executive share plans n any ten-year roling period The Comparty monitors
dilution levels on a regular basis and the Committee reviews these at least once a year

Share prce

The market pnce of a Millennizm & Copthome Hetels pic ordinary share at 31 December 2015 was 463 4 pence and the range dunng the
year was 463 0 pence to 600 5 pence

The Directors confirm that this report has been prepared in accardance with the Companies Act 20086, reflects the provisions of the Large
and Medum-sized Comparues and Groups (Accounts and Reperts) {Amendment) Regulations 2013 and was approved at a meeting of the
Board held on 18 February 2016

On behalf of the Board

Alexander Waugh
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

18 February 2016
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Nominations Committee report

Charrman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

This report descnbes the actvties of the
Nominations Committee dunng 2015

Activities undertaken in 2015

The Committee met two times dunng the
year and we focused our attention on the
following matters in particular

« Mantaning Board stabiiity m hght of the
recent appointments of Nick George as
the Senior Independent Director and
Gervase MacGregor as a Director and
Charr of the Audit & Risk Committee at the
end of 2014, following the departure of
Sean Colins, and the appointment of
Aloysius Lee Tse Sang as the new Group
Chief Executive Officer and a Cirector after
Wong Hong Ren stepped down on

28 February 2015

Supporting Mr Lee n continuing to buid
the strength of the senior management
team through additional recrutment and
ra-aignment of roles and responsibiiies
Assessing the mempership of the Board's
committees, which assessment resulted in
the appointment of Gervase MacGregor to
the Remuneration Committee in May 2015
As descnbed further in the Corporate
Governance Staterment on page 44,
reviewing the continued senvice of Shaukat
Aziz, Nicholas George and Alexander
Waugh gven they each completed six
years as Directors in June 2015
Considering the compasition of the Board
and needs of the Group to determine if
any additional appointrments were
necessary

Board and management changes

As noted above, Wong Hong Ren stepped
down from the Board on 28 February 2015
and Aloysius Lee Tse Sang joined the
Group as the new Group Chief Executve
Officer and 2 Birector on 1 March 2015 We
are satisfied with the work done by Mr Lee,
In conunction with the Board and
management team, dunng his snduction
programme and are confident that he Isina
strong position to progress the Group's
strategy against the backdrop of

challenging conditions in certan of our key
markets during the year

Future priorities

As a result of the work undertaken Gunng
2015, the Norminations Committee and
Board have a good understanding of the
challenges facing the business and the
talent, both at the Board and executive
management level, required to move the
Group forward We are encouraged by the
depth of talent avalable within the Group
and the plans in place to add further
capability to the team

Kwek Leng Beng
Charman of the Nominations Committee

18 February 2016

Committee Governance

Membership

The Nominations Commitiee comgpnses a
majonty of ndependent Non-Executive
Directors and meets on Such 0ccasions as
are necessary, but at least twice each year
Kwek Leng Beng chars the Committes
except when the business of the mesting
concems his succession The Board
considers that all members have the
expenence and experise necessary to
meet the Commitiee’s responsibilties

Role of the Committee
The role of the Committes 1s, among other
things, to

« Review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, ncluding the
skills, knowledge, expenence and diversity
of the Directors

« consider succession planning for directors
and other senior executives, taking intc
account the challenges and opportunities
facing the Company and ihe skils and
expeartise needed,

« identfy and nominate for approval by the

Board candidates 1o fil Board vacances

when they anse,

keep under review the leadership needs of

the organisation, with a view to ensunng

the continued ability of the organisation (o

65

compete effectively in the marketplace,
review the tme required from Nori-
Executive Directors,

In consultation with the Chairmen of the
Board comnitees, review and if
appropnate recomimend changes to the
composition of the commuttees,
consider the re-appointment of Non-
Executve Directors at the conclusion of
therr specified terms of office, gving due
regard 1o ther performance and zbility to
continue to contnbute to the Board, and
assess the appointment of any Director 10
an executive or other office

Board diversity

The Cornmittee recogmises the value of
diversity and that it can only serve to
strengthen the Group We continue to
Incorporate ali aspects of diversity as an
objective crtenon for the selection of future
Board members and we also strve to
ensure that this policy 1s reflected in all
levels of the orgarusaticn We support the
asprrations st out by Lord Davies in his
report ¢n 'Women on Boards', Including the
representaton of women at the highest
level In the orgarisation Selection of
candidates to jon the Board is based on
ment and the contribution which they wil
bnng tc the werkings of the Board

Advisors

The Company Secretary, the Group Chief
Executive Officer and other members of the
managerment teamn are invited to attend
meetings as appropnate External advisers
are consulted when necessary to provide
adwvice or market perspective

The Committee did not utiise any extemal
adwisors durng 2015, however, the Group
did engage recrutment firms from tme to
time during the year, as necessary, 10
identify qualified candidates 1o fill senor
execuiive positions

Terms of Reference

The Nominatons Committee’s terms of
reference are avalable at www
millenniumhotels com/corporate/investors
html

2OULLIRACD
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
in respect of the annual report

and accounts

The Directors are responsible for preparnng
the annual report and the Group and parent
company financial staterments in
acsordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors to
prepare Group and parent company
financial statements for each financial year
For the Group financial staterments, these
are required 1o be prepared in accordance
with [ntematicnal Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
Eurcpean Uruon (EU) and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation and have elected to prepare
the parent company financial statements in
accordance with UK Accounting Standards
including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework

The Directors must not approve the
financial staterments unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and far view
of the state of affars of the Group and
parent company and of ther profit or loss
for that penod  In prepanng each of the
Group and parent company financial
statements, the Directors are required to

* select sutable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently,

make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prucent,

for the Group financial statements, state
whether they have tbeen prepared In

accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the

EU,

for the parent comgany financial
statements, state whether applicable UK
Accourtting Standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal

departures disclosed and expiained In the
parent company financial statements, and

prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis unless it 1s
inappropnate to presume that the Group
and the parent company will contnue In
business

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the parent
company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the
financral position of the parent company
and enable themn to ensure that its financial
staterments comply with the Companies Act
2006 They have general responstbility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open
to them to safeguard the assets of the
group and to prevent and detect fraud and
¢ther rregulanties

Under applicable law and regulations, the
Directors are also respensible for prepanng
a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report,
Directors' remuneration report and
Corporate Governance Staternent that
comply with that law and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the
mantenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial Information included on the
Company’s website Legisiation in the UK
governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial staterments may
differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of cur
knowledge

the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give a true and far
view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit or lass of the Company
and the undertakings Included in the
consolidation taken as a whole,

the strategic report inciudes a far review of
the development and performance of the
business ard the position of the Company
and the undertakings included in the
conschdation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal nsks and
uncertanties that they face, and

the annual report and accounts, taken as
a whele, 1s far, balanced and
understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders 1o
assess the Company's position and
performance, business mode! and strategy

COn behalf of the Board

Aloysius Lee Tse Sang
Group Chief Executive Officer

18 February 2016
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Millennium & Copthome Hotels plc only

Opinions and conclusions arising from

our audit

1 Our opinion on the financial
statements 1s unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of

Millennium & Copthome Hotels Pl for the

year ended 31 December 2015 set out on

pages 72 10 145 In our opiInon

* the financial statements give a true and far

view of the state of the Group's and of the

parent company's affars as at

34 December 2015 and of the Group's

profit for the year then ended,

the Group financial statements have been

property preparad in accordance with

Intemational Financial Reporting Standards

as adopted by the Eurcpean Union,

the parent company financial staterments

have been properly prepared In

accordance with UK Accounting

Standards, ncluding FRS 101 Reduced

Dnsclosure Framework, and

« the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

2 Our assessment of nsks of matenal
misstatement

In armving at our audit oprion above on the

financial statements the risks of matenal

misstaterment that had the greatest effect

on our audit were as follows

Valuation of hotel assets (E2,764m)
Refer to Audit & Rrsk Committee Report,
Note 2 3 (Summary of significant
accounting polcies), Note 3 fAccounting
estmates and judgments, and Note 12
(financial disclosures})

» The nsk. The Group has £2,764 milion of
hotel assets which are subject to annual
review to assess whether or not they rmay
be mpared The Group cames these
assets at cost There are a number of
factors which dnve additronal audit effort in
this area Firstly, certan hotels were
imparred (N previous years and any further
dechne in performance may result in
further impaiment beng recorded
Secondly, the Group purchased three
hotels 1n 2014 which, in varying degree,

have not met performance targets
Incicating a nsk to the recoverabikty of
therr bock value Finally, the Group has
expenenced a difficult trading envircnment
in 2015, particularly 1n Asia, where some of
the Group's largest hotel properties
operate The Group apphes a two-step
process In a5sessing thewr hotel assets for
possible imparment The first step 1s to
identify those properties at nsk, 1€ thase
where there 1s an indication of Impairment
Those hotels highhghted as baing at nsk
following this analysis are then subjected
to a detaled imparment review, either
through an external valuation or threugh
analysis of an ntemnat discounted cash
flow model The mnitial analysis to identify
those properties at nsk s subject to
Judgment Furthermore, for those subject
to a more detaled analysis, the estimation
of the recoverable amount 1s complex and
dependent on assumptions about the
future Specifically, significant judgment is
required In relation to the appropnate
discount rates, growth rates, occupancy
rates, revenue per avalable rocm, terrinal
values and the resulting forecast cash
fiows to use In determining value In use
Therefore, this 1s one of the key judgmental
areas that our audit IS concentrated on

Our response Cur procedures included
challenging the drrectors’ initial nsk
assessment process by which properties
were selected for further assessment of
their recoverable amount This ncluded
companson of actual asset performance
to previous forecasts and avalable
headrocm We further considered future
forecasts, comparing these to internal
plans and external market informatien For
those properties selected for a detaied
impamment review, we used our own
valuation speciabsts 1o assist us In
evaluating the valuation methodology used
by the group for both external and internal
valuations, including comphance with
relevant accounting standards and
algnment to market practice With input
frorm our valuation specralists, we
challenged the key assumptions used
within each model In determining the
recoverable amount of these hotel assets,
which was generally considered 1o be ther

&7

value in use This ncluded a companson
of occupancy rates, revenue per avalabie
room, market growth and expected
inflation wath externally denved data
including extermal hotel industry reports
We also performed our own assessment
of other key inputs such as eshmated
fusture costs, discount rates and terminal
muitiplers, and considered the histoncal
accuracy of directers’ estimates, and
performed break-even analysis on the
assumptions We assessed the panciples
and integnty of the discounted cash flow
models and considered the
appropnateness of the Group's
disclosures about the imparments and the
sensitvty of the outcome of the
iImpaimment assessment to changes in key
assumptions

Ciassification and valuation of
mvestment properties (£506m)

Refer to page Audit & Risk Committee
Report, Note 2 3 (Summary of significant
accounting policies), Note 3 (Accounting
estimates and judgments), and Note 14
{financial disclosures)

« The nsk. Class/fication of an asset as
investrment property {rather than as
Property, Plant & Equipment) requires
judgment, and s determined by reference
to the Group’s future Intentions and
business model As discussed in Note 2 3,
this classification results in a different
accounting treatment because Property,
Plant and Equipment 1s recorded at
depreciated cost whereas investment
propertigs are camed at far value The
Group engaged exiernal experts to value
its Investment properiies The valuation
models applied to datemmine the value of
investment properties are complex and
sensitive to assumptions around
occupancy rates, market growth, sales
and rental rates, as weli as discount rates
and termina multiphers On this basis,
classification and valuation of investment
properties are key judgmental areas on
which our audit 1s concentrated

+ Qur response When considerng the
appropnate classification of a property our
procedures included making enguines of
the servor members of the finance ieam
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc only

continued

and Directors, Inspecting intemal business 3 Our application of matenality and an

plans, and considenng key terms of
extemal contracts and agreements We
analysed the appropnateness of the
valuation methodclogy applied, and
considered whether it 1s in ine with
accounting requirerents and business
praciice We challenged the key
assumptions used in determining fair
value This included a companson of
forecast rental rates, market growth,
occupancy rates, and real estate sales
prnces with externally denved data and
intermal budgets We also performed our
own assessment of other key inputs such
as discount rates and terminal multiphers
Our valuation specialists assisted in the
evaluation of the more subjective and
complex assumptions and analyses
Finally, we assessed whether the Group's
disclosures properly reflected the nsks
inherent in the calculatons and met the
requirements of relevant accounting
standards

In our audit report for the year ended

31 December 2014 we included
consolidation accounting and overnde of
controis as two of the nsks of matenal
misstaterent that had the greatest effect
on our audt We considered consolidatien
accounting nsk to be fess significant in the
current year as the Group finalised 1ts first
time impiementaticn of the standard dealing
with consglidation in the pnor year In 2014,
this resulted in the consoidation of CDLHT,
which had previously been accounted for
as an associate The ovemde of controls
nsk was reported !ast year due 1o the
significant changes in senicr management
which coincided with the 2014 year-end
reporting timetable Mitigating measures
were put In place in 2015 to re-instate an
addittonal level of oversight over year-end
financial reporiing which reduced this nsk
Therefore, whilst we continue te perform
audit procedures over these two areas, we
have not assessed them as nsks that had
the greatest effect on our auait
Conseguently they are not separatety
dentified in our report this year

overview of the scope of our audit
The matenality for the Group financial
statemnents as a whole was set at £7 5m
This has been determined with reference to
a benchmark of the Group profit before tax
and after deducting non-controlling interest,
which we consider to be one of the
prncipal considerations for members of the
company In assessing the financial
periormance cf the Group We consider it
appropnate tc exclude the profit due to
non-controlling interest as following the
consolidation of CDLHT in 2014, thishas a
matenal impact on the Group's profit
measure Matenalty represents 5 0% of the
Group profit before tax and after ncn-
controling interest

We report to the Audit & Risk Committee all
corrected and uncorrected misstatements
we identified through our audit with a value
n excess of £370,000, in addition to other
audit misstatements below that threshold
that we beleve warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds

The Group's pnncipal operations are in the
United Kingdom, Asia and the US which
reprasent over 94% of Group revenue, 84%
Group profit before tax and 92% of Group
total assets All of these operations are
scoped in for a full scope audit to
component matenalty for the Group audit
purposes Although not financially
significant, in agreement with the Audt
Commutiee, reviews of fimancial information
Nchuding INquiry were also performed on
two entities in Middle East and China by

The remaining 2% of total Group revenue,
2% of Group profit before tax and 5% of
total Group assets (s represented by four
other overseas operations, none of which
indmdually represented more than 1% of
any of total Group revenue, Group profit
before tax or iotat Group assets For these
remaning components, we performed
analysis at an aggregated group level to
re-examine our assessment that there were
no significant nsks of matenal misstatement
within these gperations

The Group audit team instructed
component auditors as to the significant
areas to be covered, including the relevant
nsks detaled above and the information to
be reported back The Group audt team
approved the component matenghties,
which ranged from £0 2 millign 10 £5 mullion,
hawving regard to the mix of size and nsk
profile of the Group across the
components The work on the five reporting
components was performed by component
auditors and the rest by the Group audit
ieam

The Group audit team visited three
component locations in the UK, US and
Asia Telephone conference meetings were
also held with these component auditors
and all ihe others that were nat pnysically
visited At these visits and meetings, the
findings repoeried to the Group audit team
were discussed in more detall, and any
further work required by the Group audit
team was then performed by the
ccmpenent auditor

component auditors smuitanecusly with the

audit of the Group and its financially
significant ogerations

Group  Group proft Group tatal

Number af Ravenue betom tax assets
COMPOnents % % %
Audits for group reparting purposes Three (Asia US a4 94 92
UKy
Two (Middle
Reviews of fnancial ronmanion (nc'uding ercusy)  East and China) 4 4 3
Total 88 8 85
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4 Qur opinion on other matters
prescribed by the Comparies Act 2006
15 unmodified

In our cpinioN

= the part of the Directors” Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly
prepared In accerdance with the
Companies Act 2006,

« the information gven In the Strategic
Report and the Directors’ Report for the
financial year 1s consistent with the
financial statements

Based solely on the work reguired to be
undertaken in the course of the audrt of the
financial statements and from reading the
Strategic report and the Directors’ report

+ we have not ideniifiec materal
misstaternents in those reports, and

« in our opinion, those reports have been
prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006

5§ We have nothing to report on the
disclosures of principal risks

Based on the knowledge we acquired

durng our audit, we have nothing matenal

to add or draw attention to in relation to

the directors’ staternent of Risks on pages
29 to 33, conceming the prncipal nsks,
their management, and, based on that, the
drrectors’ assessment and expectations of
the Group's continuing N operation over
the three years to 31 December 2018, or
the disclosures in Note 3 of the financial
staterments conceming the use of the
going concern basis of accounting

6 We have nothing to report in respect
of the matters on which we are
required to report by exception

Under 1SAs {UK and ireland} we are

required to repori 1o you if, based on the

knowledge we acquired dunng our audit,
we have identified other information in the
annual report that contains a matenal
inconsistency with either that knowledge or
the financial statements, a matenal
misstaternent of fact, or that 13 otherwise
misleading

Governance

In particular, we are required to report to
you if

« we have igentified matenal inconsistencies
between the knowledge we acquired
dunng our audit and the directors'
staternent that they consider that the
annual report and financial statements
taken as a whole s farr, balanced and
understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group’s pesition and
performance, business model and
strategy, or

the Audit & Risk Committee Report does
nct appropnately address matters
communicated by us 1o the Audit
Committee

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are
required to report 1o you if, n our opinion

« adeguate accounting records have not
been kept by the parent company, or
retums adequate for our audit have not
been receved from branches not visited
by us, or

» the parent company financial statements
and the part of the Diractors’
Remuneration Report 10 he audited are
not in agreement with the accounting
records and retums, or

« certan disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made, or

+ we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audi

Under the Listing Rules we are required to
review

* the directors' statements, set cut on
pages 30 and 38, in relation to gong
concem and longer-term viability, and

« the part of the Corporate Govemance
Statement on page 42 relating to the
company's compliance with the eleven
provisions of the 2014 UK Corporate
Govermance Code specified for our review

We have nottung to report in respect of the
above responsibilities

]

Scope and responsibilties

As explained more fully In the Directors’
Responsibiities Staternent set cut on page
686, the directors are respensitle for the
preparation ¢f the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and
far view A descnption of the scope of an
audt of financial statements 1§ provided on
the Financial Reporting Council's websile at
www fr¢ org uk/audiscopeukprvate This
report 15 made solely to the company's
members as a body and Is subject 1o
important explanatons and disclamers
regarding our respansibikties, published on
our website at www kpmg com/uk/
auditscopeukco2014a, which are
incorporated into this report as if set cut In
full and should be read {o provide an
understanding of the purpose of this report,
the work we have undertaken and the basis
of our opinons

Steve Masters

{Senuor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP,
Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Sguare

Lendon
E14 5GL
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Consolidated income
statement
For the year ended 31 December 2015
2015 2014
Notes £m £m:
Revenue 5 847 826
Cost of sales (350) {333)
Gross profit 457 493
Administratve expenses (342 {325)
Other operating income 7 4 29
Other operating expense 7 [84) (]
Operating profit 112 185
Share of profit of jont ventures and associates 15 17 10
Finance income 5 7
Finance expense 25 24y
Neotfinance expense 9 (20} (s
Profit before tax 5 109 188
Income 1ax expense 10 (12 (37)
Profit for the year 97 151
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent €5 110
Non-controling interests 32 4
a7 154
Basic earnings per share (pence) 11 19 9p 340p
Diluted eamings per share {pence} 11 198p 339p

The financial results above denve from continuing actvities

The notes on pages 79 te 139 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
For the year enced 31 December 2015
205 2014
Nots €m £m
Praofit for the year a7 181
Other comprehensive income/(expense], net of tax
|tems that are not reclassified subsequently 10 income statement
Rereasurement of defined benefit plan actuarial net gans:(losses) 23 12) 3
[vi] 3
ftems that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement
Foreign currency transiabon differences - foreign operations {19) a7
Foreign currency transtation differances — equity accounted investees 4 7
Netloss on hedge of net Investments in foreign operations [12]] (17
24 ar
Other comprehensive ncome/(expense)} for the year, net of tax {26) 40
Total comprehensive mcome for the year, net of tax hal 1H
Total comprehense Income atnbutable 1o
Equity holders of the parent 49 162
Non-controing interests 2 29
Total comprehensive incorme for the year, net of tax T 191

The notes on pages 79 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated statement of
financial position
As at 31 December 2015
2015 2014
Notos £m €m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equiprment 12 2,764 2753
Lease premium prepayment 13 94 98
Investment properties 14 508 479
lnvestment i joint ventures and associates 15 255 235
Cther fnancial asseis 15 - 5
3,619 3570
Currant assets
Inventones 17 4 4
Development properties 18 81 72
Lease premium prepayment 13 2 2
Trage and other recenables 19 6 104
Cash and cash equrvalents 20 238 362
401 574
Total assets 4,020 4144
Non-current liabslities
Interest-beanng loans bonds and bormowings 21 (565) {518)
Errployea benafits 23 (LE) (15)
Provisions 24 8 4}
Other non current kabiities 25 12 (11)
Deferred tax labities 26 210 (221)
(908) {772)
Current iabilities
Interest beanng loans bends and bomowsngs 21 (178) (399)
Trade and other payables 27 (180 {197)
Provisions 24 2 ®
Incoma taxes payable {33) (35)
(400} {837)
Total lizbilivas {1,308) (1 409)
Netassets 2,12 2735

The notes on pages 79 {o 139 are an integral part of these consolidaled financial statements
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Consolidated statement of
financial position contnued

As at 31 December 2015

2015 204
Notes £m £m

Equity
Issued share capsal ] 97 q7
Share premium 243 843
Translation reserve kY 196 210
Treasury share reserve 30 4) )
Retained earnings 1,144 1117
Tatal equity attributable to equrty holders of the parent 2276 2283
Non-cantrofing interests 436 a72
Total equrty 2,712 2735

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 February 2016 and wereg signed on its behalf by

Kwek Leng Beng Aloysius Lee Tse Sang
Charman Group Chief Executve Cfficer

Registered No 3004377
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Consolidated statement of
changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Total
exciuding
Treasury non, Nor-
Share Share  Transiabon share Retaned controling controling Total
capna prermiLsm reserve resene s equaty
£m L £m £m £m m £m £m

Balance at 1 January 2014 a7 843 160 @ 1,078 2,176 503 2,679
Profit - - - - 110 110 41 151
Other comprehensiva ncome/(expense) - - 50 - 2 52 (12} a0
Total comprehensive ncome - - 50 - 112 162 29 191
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in aquity
Contnbutions by and distnbutions to owners
Dnndends - eguity holders - - - - 73) 73 - 73
Dwidends - non-centrolling imterests - - - - - - (35) (35)
Purchase of own shares - - - @ - 2 - @
Contnbution by non controling interests - - - - - - 3
Changes in ownership interests
Distnbution to minonty interests - - - - - - 28 {28)
Total transactions with owners - - - 2 73 75 50) [135)
Balance at 31 December 2014 a7 843 210 4) 1,117 2,263 472 2,735
Balance at 1 January 2015 a7 843 210 ) 1,117 2,283 472 2,735
Profit - - - - 85 B85 32 a7
Other comprehensive expense - - (14) - @ {16) (10) (26)
Total comprehensive Income/(expense) - - {14 - 63 43 22 n
Transactions with owners, recordad directly in equity
Contributions by and distrtbutions to owners
Dmdends - equity holders - - - - {44) (44} - 144)
Dradends - nan-controling nterests - - - - - - (35) (35)
Share based payment transactions net of iax) - - - - 2 2 - 2
Contnbution by non-contraling interests - - - - - - -
Changes in cwnership interests
Change of interests n subsidianes without loss of control - - - - 53 5 23 1nn
Total transactions with owners - - - - (36) (36) (58) 94)
Balance at 31 December 2015 97 843 196 )] 1,144 2,278 436 22

The notes on pages 79 to 139 ave an integral part of these consoldated financial statements
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Consolidated statement of
cash flows

For the year ended 31 Dacember 2015

2015 2014
Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Prafit far the year a7 151
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amort:satn 12,13 61 52
Share of prefit of ot vantures and asscciates i5 {1n {10
Other operating income 7 1) (30
Other aperating expense 7 84 3
Equity settled share-based transactions 2 -
Finance ncome 9 = M
Finance expense g 25 24
income tax expense 10 12 ar
Operating profit before changes in working capital and provisions 218 220
Maovement in inventones trade and other recewvables 28 76
Movement in development properties (14} (1}
Movement in trade and other payables (4} 35
Movement in prov $ions arc emcloyee berefits 1] -
Cash generated from operations 220 330
Interest paid (20) (7
Interest receved 4 5
Incorne tax paid @n (37
Net cash ganerated from operating activities 177 281
Cash flows from investing activities
Dnadends recerved from joint ventures and assoctates 1 -
Increase ininvesiment in associate - [44)
Return of capral from associate - 3
Proceeds for sale of investment 4 -
Acquisihon of subsidiary, net of cash acquired (61) -
Acquisiion of property plant and eguipment, lease premmum prepayment and investment properties {85) (429)
Net cash usad in invasting activities {141) 70
Balange carrled forward 38 (189)

The notes on pages 79 1o 139 are an integral parnt of these consolidated financial staternents
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Consolidated statement of
cash flows contnued
For the year ended 31 December 2015
2015 014

Notes £m €m
Balanca brought forward 38 (189
Cash flows from financing actrvities
Repayment of borowings 724) (49)
Drawdown of borrowings 646 377
Payment of transaction costs refated 1o borrowings - )
Dandends pad to non-controling interests 35) (35}
Purchase of own shares - @
Capital contnbution from non-controling interests - 3
Acquisiton of non-controfing mterests (1K) -
Dmdends pad to equity holders of the parent 28 44 73
Net cash generated from/{used in) financing actvities (174) 220
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (138) 31
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at beginming of the year 388 351
Effect of exchange rate fiuctuat ons on cash held (12 6
Cash and cash equrvalents at end of the year 238 388
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash angd cash eguivalents shown i the consolidated s aterment of financial pasition 238 362
Bank overdrafts included n bomowings - {4
Gash and cash equivalents for consalidated statement of cash flows 20 238 368

The notes on pages 79 to 139 are an integral part of these consohdated financial staterments
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Reporting entity

Milenrium & Copthorme Hotels pic (the “Company®) 1§ aimited company incorporated in England and Wales whose shares are publicly
traded on the London Stock Exchange The registered office 1s located at Victona House, Victona Road, Horey, Surrey RHE 7AF, Urnited
Kingdom These consolidated financial statements compnse the Company and its subsidianes (collectively the “Group”) The consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 Decermber 2015 were authonsed for 1ssue 1N accordance with a resolution ¢f the
Directors on 18 February 2016

21 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the histoncal cost basis except for nvestment propertes and, from 1 January 2005,
denvatwve financial Instrurments, financial nstruments held for trading ana financiai instruments Classified as avalable-for-sale which are
stated at ther far vaues Hotel properties are stated at cost or deemed cost Oeemed cost 1s calculated based on the hetel's frozen
valuation as at 1 January 2004 Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carmying amount and far value less costs to sell
The Group’s income statement and segmental analysis separately identifies operating profit and other operatng incorne and expense This
15 I accordance with IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Staterments’ and 1s consistent with the way that financial performance 1s measured by
management and assists i providing & meaningful analysis of the trading results of the Group The financial staterments are presented in
the Company's functional currency of stering, rounded to the nearest mition

The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework'

Basts of accounting
These consoiidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as required by EU law {JAS Regulation EC
1606/2002) Detals of the Group's accounting pokcies, including changes dunag the year, are included below

Basis of consohdation

() Subsidianes

Subsidianes are entiies controlled by the Group The Group controls an entity when it 15 expesed to, or nas nghts tg, vanable retumns from
its Irvolvermnent with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity The financial statemenits of
subsichanes are included in the consohdated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases

(1) Interests in equity-accounted investees
The Group's interests in equity-accounted investees compnse interests N joint-ventures and associates

An associate (s an entity In which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control, aver the financial and operating poicies
A joint-venture ;s an arrangement in which the Group has joint control, and where the Group has nghts to the net assets of the
arrangement, rather ihan nghts 1o its assets and abkgations for s habilities

Interests in jont-ventures and associates are accounted for using the eguity method They are initially recognised at cost, which includes
transaction costs Subsequent %o initial recognition, the consclidated financial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive Income of equity-accounted investees, until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases

in) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unreahsed NCOME and expenses ansing from Intra-group transactions, are ehminated
Unrealised gans anging from transactions wih equity accounted nvestees are elimnated against the investment to the extent of the
Group's interest In the invesiee Urvealised losses are elminated in the same way as urreahsed gains, but only o the extent that there is no
ewdence of mparment

22 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group appted for the first tme certan siandards and amendments, which are effective for annual penods beginning on or after

1 January 2015 The Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but 1s not yet
effective

SIUDLLIBLEG [eloUL
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
contnued

The nature and the effect of these changes are disclosed below Although these new standards and amendments applied for the first time
in 2015, they did not have a matenal impact on the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group The nature and the impact of
each new standard or amendment are descnbed below

Amendments to |IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans Employee Contributions

IAS 19 requres an entity to consider contnbutions from employees or third parties when accounting for defined benefit plans Where the
contnbutions are linked 1o service, they should be attnbuted to penods of service as a negative benefit These amendments clanfy that, If
the amount of the contnbutions 1s independent of the number of years of service, an entity is permitted 1o recognise such contnbutions as a
reduction 1n the service cost in the penod in which the senrvice 1s rendered, instead of allccating the contnbutions 1o the periods of service
This amendment 1s effective for annual penods baginning on or after 1 July 2014 The guantitative impact of the change is negligible

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

With the exception of the improverment relating 1o IFRS 2 Share-based Payment applied to share-based payment transactions with a grant
date on or after 1 July 2014, all other mprovements are effecive for accounting penods beginning on of after 1 July 2014 The Group has
applied these mprovernents for the first time in these consolidated financial statements They inciude

() IFRS 2 Share-based Payment

This improvement 1s applied prospectively and clanfies vanous 1ssues relating to the definitions of performance and service conditions which
are vesting conditions The clanfications are consistent with how the Group has dentified any performance and service conditons which
are vesting condiions N previous penods  Thus, these amendments did not impact the Group's financial statements or accounting policies

{n) IFRS 3 Business Combtnnations

The amendment 1s applied prospectively and clanfies that all contingenit consideration arangements classified as habilities {or assets) ansing
from a business comoination should be subsequently measured at far value through profit or loss whether or not they fall within the scope
of 1AS 39 There have been no change in contingent considerations, thus, this amendment did not impact the Group's financial staternents
The accounting policy has been changed accordingly

(in) IFRS 8 Operating Segments
The amendments are applied retrospectively and clanfy that

» An entity must disclose the judgements made by management in applying the aggregation cntena in paragraph 12 of IFRS B, including a
brief descnption of operating segments that have been aggregated and the economic charactenstics (e g , sales and gross margins) used
to assess whether the segments are ‘similar’, and

« The reconciliaticn of segment assets to total assets 1s only required 1o be disclosed if the reconciiation 1s reported to the chiefl operating
decision maker, similar 1o the required disclosure for segment labilities

The Group has not applied the aggregation cntena n IFRS 8 12 The Group has presented the reconciliation of segment assets to total
assets n previous penods and continues to disclose the same in Note 5 in this penod's financial statements as the reconciliation 1s reported
1o the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of therr decision making
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23 Summary of significant accounting policies
Except for the changes explained in Note 2 2, the Group has consistently apphed the following accounting peolicies to all pencds presented
In these consolidated financial staterments

A Busmess combinations and goodwill

Business combinatians are accountad for using the acquistion method  The cost of an acquisition 1s measured as the aggregate of the
consicieration transferred, measured at acquisition date far vaelue and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree For each
business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controling interest in the acquiree either at far value or at the proportionate share of
the acquree's identfiable net assets Acquisiticn costs iIncurred are expensed and dentfiable net asset acqured are measured at the
acquisition date far value

When the Group acqurres a business, It assasses the financial assets and liabilifies assumed for appropnate classification and designation
In accordance with the contractual terms, economic creumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acguisiion date This includes the
separation of embeddec dervatives in host contracts by the acquiree

If the business combination 18 achieved In stages, the acquisiticn date far value of the acqurrer’s previously held equrty inierest In the
acguiree 1s remeasured 1o far value as at that date through the income statement

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer wall be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date Subseguent changes
10 the farr value of the contingent consideration classified as an asset or habiity that is a financial instrument and within the scope of IAS 39
Fnancial Instruments Recognition and Measurement, will be recognised in the staterment of orofit or loss I the contingent consideration Is
classified as equity, it 1s not remeasured and its subsequent settlement 1s accounted for within eguity

Goodwill1s inhally measured at cost, beng the excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the Group’s netl identfiable
assets acqured and labilities assurmed, and 1s allocated to each of the Group's hotels that are expected to benefit from the combination if
the consideration 1s lower than the farr value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference I1s recogrised n the income
staterment

After intial recognition, goodwill 1 measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwil acquired in a business combination 1s, from the acquisiion date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the ccmiination, imespective of whether other assets or kabities of the acguiree are assigned to those units

Where goccwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation witfun that unit 15 disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the disposed cperation is Included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gan or loss on disposal
Goodwll disposed In these circumstances 15 measured based on the relative values of the disposed cperation and the portion of the
cash-generating und retained
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

B  Foreign currency
The financial statements of each of the Group's businesses are prepared in the functional currency appiicable to that business

() Foreign currency translation
Transactions in foreign curencies other than the functional currency are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the cate of the
transaction

Monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into sterting at the foreign
exchange rate at that date Foreign exchange differences ansing on translation are recognised in the income statement Non-monetary
assets and llabilities that are measured in terms of histoncal cost i a foreign currency are translated at the date of the transaction Nen-
monetary assets and labiities dencrminated in foreign currencies that are stated at far value are translated into steriing at foreign exchange
rates ruling at the date the far value was determined

(1) Financial statements of foreign operations

On consolidation, the assets and llabilities of foreign operations, including fair vaiue adustments ansing on censolidation, are translated tc
stering at forexgn exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated to
sterling at rates approximating to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange differences ansing on
retranslation are recogrised directly In equity in the foreign currency translation reserve VWhen a foreign operation 1s drsposed of, in part or
in fult, the relevant amount in the translation reserve s transferred to the income statement

{m} Net investment in foreign operations
Exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment in foreign cperations, and of related hedges are taken to translation
reserve They are released into the ncome statement upon disposal or partial dispesal of the foreign operation

C  Derwative financial instruments

The Group uses denvative financial instruments to hedge its exposure (o foreign exchange and interest rate nsks ansing from cperational,
financial and Investmeant actvities In accordance with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or 1ssue dervative financial instrurments
for trading purposes However, denvatives that do not qualfy for hedge accounting are accounted far as trading nstruments

Dernvative financial instruments are recognised nitlly at fair value, any diectly attricutable transaction costs are recognised n the Income
statement as incurred  Subsequent to initial recogniion, denvative financial INstruments are stated at far value The gain or loss on
remeasurement to far value Is recognised immedhately in the income statement However, where dervatives gualfy for hedge accounting,
recagnition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the tem being hedged

The far value of nierest rate swaps 1s the estimated amount that the Group would receve or pay to terminate the swap at the balance
sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties The fair value of forward
exchange contracts Is therr guoted market price at the balance sheet date, being the present value of the quoted forward pnce
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D Hedges

{iy Cash flow hedges

When a denvative financal instrument is designated as a hedge of the vanability in cash flows of a recognised asset or hiability or a highty
probable transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on the denvatie financial instrument 1s recognised directly In eguity When the
forecast transaction subsequently results in the recegnition of a non-financial asset cr non-financial lability, the associated cumulative gain
or loss 1s removed frem equity and included in the initial cost or other carmying amount of the non-financial asset or habiity If a hedge of a
forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, then the associated gains and losses
that were recognised directly In equity are reclassified to the income statement in the sarme penod or pencds dunng which the asset
acquired or lability assumed affects the income statement {i e when nterest Income or expense Is recagrised)

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the above policy, the associated cumulative gain or loss 1s removed from equity and
recogrused In profit or loss in the same perod or penods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss The ineffective
part of ary gan or loss s recognised immediately in the income statement

When a hedging instrument expires or 18 sold, terminated or exercised or the entity revokes designation of the hedge relationship but the
hedged forecast transaction is stil expected to occur, the cumulatve gain or 1oss at that paint remans in equity and 1s recognised n
accordance with the above policy when the transaction cccurs If the hedged transaction 1s no longer expected to take place, then the
cumulative unreahsed gan or loss recognised i equity 18 recognised immediately ¢ the income statement

(1) Hedge of monetary assets and latilities
When a denvative firancial nstrument 1s used as an economic hedge of the foreign exchange exposure of a recogrised monetary asset or
liabyity, hedge accounting 1s not applied and any gain or koss on the hedging instrument 1S recognised in the ncome statement

{m) Hedge of net investment in foreign aperations
The portion of the gan ¢r loss on an instrument used to hedge a net investment 1 a forexgn operation that 1s determined to be an effective
hedge 1s recognised directly in equity within the {ranslation reserve The ineffective partion is recognised mmediately in the income statement

E Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

{} Recogmition and measurement

Land and buldings (cther than invesiment properties) are stated at cost, except as allowed under IFRS 1 transition rules, less depreciation
and any provision for mpairment All other property, plant and equipment s stated at cost less depreciation and any provision for
impaimment Any imparment of such properties below deoreciated histoncal cost 1s charged to the income statement

Under the transition provisions of IFRS 1, land and buldings which were previously revalued under UK GAAF were measured on the basis
of their deemed cost, being therr UK GAAP camying value, including revaluations, as at 1 January 2004 beng the effective date of the
Group's conversion to [FRS

I
3
=1
{iiy Depreciation 2
Freehold land 1s not depreciated Al other assets are depreciated to ther residual values on a straight-hne basis over ther estimated useful _J_;
Ives as follows §
a
Buikiing core 50 years or lease term f shorter 5
Bulaing surface firishes and services 30 years o iease term if shorter
Ptant anct machinery 15-20 years
Fumiture and equipment 10 years -
Soft fumishings 5 -7 years =
Compuler equipment 5 years =
Software up 10 & years -
Moter vehicles 4 years

No residual values are ascribed to bulding surface finishes and services Besidual values ascnbed 1o buldng core depend on the nature,
location and tenure of each property
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

(i) Subsequent costs
Capital expenditure on major projects 1s recorded separately within property, plant and equipment as capital work in progress Once the
praject 1s complete the balance 1s transferred to the appropnate fixed asset categones Capdal work In progress 1s not depreciated

Interest attnbutable to funds used to finance the construction or acquisition of new hotels or majer extensions to existing hotels 1s
capitahised gross of tax relief and added to the cost of the hotel core

Operating supplies, which include ¢hina, inen, glass and siverware, were stated at therr deemed costs as at 1 January 2008 and
subsumed into the costs of the hotel buldings Subsequent renewals and replacements of such stocks and new supplies upon ntial hotel
opening are wntten off as incurred to the Income statement

F Leases

{l Leased assets
Leases where the Group assumes substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases The leased asset s
intially recorded at the lower of far value and the present value of minmum lease payments

The equivalent liability, categensed as appropnate, 18 inciuded within current or non-current labilites Assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their useful economic Ives Finance charges are allocated to accounting periods over the penod of the lease
to produce constant rates of return on the cutstanding balance

Rentals payable by the Group under operating leases are charged to the income statament on a straight-ine basis over the lease lerm even
if payments are not made on the same basis In cases where rents comprise a fixed and a vanable element, the fixed element only 1s
charged to the Income statement on a straight-ine basis with the vanable amounts beng charged as they become due Lease incentives
received are recognised as an ntegral part of the total lease expense

Rentals recenvatie by the Group as lessor undler operating leases, including the sub-letting of retail outlets within hotel properties, are
credited to the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the lease term even If the receipts are not made on such a basis Costs,
Inciuding depreciation incurred i eaming the lease INncome, are recognised as an expanse

(m) Lease premium

The Group makes and receves indial payments on entenng Inte koth long and short leases of land and bulldings Where payment for
leased land 1s equivalent to the purchase of the freshold interest, the lease 15 classified as a finance lease All other payments for leases of
land are classified as cperating leases

On the statement of financial position, finance lease payment attrbutable to the land is recorded as property, plant and equipment and for
operating leases, the land 1s recorded as a lease premium prepayment Both lease types are charged to the income statement on a
straight-ling basis over the term of the lease Interest atinbutable to funds 10 finance the purchase or lease of land 1s captaiised gross of tax
refief and added 1o the cost of lease

In the case of lease premiums recewved, these are reflected on the statement of financial position as deferred income, appropnately
classified between current and non-current liabiiies and are crecited to the Income staterment on a straight-ine basis over the term of the
lease

G Impairment

The camryng amounts of the Group's assets, other than investment properlies, iInventones, employee benefit assets and deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there s any indication of impairment If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount Is estimated

The recoverable amount of assets 15 the greater of therr net seling price and value N use In assessing value In use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounited to theyr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of
money and the risks specific to the asset
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Impaiment 1s recogrised in the income statement whenever the camying amount of an asset or Its cash-generating unit exceeds Its
recaverable amount Impaimment losses are reversed If there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount Where permissible under IFRS, an imparrment loss 15 reversed only 1o the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment had been recogrised

In the case of equity nvestiments classified as avalable-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in far value of the asset below s cost 1S
considered In determining whether the assetis mpared I any such evidence exists for avalable-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any imparrment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised n the income statement — 15 removed from equity and recognised in the income statement

H Investment properties

Investment properties heldt by the Group are properties which are held ether 1o eam rental mcome or for capital appreciaticn or both
Investrnent properties are stated at far value Any increase or decrease In the farr value on annual revaluation 1s recognised n the iIncome
staterment in accordance with IAS 40 Investment Property In limited circumstances, the deterrmination of far value 1s uncertain, and these
properties are carmed at cost Imparment analysis over these properies & camed out annually

An external Independent valuer, having an appropnate recogmsed professional gualfication and recent expenence i the location and
category of the property being vaiued, values the portfolio annually The far values are based on market values, being the estmated
amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation betwaen a wiling buyer and a wiling seller in an arm's length
transaction after proper marketng wherein the partes had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion

1 Inventaries
Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable value Net realisable value 1s the estmated seling pnce in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and seling expenses

J Development properties

Development properties are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value They are held for sale in the short term and are therefore
classified as current assets The cost of development properties Includes nterest and other related expenditure incurred 1N order 1o get the
asset ready for its intended use Borowing costs payable on loans funding a development property are also capialised, on a specific
identification basis, as part of the cest of the development property until the completion of development Payments recenved from
purchasers ansing from pre-sales of the property units pror 10 the completion are ncluded as deferred income under other financial
iabilties 1n the statement of financial pesition

K Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and call deposits with an onginal maturty of three months or less

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents

L Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of fransaction costs ncurred  Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortsed cost
any difference between proceeds (net of transaction costs} and the redemption value 1§ recogrised in the income statement over the pencd
of the borrowings using the effective interest method
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M  Income tax
Income tax an profit or loss compnses current and deferred tax Income tax is recognised in the ncome statement except 10 the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in equity, In which case it 1s recogrused in egurty

Current tax 1s the expacted tax payable on the taxabie Income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax s provided for using the balance sheet methoed, providing for temporary differences between the carmying amounts of assets
and lizblities for financial reparting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes  The following temporary differences are not
provided for () the intial recognition of assets or liabdities that affect neither accounting ror taxable profit, and (v} differences refating to
Investrments in subsidianes to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax prowided (s
based on the expected manner of realisation cr settlement of the camying amount of assets and iabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that 1t is protable that future taxable profits wil be avalable aganst which the asset
can be utilsed Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probabie that the benefit will be realised

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only to the extent that {) the Group has a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets
aganst current tax labities, () the Group intends to settle net, and {n) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty

N Employee benefits

() Defined contrnbution plans
Obligations for contrbuticns to defined contnbution pension plans are recognised as an expense In the income statement

(i) Defined benefit plans

The Group's net cbligation in respect of defined benefit post-employment plans, including pension plans, is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future bensfit that employees have earmed In refum for therr senvice in the gurrent and prior perods  That
benefit 1s discountad to determine its present vaiue, and the farr value of any plan assets 1s deducted The calculation 1 perfarmed by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method

Wher the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the Increased benefit relating to past service by employees 1s recognised
immediately as an expense n the ncome statement

The Group recognises remeasurement gains and lesses within the consclhidated statement of comprehensive ncome i the penod In which
they cceour

The Group determines the net interest expense (ncome) on the net defined benefit kabilities (asset) for the period by apolying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit obhigation at the beginning of the annual penod to the then net defined benefit lability (asset).
taking nto account any changes in the net defined benefit Lability (asset) dunng the perod as a result of contnbutions and benefit
payrments Net Interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the income statement

{m} Long-term service benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term senice benefits, other than post-employment plans, 1S the amount ¢f future benefit that
employees have earmed In return for ther service I the current and pnor penods The obiigation is caiculated using the projected unit credit
method and 15 discounted to its present value and the far value of any plan assets 15 deducted




Annual report and accounts 2015 Financial statements 87

{v) Share-based payment transachions
The share-based incentve schemes allow the Group's employees to acquire shares of Millennium & Copthome Hotels plc

The cost of equity-settied transactions with employees for awards granted after 7 November 2002 1s measured by reference to the far
value at the date on which they are granted The far value 1s determined by using an appropnate pncing model, further detais of which are
gven in Note 23

The cost of equity-sattled transactions is recognised, together with a comesponding Increase in equity, over the penod in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfled The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settied transacticns at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting pencd has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will uitimately vest The income statement expense or credit for a penod represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that penod

No expense is recognised for awards {hat do not ultmately vest, except for equity-settied transactions where vesting 1s condibonal upon a
market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting imespective of whether or nat the market or non-vesting condition 1s satisfied,
pravided that all cther performance and/or service conditions are satisfied

Where the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expanse recognised 1s the expense as If the terms had
not been modified. If the onginal terms of the award are met An additional expense is recognised for any redification that increases the
tolat farr value of the share-based payment transaction, or is ctherwise benefical to the employee as measured at the date of modification

Where an equity-settled award 15 cancelled, it 1s treated as if t vested on the date of cancellation, and any expensa not yet recogrused for
the award 15 recognised immediately This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity or the
employee are not met However, If a new award (s substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the
date that it 1s granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as If they were a roodificaton of the onginal award, as descnbed in the
previous paragragh All cancellations of equity-settled iransaction awards are treated equally

The dilutve effect of outstanding options 1s refiected as adcitional share dilution i the computation of diuted eamings per share (further
details are given In Note 11)

O Provisions

A provision is recognised on the balance sheet when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligationas a result of a past event,
and it 1s probable thal an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the cbhgation If the effect 1s matenal, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash fiows at a pre-lax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and, when appropnate, the nsks specific to the liability Further detalls on provisions are given N Note 24

P  Revenue and its recognition
Revenue compnses

Income from the ownership and operaticn of hotels - recognisedt at the point at which the accommodation and related services are

provicted,

« Management fees — eamed from hotels managed by the Group, usually under long-term contracts with the hotel owner Management
fees include a base fee, which 1s generalty a percentage of hotel revenue, and/or an incentive fee, which 1s generally based aon the hotel's
profitabiity, recogrused when eamed on an accrual basis under the terms of the centract,

« Franchise fees - receved in connection with kcensing of the Group's brand names, usually under long-temm contracts with the hotel
owner The Group charges franchige royalty fees as a percentage of room revenue, recogrised when eamed on an accrual basis under
the terms of the agreement.

« Income from property rental - recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term, lease ncentives granted are recognised as an
integral part of the: total rental income, and

« Development property sales - recogrised when the significant nsks ana rewards of ownership have passed to the buyer, which s usually

when legal title transfers depending on junsdiciions The tngger for revenue recognition depends on the laws within each jursdiction
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Q Dmdend distnbution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders 1s recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements in the penad in which the dwvidends
are appropnately authonsed and approved for payment and are no longer at the discreticn of the Company Unpad dividends that do not
rmeet these cntena are disclosed In the notes to the financial staterments

R  Operating segment information

Disciosure of segmental information 1s prncipatly presented n respect of the Group's geographical segments The segments reported
reflect the operating Information included n intemai reports that the Chief Operating Decision Maker {(“CODM™, which 1s the Board, regulary
reviews Further detals are given n Note &

An operating segment 1s a component of the Group that engages In business activities fromm which it ray earn revenues and incur
expenses, Including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components Discrate financial
information is reported to and 1s reviewed by the CCDM on a geographical basis Operating segments have Chief Operating Cfficers
{“COQs") or eguivalent who are directly accountable for the functioning of therr segments and maintain reguiar contact with the Group Chuef
Executve Officer and Chairman of the CODM to discuss the operational ang financial performance The CODM makes decisions about
allocation of resources to the regions managed by the COOs No operating segments have been aggregated to form the repoertable
operating segments

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include iterns diractly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis Unallocated itemns prncipally compnse interest-beanng loans, borrowings, cash and cash eguvalents, net finance
expense, taxation balances and corporate expenses

S Non-current assets held-for-sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups compnsing assets and labiliies) that are expscted to be recovered pnmanly through sale rather
than through continuing use are classified as held-for-sale Generalty the assets {or disposal group} are measured at the lower of ther
carrying amount and fair value less cost o sell Any imparment loss on a disposal group 15 first allocated to property, plant and equipment
and lease premium prepayment, and then o remaining assets and labilites on a pro rata basis, except that no loss 1s allocated to
inventones, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets and investment property, which continue to be measured in
accordance with the Group's accounting policies Impairment losses on inihal classification as helg-for-sale and subsequent gains or losses
on remeasurement are recognised In the income statement Gains are not recogrised in excess of any cumnulative impairment 10ss

T Other financial assets and habilities
Trade nvestments are classified as available-for-sale assets and are included under non-current assets within *other financial assets’ They
are recorded at market valug with movements 1 value 1aken to eguity Any impairment to value 1s recorded in the income statement

Trade and other recenvables are stated at ther nominal amount {discounted if matenal) less any impaiment

Trade and other payabies are stated at thewr nominal amount {discounted If matenal}

U  Related parties

For the purpose of thess financial statements, parties are considered 10 be related to the Group If the Group has the abilty, directly or
indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party making financial and operatng decisions, Cr vice versa, or
where the Group and the party are subject to common control or common significant nfluence Related parties may be indviduals or other
entities

3 Accounting estimates and judgements
Management has discussed with the Audit & Risk Committee the selection and disclosure of the Group’s cntical accounting pelicies and
estimates and the apphcation of these policies and estimates

The preparation of financial statements undsr 1FRS requires the Group to make estimates and assumphons that affect the reported
amounts of assets and llabities and the disclosure of contingencies and the reported amount of revenue and expenses dunng the year
The Group evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis Such estimates and judgemenits are based upon fustoncal
expenence and ather factors it beleves to be reasonable under the circumstances, which form the basis for making judgements about the
carrying value of assets and liabiibes that are not readily apparent from cther sources
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Certain entical accounting policies, among others, affect the Group's more significant estimates and assurmptions used in prepanng the
consolidated financial statements Actual results could differ from the Group's estimates and assumptions Key estimates and judgements
have been made in the following areas, of which the mest significant are listed first

Asset carrying values

Management performs an assessment at each balance sheet date of assets across the Group where nsk ¢f impairment has been identified
Key judgement areas include the camying values of property, plant and equipment and investrment properties, investment in and loans to
Jont ventures and associates, and development properties The recovery of these assets 15 dependent on future cash flows being
recenvable and the prowvision of fuiure serices or goods by third parties

Where risk of impairment has been identified an imparment review bas been performed on property, plant and equipment, lease pramium
prepayments and investments in and loans to jomt ventures and associates held acrass the Group on a cash generating basis Where
appropriate, external evaluations are also undertaken The impaimment review 1s performed on a “valug I use' basis which reguires
estimation of future net operating cash flows, the time penod over which they will occur, an apprograte discount rate and appropnate
growth rates The discount rates used reflect appropnate sensitvities invotved 1n the assessment Discount rates used for impared
properties and investment properties are disclosed n Notes 12 and 14

Investment properties

The Group holds a number of nvestment properties and accounts for such properties In accordance with the accounting policy set out In
Note 2 3H The Group owns hotel assets which are [eased to external third parties with lease rentals and related charges varying according
to the agreement involved The Group accounts for such hotel assets in its financial statements in accordance with the accounting pelcy
sef cut In Note 2 3H

Where the indicators are such that on balarce the Group 1S shown to be a passwve Investor, the relevant property 1s accounted for in
accordance with 1AS 40 and the Group accounts for the farr value change through the income statement as cther operating Income or
expense

Consolidation of entihies in which the Group holds less than a majonty of voting nghts (de facto control)

In 2014, the new consoldation accounting standard, IFRS 10 introduced a new control model that focuses on whether the Group has
power Qver an investee, exposure or nghts to vanable retums from its (Mvolvement with the Investea and ability to use its power to affect
those retumns

This required the Group to consicier whether ¢ has de facto control over s Investees, particulardy when it owned less than 50% of the
voting nghis In 2014, in accordance with the transitonal provisions of IFRS 10, the Group reassessed the control conclusion for its
investees and changed its controi conclusion n respect of its nvestment in COL Hospitality Trusts (*COLHTY), which was previously
accounted for as an associate using the equity method  Although the Group owns less than half of the voting power of the investee,
management determined that, under IFRS 10, the Group has had control over the investee since its Inception This I1s because a 100%
owned subsidiary of the Group, M&C REIT Management Limited acts as REIT Manager with 1ts fees having a performance-basec element
and therefore the Group has exposure to vanable returns from its involvement with the investee  Accordingly, in 2014, the Group applied
acquisition accounting 1o the tvestment from the year it was first established in 2006, and restated the relevant amounts as if the investee
had been consolidated from that year This judgement was reconsidered thes year and coniinues to be appropnate

Business combination

For each acguisition, the Group has to make a judgement whether to account the transaction as an asset purchase or a business
compination, which results in a different accounting treatment In particular, under business combination accounting, goodwill and
addtionat intangible assets may anse and the valuaton of acquired assets 1s complex In addition, transaction costs can be capitalised in an
asset acquisiion but have to be charged through the income statement for a business combination The classification of each acguisition
and related accounting 15 hghly jJudgemental

Taxation

The tax charge for the year 1s recognised in the income staternent and the statement of comprehensive income, according to the
accounting ireatment of the related transaction The tax charge compnses both current and deferred tax The calculation of the Group's
total tax charge Involves a degree of estimation and judgerment, particularty when tax treatment for certain items cannot be determined until
a final resclution In addition, recagnition of deferred tax assets 1s judgemental as it depends on expected timing and level of fJuture taxable
Ncorme

SUBWL|S (BIoUCH]




ll] Millenmum & Copthorme Hotels plc Financial statements a0

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

Prowvisions for tax accruals require Judgerments on the interpretation of tax legslation, developments In tax case law and the potenua
outcomes of tax audits and appeals The final resolution of certain of these tems may gve nse to malenal Income statement and/or cash
flow vanances

Land leases classification

The Group holds a number of hotels with leases of land that are deterrmned to have an indefinite economic ife These are Classified as a
finance lease, even if at the end of the lease term title does not pass to the lessee In determining whether the lease of land should be
accounted for as a finance or an operating lease, the following factors were considered

= transfer of ownership
* purchase options
* present value of minimum lease payrents in companson 1o far value of land

Going concern

The Group's business actvmues, together with the factors Iikety to affect s future develcpment, performance and position are set out i the
Strategic Report on pages 14 to 33 The financial position of the Group, its cash fiows, fiquidity posHion and borrowing factities are
descnbed in the Strategie Report — Financial performance on pages 2010 25 and in the key performance indicalors on page 19 In addition,
Note 22 of the financial staternents includes the Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing its capdal, its financial nsk
management obyecives, details of its financial instruments and hedging actvities, and s exposures to credt nsk and liquidity nsk The
Group has considerable financial resources and plans for refinancing matunng facdites are under way

Cash flow forecasts for the Group have been prepared for a penod In excess of twelve months from the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements These forecasts reflect an assessment of curvent market conditions The forecasts completed on this
basis show that the Group will be abite to operate within the current committed debt faciities and show continued comphance with the
financal covenants In addition, management has considered vanous mitigating actions that could be taken in the event that market
conditions are worse than ther current assessment Such measures include further reduction in costs and i capital expenditure On the
pasis of the exercise as described above and the avatable committed debdt faciities, the: Directars have a reasonable expeciation that the
Group and Company have adequate resources 1o continue In operational existence for at least 12 months from the signing of this annual
report Accordingly, they continue to adopt the gaing concem basis In prepanng the financial staterments of the Group and the Company

In assessing whether the Group 1s a gaing concem, the Directors follow a review process which 1S consistent with the prnciples set out In
the “Guidance on Risk Management, Internal Control and Related Financial and Business Reporting 2014" pubkshed by the Financial
Reperting Council

Defined benefit pension plans

The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension plans As set cut in Note 23, the calculation of the present value of the Group's
defined benefit obligations at each penod end 1s subject 10 significant estimation An approprately qualified, independent actuary 1S used tQ
undertake this calculation The assumptions made by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuanal
assumptions, which due to the tmescale cevered may not necessanly be borme out in practice The valuation of scheme assets 1s based
on therr farr value at the talance sheet date As these assets are not intenced to be sold in the short term, ther values may be subject to
significant change before they are realised In reviewing the work of the ndependent actuary, management 1S required 10 exercisa
jucgement to satisfy themseives that aperopnate weght has been afforded 1o macro economic factors

Detalls of ire assumptions used are set out In Note 23

Measurement of far values

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of far values, for both financial and non financial
labiities

The Group has an established control framework with respect 0 the measurement of far values Managerment reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuations adjustments 1f thid party |nformation is used to measure far values, then management assesses the
evidence obtaned from third parties to support the conciusion that such valuations meet the requirements of IFRS, ncluding the level in
their fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classfied Significant valuation 1ssues are reported to the Group Audit & Risk
Committee
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When measunng farr values, the Group uses market observable data as far as possitle Far values are categorised inte different levels in a
farr value hierarchy basad on the Inputs used in the valuations techriques as follows

« Level 1 quoted prices {unadjusted} In active markets for identical assets and liabilities
s Level 2 nputs other than quoted prices led in Level 1 that are observable for an asset or lability, either directly or indirectly
¢+ Level 3 inputs for an asset or liahility that are not based on observable market data

If the inputs used to measure the fai value of an asset or kabiity might be categonsed in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the
farr value measurement 1s categonsed i its entirety i the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that 1s significant to
the entire measurement

Further Information about the assumptions made in measunng fair values 18 included in Note 14 ‘Investment Properties’ and Note 23
‘Employee Benefits’

4 New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The following standards and interpretations, which have been 1ssued by the IASE, become effective after the current year end and have not
been early adopted by the Group

international Accounting Standards {IAS/AFRS/IFRIC) Effectve date

1AS 1 Amendments Presentaton of the Financial Staternents { January 2016
IFRS 11 Jant arangements Accounting for Acquistions of Interests 1 January 2016
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 0 Fnarcial Instuments Classificaticn ard measurement 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The Group 15 assessing the patential impact on its consoldated financial statements resuling from mplementation of these standards

5 Operating segment information
Discicsure of segmental nformation 1s prncipally presented in respect of the Group's geographical segments

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attnbutable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis Unaliocated tems prncipally compnse interest-beanng loans, bomowings, cash and cash equivalents, net financial expense, taxation
balances and corporate expenses

Geographical segments
The hotel and property operations are managed on a worldwide basis and operate 1n seven principal geographical areas as follows

* New York

Regional US

Londen

Rest of Europe (including the Middle East)
* Singapore

* Rest of Asia

+ Australasia

The segments reported reflect the operating segment information inciuded in the intemal reperts that the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(*CODM"), which 1s the Board, reguiarly reviews

The reportable segments are aligned with the structure of the Group's intemal organisation which Is based according 1o geograptvcat
region Discrete financial nformation 1s reported to and 1s reviewed by the CODM on a geographical basis Operating segmenis have Chief
Operating Officers (*COQs") or equvalent who are directly accountable for the functioning of their segments and who maintain regular
contact with the Group Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the CODM to discuss the operaticnal and financial performance The
CODM makes decisions about allocation of resources to the regions managed by the COOs

The results of CDLHT have been incorporated within the existing geographical regions In addition, CDLHT operations are reviewed
separately by ts board on a monthly basis

-
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Segment results
205
Regional Rest of Flesgt Central Total
Naw York us Londan Europe Singapore of Asia Australasia Costs Group
€m Em £m £m £m €m £m £m £m
Revenue
Hotel 138 118 124 75 122 148 40 - 765
Property operations - 3 - - 2 7 23 - 35
RET - - - 3 12 20 12 - 47
Total revenue 138 121 124 78 138 175 75 - 847
Hotel gross operating profit 33 25 63 20 54 49 17 - 261
Hotel fied charges ' 27 (41:!] {20) (10 3 133 16 - (117)
Hotal operatng prom & 7 43 10 31 16 " - 144
Proparty aperating crofit/{loss) - (4] - - 1 6 1 - 17
REIT operati~g prcfit/loss) - - - {1 )] 7 12 - 15
Central costs - - - - - - - 21) 21
Other cperating income ? - - - - - 32 - - 32
Other operating expense 2 (23) (1) - (45) {1 37) (1 - 78
Other operating ncorme - REIT 2 - - - - 1 - 8 - 9
Other operatng expense - REIT 2 - - - - - &) @ - 6
Operating profit/{loss) 1M -] 43 ©) 49 20 39 =N 112
Share of joirt venivres and associatas pro’t - - 1 - 16 - - 7
Add Depreciation and amorisation 7 9 4 11 21 2 1 61
EBITDA? (10) 14 49 3] 57 41 208 190
Less Depreciaton and amartisation 81)
Net fnarce expense (20}
Profit before tax 109

1 Hotel fixed charyes iInchide deprecation, amort sat on of lease premum wrepaymerts

2 See Note 7 for detats of gther operating Income and expense
3 EBTDA 13 earnings befors nterest tax depreaiation and amonisation

property rent taxes ANd INsUrdnue operating lease rentals and maragetnent (zes.




Arnual repert and accounts 2015 Financtal statements S3

2014
Regwnal Rest of Rest of Centrat Totad
New York us London Europe Singapore Asla  Australass Gosts Group
£m £m £m £m m £m £m £m £m
Revenue
Hotel 123 106 125 71 131 152 42 - 750
Property operations - 2 - - =] 1 24 36
RET - - - - 11 16 13 - 40
Total revenue 123 108 125 Il 151 169 79 - 826
Hotel gross operating profit 35 21 64 18 62 53 17 - 270
Hotel fixed cnarges ' 22) (18 (19 (1 @ 28) ) - (102)
Hotel operating profit 3 5 45 7 60 25 13 - 168
Praperty operating profit/floss) - {1 - a - a8 - 15
REIT gperatirg profit/{loss) - - - - 3) 6 13 - 18
Central casts - - - - - - {31) {31)
Other cperating Income 2 - - - - 3 16 - - 19
Other operating income - REIT 2 - - - - 5 1 2 - 8
Operating profit/(less) 13 4 45 7 73 48 x 31 185
Share o, jont vertures and associztes profit - - - - 10 - - 10
Add Depreciation and amariisation 6 7 5 3 11 17 2 1 82
EEBITDA " 19 1 50 10 84 15 38 {30) 257
Less Depreciaticn and amortisation 52
Net finance exganse (17)
Profit before tax 188
1 Ilotdl fixed cnargos inclune dopreciation. amartisation of leaso promum prepayrants propaorty remt Laxes and inswiame ~pertng icase rentzis and mana e ment fees
2 See Nota 7 for detais of cther operating INcome ana expensa
3 EBMDA s sarnings before interest tax depreciation and amortisation
Segmental assets and habilities
2m5
Regional Restof Rest of Total
New York us London Europs Singapore Asla Australasia Group
£m £m €m £m £m £m £m £m
Hotel operating assets 540 293 490 248 17 602 138 2328
REIT operating assets - - - 62 528 127 128 875
Hotel operating abililes (24) 31) {19 27) (19 63) ¥} (190) -
REIT operating kabiities - - - 2 N 2) @ (17 =
Investment in jaint ventures and assocrtes - - - - - 112 - 112 ;,'
Total hotel operating net assets 516 262 47 281 515 76 287 3,108 "i
Progerty operating assets - 33 - - 75 135 a1 324 g
Property cperaing habiies - (1} - - 7} 1)) [C) (15) =
Investment in joint vertures and associates - - - - - 143 - 143 ]
"
Total property operating net assots - 32 - - 68 275 77 452
Deferred 1ax kabilities 210 -
Income taxes payable (33 z
Net debt (605) -

Net assels 2,712
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continued
204
Rastof: Festof Totak
New York us London Euwcpe Sngapore Asa Australasa Grxp
m £m m £m €m £m £m £m
Hotel operating assets 542 279 502 242 18 654 147 2,382
REIT operating assets - - - - 539 128 162 826
Hotel operating liabiibes 134) 22) (34) {19) 21 59) ) {197
REIT operaung iabiities - - - - (15 3 2 20
investment in int ventures and associates - - - - - 96 - 96
Total hotel operating net assots 508 257 468 223 521 816 299 3,002
Property operating assets - kil - - a7 102 74 304
Property operatng liabities - m - - 8 ] (] (19
Investment in joint ventures and associates - - - - - 139 - 139
Total proparty operating net assets - 30 - - 89 235 70 424
Deferred tax labiliues 221)
Income taxes payable (35)
Net debt (525)
Net assots 2,735
Geographic mformation
25 2014
£m £m
Revenue from external customers
Urited States 259 231
United Kingdom 175 171
Singapore 136 151
New Zealang 66 69
Tawan 55 50
South Korea 40 46
China 24 23
Maldives 15 16
Malaysia 14 16
France 12 14
Australia 2 e
Phiippings 8 <]
Indonesia 5
Germany 0 5
Other AN 13
Total revenue per conschdated ncoma statement B4a7 826

The revenue Information above 1s based on the location of the business The £847m (2014 £826m) revenue 15 constituted of £765m
{2014 £750m) of hotel revenue, £35m (2014 £36m) of groperty cperations revenue and £47m (2014 £40m) of REIT revenue The
property operations revenue compnses £23m (2014 £24m) from New Zealand, £2m {2014 £9m) from Singapere and £10m (2014 £3m)
from other countres
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2015 2014 :

Em £m
Non-current assats
Urited States 849 830
United Kingdomn €693 630
Singapore 610 €28
Tawan 238 258
China 257 251
New Zealand 185 180
South Keorea 178 175
Japan 168 131
Australiz 101 109
Maldives ] gz
Heng Keng B8G 79
Malaysia 55 &4
ttaly 52 56
France 34 37
Philppines 12 31
Indonesia 1 11
Others (including Middle East) 1 -
Total nan-current assets per consolidated statement of financial position 3,619 3570

Non-current assats for this purpose consist of property, plant and equioment, lease premium prepayment, investment properties,
Investment in joint ventures and associates, loans due from associate and other financial assets

6 Administrative expenses
The following items are inciuded within administrative expenses

2015 2014
£m £m
Included n administrative expenses 1s the audilor § remuneration for audit and non-audit services as follows
Auditor s rermungration
Statutory audit services
- Arnual audt of the Corpany and consolidatea  nancigl staterments 1 1
—  Audit of subsichary companias 1 1
2 2
Non-audit related services
- Taxadwvisory 1 1
Total 3 3
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued
mns 2014
£m em
Repars and maintenance 41 39
Depraciation 59 50
Lease premium amgriisation 2 2
Rental pad/payable under cperating leases
- land and buldings 1 3
-  plant and machinery 4 a4
7  Other operating income and expense
2ms 20014
Notes £m £m
COther operating income
Revaluation gain of Invesiment properties @
- REIT propertes 9 10
- Millenrium Mitsu Garden Hotel Tokyo 32 ]
- Tanglin Shopping Centre - 3
41 28
Other operating expense
Revaluation deficit of invesimeant properties )
- RET properties 6 @
- Tangin Shopping Centre i -
- Bitmora Court & Tower {1 -
Imparrnent of groperty plant & equipment [is}] 78 -
(84} 2)

{a} Revaluation gain/deficit of investment properties
At the end of the financial year, In accordance with the Group's poticy its investment properties were subject to external professional
valuation on an open-market existing use basis Based on these valuations, the revaluation gan or deficit was recorded as considered

appropnate by the Directors

(b} Imparment

The Directors undertook their annual review of the carrying value of hotels and property assets for indication of imparment and where

appropnate, external valuations were also obtained As a result of this review, the total impaimment charge was £76m consisting of £23min
New York, £15m in Rest of Europe, £37m in Rest of Asia and £1m for NZ No impawrment charge was made in 2014 Further information I

gven in Note 12
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8  Personnel expenses

2015 2m4

£m £m .
Wages and salanes 21 278
Compulsory social secunty contnbutions 42 37
Contributions @ defined contr bution schemes 12 11
Defined benefit persion cost/gan;} —re.orded N he statermant of comprenens ve ncams 2 3
Defined bengfit pengion cost - recorded in tha ncome staiemen 2 2
Equity-settled share based payment transacticns 2 -
351 325

The average number of employees employad by the Group (including Directors) dunng the year analysed by category was as follows

208 2014
Nurnber Number
Hotel operating staff 8,399 7.954
Management/administration 1,385 1,253
Sales and marketing 466 484
Repairs and martenance 620 586
10,870 10 257
Directors’ remuneration
25 2014
Em £m
Remuneration 2 2
Receved by the Directors under
- long-term incentive schemes - -
- Pensicns - -
2 2
9 Net finance expense
2015 204
£m £m
Inierest ncome 3 4
Interest recevabie from joint ventures and associates 1 1
Foreign exchange gam 1 2
Finance income 5 7
Interest expense 20y =2) 2
Foreign exchange loss 5) 2 2
O
Finance expense 25) 24) =
Net “nance expense {200 (17)

SIUBLIILG |t
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

10 Income tax expense

205 2014
£m £m

Current tax
Corperation tax charge for the year 26 27
Adjustment in respect of pnor years - 4
Total current tax expense 26 31
Deterred tax (Note 26)
Ongination and reversal of iming differences ] 5
Effect of change n tax rate on opening deferred taxes 2 3
Bensfits or tax losses recognised (5] 0}
COver provision In respect of prior years Q)] )]
Total deferred tax expense/(credn) (14j 5]
Total ncome tax charge in the consolhidated income statement 12 ar
UK 7 10
Cverseas 5 27
Total income tax charge in the consolidated income statement 12 37

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded a tax expense of £12m {2014 £37m) excluding the tax refating to joint
ventures and associates, giving nse to an effective tax rate of 12 9% (2014 20 7%) The effectve tax rate has been affected by a number of
factors which include the following items

« Other income and expense of the Group,
« Reduced tax rates appled to brought forward net deferred tax habilties n the UK, and
« Tax adustments in respect of previous years

Excluding the impact of the tems noted above, the Group's underlying effectve tax rate 15 18 4% (2014 17 2%)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, a charge of £6m (2014 £6m) relating to joint ventures and asscoiates 15 included n the profit
before tax

Adjustments in respect of settlement of prior years tax habiities

The Group's tax charge on ordinary actvities is the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges The calculation of the Groug's total
tax charge necessanly Involves a degree of estimation and judgement in respect of certan items whose tax treatment cannot be finally
determined until résolution has been reached with the relevant tax auihonty or, as appropnate, through a formal legal process The final
resclution of some ¢f these items may gve nse to malenal profit and loss andfor cash flow vanances The geographical complexity of the
Group's structure makes the degree of estmation and judgemernt more challenging The resolution of Issues 1s not always within the contral
of the Group and it is often dependent on the efficacy of the legal processes In the relevant tax junscictions in which the Group operates
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income tax reconciliation
2ms 2014
£m £m
Profit before income tax in consolidated income statement 109 188
Lass share of profits of o N1 veniures a~g assaciates mn [4{v)]
Profit on ordinary activiies excluding share of joint ventures and associates a2 178
Income tax an ordinary actvties at the standard rate of
UK tax of 20 25% (2014 21 45%) 19 38
Tax exempt ncome 21) 1)
Non deductbie expenses 1" 11
Current year losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognsed - 2
Effect of tax rates on other operating income and expense - 1
Other effect of tax rates 1n foresgn junsdictions a -
Effect cf change in tax rate on opening deferred taxes @ 3
Other adustments 1o 1ax charge in respect of pnor yoars 2 3
[ncome tax expense per consolidated income statemeant 12 37
11 Earnings per share
Earnings per share are calculated using the following nformation
s 2014
(a) Basic
Profit for the year attrbutable to ~olders ot the carent [£m) 85 110
Weighted average number of shares in ssue (m) 325 324
Basic earmngs per share ([pence} 199p 340p
{b} Diluted
£rafit for the year at nbutacie to holders of e parent (Em) 85 110
Werghted average nurmber cf shares in issue (i) 325 324
Patentially diutive share optons under the Groug § share option schemes (m) 1 1
Weighted average number of shares in issue (dited) (m) 326 325
Diluted earmings per share {pence) 18.8p 339p
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued
12 Property, plant and equipment
Fidtures
Land Capttal fithngs and
and work n Plant and aquipment
buidings progress machinery and vehicies Total
£€m £m €m £m £m
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2014 24it 25 2186 226 2,878
Addrions - Acquisdions 271 - 7 15 293
Additions - Others 44 20 19 19 o9
Transfers 8 20 2 8 )]
Disposals - - - @ @
Whtten off - - - (10) (10)
Foreign exchange adjustments 42 - 5 5 52
Balance at 31 December 2014 2,773 24 249 261 3,307
Balance at 1 January 2015 2773 24 244 261 3307
Additions — Acquistions 66 - - 9 75
Additions - Others 7 29 15 20 71
Transiers - {10y 2 8 -
Disposals @ o] [} ®
Written off m - @ 5 (10
Foreign exchange adjustments 4 m ] Q)] )
Balance at 31 December 2015 2847 42 253 289 3,435
Accumulated depraciation and impairmant losses
Balance at 1 January 2014 267 1 70 170 508
Charge far the year 15 - 11 24 50
Disposals - - - {2) 2
Whiten off - - - (1o oy
Foreign exchange adjustments 4 - 2 2 8
Balance at 31 Dacembyer 2014 286 1 a3 184 554
Balance at 1 January 2015 286 1 B3 184 554
Acquisition of subsidianes - - - - -
Charge for the year 17 - 15 27 58
Impairment 76 - - - 76
Disposals 2 - {1 2 15
Written off - - @) 14 8
Fareign excharge adiustments 1 - 1} (&) {d)
Balance at 31 Dacember 2015 376 1 o 201 672
Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2015 2,459 41 166 88 2,764
At 31 December 2014 2 487 23 166 77 2753

The camying value of property, plant and equiprnent held under finance leases al 31 December 2015 was £9m (2014 £6m)
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a Impairment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for imparment based on each cash generating umit {*CGU") The CGUs are individual hotels
The carrying value of indwidual hotels was compared to the recoverable amount of the hotels, which was predeminantly based on value-in-
use For 2015 where indicalors of impairment were present, the Group estimated value-in-use through creaticn of discounted cash flow
models, based on future traging performance expected by management The undertying basis for the imparment model involves each
hotel's projected cash flow for the financial year ending 31 December 2016, extrapolated to incorporate indmduat assumptions in respect
of revenue growth (pnncipally factonng n room rate and occupancy growth) and major expense ines The future cash flows are based on
assumptions about competiive growth rates for hotels in that area, as well as intemal business plans These plans and forecasts include
management's mast recent view of Irading prospects for the hotel in the relevant market The forecasts cover a five to ten year penod, and
cash flows beyond this penod are extrapolaied using a growth rate ranging between 2% and 3%, which s based upon the expected
trading growsh for each hotel and inflation i the country Where appropnate, the Directors sought girdance on value from a registered
ndependent agpraiser with an appropnately recognised professional qualification and recent expenence in the location and category of the
hotel being valued

On the basis of external valuations i 2015, the Group recorded an imparment charge of £76m consisting of £23m in relation 1o a New
York hotel, £15m for three hotels 1n Rest of Europe, £37m for two hotels in Rest of Asia and £1m for a hotel in New Zealand No
impairment charge was made in 2014 This reflected the challenging trading conditions in those regions

Circumstances and events that led to the mparment are disclosed in the Financial Performance review in the Strategic Report

b Key assumptions used by the external apprarsers
The key assumptions used were as follows

Pre-tax discount rate — The discount rate 1s based on the country In which the hotel1s located and 1s adjusted for nsks associated with the
hotel Discount rates ranged from 8% to 10% in the LS, 7% te 12% in Europe and 6% to 9% in Asia

Occupancy rate — The occupancy growth rates ranged from 0% to 2% in the US, 0% to 8% in Europe and 0% to 3% in Asia

Average room raie — The average room rate growth ranged from 3% to 5% in the US, 0% to 8% in Europe and 0% to 7% in Asia

c Sensitivities

The Group's iImpairment review 1S sensitve 10 changes in the key assumptions used, most notably the discount rates and revenue growth
assumptions Based on the Group's sensitvty analysis, a reasonably possible change 1n a single factor could result in impairment in certain
hotels in London, Regional UK, Regional US, Asia and Australasia as ther far value currently exceeds therr carryng value enly by a smalt
percentage

d Land and buildings

Land and buldings includes long leasehold buldng assets with a book value of £606m (2014 £585m) The net book value of land and
buildings hetd under shert leases was £96m (2014 £100m), n respect of which depreciation of £2m (2014 £2m) was charged dunng the
year

No interest was capralised within land and buldings dunng the year (2014 £ni) The cumulative capitalised interest within land and
buldings 15 £5m (2014 £5m)

e Pledged assets
At year-end, the net book value of assets pledged as collateral for secured loans was £263m (2014 £283m) The secunty for the loans s
by way of charges on the properties of the Group companies concemed
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

f Busmess combination
Acguisibon in 2015

Acquisition of a subsidiary {CDL HBT Cambndge City Hotel (UK) Ltd)

On 1 Oclober 2015, the Group through its investment n COLHT acquired 100% of the shares and voting interests in COL HBT Cambndge
City Hotel (UK} Ltd {“CCH") (the *Acquisition”) COLHT acquired CCH in relation to the acguisition of the Cambndge City Hotel m Cambnidge
{the “Property”) The Acquisition marks CDLHT's first investment in Europe

in the three menths to 31 Decernber 2015, CCH contnbuted gross revenue of £3rm and net income before tax of £1m 1o the Group's
results If the acquisibon had occurred on 1 January 2015, management estimates that the Group's gross revenue would have been £11m
and the Giroup's net ncome before tax for the year would have been £3m In determinng these amounts, management has assumed that
the far value adjustments, determined provisicnally, that arose on the date of acquisiion would have been the same If the acquisition had
accurred on 1 January 2015

Consideration transferred £m
Total consiceratan for 100% equity interest acquired 62
Acquisition costs 1
Less Cash at bank of subsidiary acquired 12
Not cash outflow on acquisition 61

Acquisition-related costs
The Groug Incurred acquistion-related costs of £1m on legal fees and dus dikgence costs

tdentifiable assets and habilities assumed
The foflowing table surmmanses the recognised amounts of assets acquired and labliies assumed at the date of acausition

fm
Property, plant and equipment 81
Trade and other recewvables 1
Cash at bank 2
Trade and other payables (2)
Total identifiable net assets &2
Measurement of fair values
The valuation techrques used for measunng the fair value of matenal assets acquired were as follows
Assets acqured Valuation technques
Property plant and equiprment Marke! compansorn lechnigue and Discounted cash flow techngue Tha Market companson vajuation model considers quoted market

prices tor sim lar items witen they are avalable The Dscounted cash How val.ation moded 15 based uoon a ten year forecast of the
Property's potental irading performance having built nto the calcutations any capstal expenditure required for the hotel together with a
Fixtures Fitungs & Equpment Reserve based upon an aporopnate percentage of the forecast mover

If new mnformation obtaned within ore year from the date of acquisiticn about facts and crcumstances that existed at the date of
acquisition identifies adjustments to the above amounis, or any additonal provisions that existed at the date of acguisition, then the
accounting acquisition will be revised




Arnual report and accounts 2035 Financiel statements 103

Acqursitions in 2014

Novotel New York Times Square
0On 12 June 2014, the Group acaured Novotel New York Times Square for a purchase pnce of US$274m (£161m) The purchase pnce
consisied of property plant & equipment, which was inciuded in the Group’s New York geographical segment in 2014

There was no change n the far value asset allocation since the provisional assessment as at 31 December 2014

MyStays hotels in Japan
In additon, on 19 December 2014, the Group acquired two hotels in Japan, as well as all the outstanding shares of capital stock of a
company that operates them The total consideration was S$66m (£32m)

There was no change 1n the far value asset allocation since the provisional assessment as at 31 December 2014 and the purchase pnce
was fully allocated to property, plant & equipment on the Group’s balance sheet

] Other acquisthons
Cther acquisttion n 2015

Hard Days Night Hotel in Liverpool
On 19 August 2015, the Group acquired a leng leasehold interest in a hotel property located in Liverpoci for a total consideration of £14m
The total acquisition cost was capitalised as property, plant & equipment within the Group's existing hotels portfolio

The purchase price has been fully allocated to property, plant & equipment on the Group's balance shest

Other acquisitions in 2014

The Chelsea Harbour Hotel

On 25 March 2014, the Group acqguired the leasehold interest in a hotel property located within the Chelsea Harbour distnict in London for a
purchase pnce of £65m The total acquisiion cost was capitalised as property, plant & equipment within the Group’s existing hotels
portfolio

Grand Hotel Palace Rome

In addition, on 9 October 2014, the Group completed the purchase of iis first hotel in italy, for €66m (£51m} The total acquistion cost was
capitalised as property, plant & egupment within the Group's existing hotels porifolio In conjunction with the acguisition, the Group entered
nto a holdback escrow agreement with the seller Pursuant 10 the holdback escrow agreement, approxamately €6m (£5m) from the
purchase price was withheld and placed into an escrow
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
contnued

13 Lease premium prepayment

2015

em

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2015 113

Foreign exchange adjustments @

Balance a1 31 December 2015 m

Amartisatwon

Balance at 1 January 2015 13

Charge for the year 2

Balance at 31 December 2015 15

Carrying amount 26

Analysed between

Amount due after more than one year ncluded 1 non curment assets 4

Amount dug within one year incluoed in current assets 2
o8

14 Invesiment properties
Cormpleted investment progerties compnse Tanglin Shopping Cenre, Bitrnore Court & Tower, COLMHT properties and Millennium MisL
Garden Hotel Tokyo Investment properties under construction represents the land site at Sunnyvale

Movements in the year analysed as

Investment
Completad properties
nvestment inder
properties constructicn Tetal
£m £m £m
Batance at 1 January 2014 345 &g 414
Transfers 63 63) -
Movermnents 42 - 42
Adjustment to far value a7 - 27
Foreign exchange adjustment @) - (4
Batance at 31 Decermber 2014 473 8 478
Balance gt 1 January 2015 473 & 479
Transfers - - -
Movements () - {n
Adjustment to fair value 33 - 33
Foreign exchange adjustment ) 1 5)
HBalance at 31 December 20615 499 T 508

In general, the camyng amount of wvestment groperty other than those under construction s the far value of the property as determined
by a registered independent aparaiser having an approprate recognised professional gualificabon and recent expenence i the location and
category of the property being valued Far values were determined having regard to recent market transactions for simular propertes n the
same location as the Group's investment property

Only the land site at Sunnyvale, Califorria, 1s Classified as nvestrment properties under construction at 31 Decemnber 201 5 as the project of
bulding a hotel and an apartment complex 15 sl in progress This asset 1s camed at cost on the balance sheet
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Al the end of 2015, the Group’s nvestment properties were subject to external professional valuation on an open market existing use basis
by the following accredited independent valuers

Properties

valuers

Tanghn Shopping Centre, Singapore
Biiimare Gourt & Tower Los Angeles
Land site at Sunnyvale Calforma
Millennium Mitsul Garden Hotel Tokyo
CDLHT - Singapore property
CDLHT - Australia propertes

CDLHT — Maldves property

COLHT - New Zealand property

D72 DebenhamTie Leung (SEA} Pte Ltd

Sequoia Hotel Advsors LLC

Saquoa Hotel Adwsors LLC

Jones Lang LaSalle KK

Knight Frank Pte Ltd

CBRE valuatens Pty Limited

Jones Lang LaSalle Property Consultants Pte Ltd
CB Richard Elvs (Pte) Lid

Based on these valuations together with such considerations as the Directors consider appropnate, Millennium Mitsu Garden Hotel Tokyo
recorded an uplift in value of £32m (2014 £16m) and Tanghn Shopping Centre and Biltmore Court & Tower a revaluation loss of
respectively £1m {2014 gan of £3m) and £1m (2014 Al In addiiion, the REIT properties recorded a net revaluation gain of £3m

(2014 gan of £8m) All the other nvestment properties recorded no change and no impaiment was dentified

Fair value hierarchy

The far value measurament for vestment properties not under construction of £499m (2014 £473m} has been categonsed as a Level 3
far value based on inputs to the valuation technigue used

Valuation technique and significant unobservable mputs
The following table shows the valuation technique used 1N Measurng the fair value of nvestment property, as well as significant

unobservable inputs used

valuation techrmique

significant unobservable nputs

Inter relationship between key uncbservable inputs and
far value measurement

The technigue applied n the valuation of the Tanglin
Shopping Centre 1s based on market companson

of sales of simitar properties in the vicinity Further
adustments are made to this value to account for
differences in locaton size tenure view accessibiity
concition and other facters

Biimare Court & Tower and Millennum Mitsul Garden
Hotel Takyo were valued using a discounted casn flow
techrugue based on expected rental ncome

and discount rate appropriate for the property

Investment properties held by the REIT were valued
using the discouned cash flow, capitahisation o
companson technigues

Tanghn Shepping Centre
Open market values for other properties

Biltmore Court & Tower
Discount rate of between 8% to 10% and capitahsation
rate of 7% to 9%

Millenmium Mitsw Garden Hotel Tokyo
Discount rate of between 4% and 5% and
capitalsation rate of 4% 10 5%

CDLHT investment properties
Discount rate of between 11% and 14% caprahsaion
rate of around 8% and terminal yeld of B% to 8%

The estimated far value would increase/
{decrease) f

Expected market rental growth were higher/{lower)
and

Aisk adjusted discount rate was lower/ {higher
capttalisation rate was higher/ (lower) and termina!
yield was lower/ (igher)

Further detal's In respect of Investment property rentals are given in Note 31
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

15 Investments in joint ventures and associates
The Group has the following significant investments in joint ventures anda associates

Fair value of
ownership Effectrve Group nterest
Prncipel place interest
of bus:ness £€m 2ms 2014
Joint ventures
New Unity Holdings Lirmied (*New Unity™) Hong Kong - 50% 0%
Fena Estate Comparny Limited (“Fena”) Thatand - 50% 0%
Associate
First Sponsor Group Limited (“First Spensar”) People's Republic of China 126 38% 36%

The Group has 50% interest in both New Unity and Fena which operate the Group’s hotel business in Hong Kong and Banghok
respectively First Sponsor is a property company which is isted on the Singapore Exchange and has interests in China and the
Netherlands It is also Invalvad i the Chinese progerty financing business which carmes additonal nsk of recoverability of certain assets

Jourt Total
ventures Assoclates £m

Share of net assets/cost
Balance at 1 January 2014 &8 135 203
Share of profit for the year 6 a 10
Addwions - a4 a4
Restructunng - (28) {28)
Forergn exchange adustments s 2 7
Other movernents - (1) (1)
Balance at 31 December 2014 79 156 235
Balance at 1 January 2015 79 156 235
Shara of profit for he vear ] 11 17
Forengn exchange adjustments 4 - 4
Other movements - 1] ()]
Balance at 31 December 2015 88 166 255
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The following 1s summansed financal Information for First Sponsor and New Unity based on ther respective financial staterments prepared
In accordance with IFRS

The investment in Fena is not matenal to Group's financial statements

Frst Sponsor New Unaty '
25 2014 2m8 2014
£m Em £m £m
Naon-current assets 347 161 325 315
Curmeni assets 512 488 53 53
Non-current iabiities (131) (46) {107 (123}
Current habilities {260} {146) 23 28)
Total assets less total hatulities 468 438 248 217
Less Noen controling interest 2 - (At (59)
Netassets (100%) 466 438 177 158
Group's share 187 156 89 78
Revenue 102 73 106 100
Cperating proft 43 14 24 26
Interest income o 6 0} ]
Income tax expense {11) @ 4 {4
Profit for the year 32 " 20 21
Non-coritroling interests - - 9 ®
Prafit {or tha year after non-cortroling mierests 32 i1 1 13
Other comprehensive Income 10 12 - -
Profit and total comprehensive income (100%) 42 23 1 13
Group's share of profit and total comprehensive income 15 8 8 7
Dividends receved by the Group - - - -

At 31 December 2035, the Group’s share of the total captal commitments of joint ventures and asscciates amounted to £27m
(2014 £20m} At 31 December 2015, the Group's joint ventures and associates had no contingent liakiiities {2014 £nil)

16 Other financial assets

2015 2014
£m £m
Other financial assets ncluded wihn nen-current assets compnse
Unguoted equity ivestments avadable-for sale - 5
17 Inventones @
205 2014 g
£m £m 2
Consumablos 4 4 2
I
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued
18 Development properties
2015 2014
£m €m
Development propertes compnse
Development land for resale
~ New Zealand landbank 58 49
Development properties
- Zenith Residences 23
81 72
19 Trade and other receivables
2018 2014
£m £m
Trade recenables 35 50
Other recevahtes 23 24
Prepayments and accrued income 18 30
76 104

Trade recevables are shown net of an impaiment allowance of £2m (2014 £2m) refating to the likely nsolvencies of certain customers and

non-recoverability of gebts

The Group's exposure to credit and cumency nisks and Impairment losses related to trade and other recevables are disclosed in Note 22

20 Cash and cash equivalents

2ms 2014

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 235 228
Short-term deposits 118 280
Cash pool overdrafts 115 125}
Cash and cash egu valents on e sta ement of financial postan 23 392
Qverdrafis included in bormewings - [4)
Cash and cash equivalents shown in the cash flow staterment 238 388

The Group's exposure to nterest rate nsk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets are drsclosed in Note 22

As at 35 December 2015, £5m {2014 £5m) of the cash balance was resincted This forms part of the consideration for the acguisition of 2

hotet In Rome in 2014 (Note 12)
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21 Interest-bearing loans, bonds and borrowings

20185 2014
£m £m
Included withen non-current katimes
Bank loans 488 323
Bonds payable 199 185
665 518
Included within current habilines
Bark loans and overdrafts 104 370
Baonds payzbie 74 29
178 399

Further details :n respect of inancial liabiities are grven in Note 22

22 Financial instruments

Overview
The Group has exposure to the following nsks from its use of financial instruments

» credit nsk,
» ligudity nsk, and
* market nsk

This note presents information about the Group's expasure to each of the above nsks, and the Group's polices and processes for
measunng and managing nsk

{a) Credit nsk
Credit nsk 1s the nsk of financial loss 1o the Group If a customer or counterparty 1o a financial Instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligatons, and anses pnncipally fram the Group's recevables from customers and investment secunties

Exposure to credit nsk s monitored on an cngong basis, with credit checks performed on all clients requinng credit over certain amounts
Credit 1s not extended beyond authonsed imits, estatsished where appropnate through consultation with a professional credit vetting
organisation Credit granted 1s subject to reguiar review, 10 ensure It remains consistent with the client's cument creditworthiness and
appropnate to the antiopated volume of business

Investments are allowed only in iguid short-term mstruments within approved Imits, with investment counterparties approved by the Board,
such that the exposure to a single counterparty s mnimised

The maximum exposure to credit nsk 1s represented by the camying value of each financial asset on the Galance sheet, these being spread
across the varous currencies and junscictions in which the Group operates

SUSWIDIRIG |EIouRLI
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The maximum exposure 1o credit nsk at the reporting date was

Camyng value
2015 2014
£m £m
Cash a1 bank and in hand (see Note 20} 235 228
Short term deposits (see Nots 20) 118 288
Unquoted equity investments available-for sale {see Note 16) - 5
Trade recewables {(see Note 19} 35 50
Other receivables (see Note 19) n 24
411 596
The maximum exposure to cradi nsk for trade recevables at the reporting date by geographic region was
Camymng value
it 2014
£m £rn
New York 5 7
Regional US 3 7
Rest of Europe 7 5
Singapore Fi 20
Rest of Asia 10 7
Australasia 3 4
35 50
The ageing of trade recevables at the reporting date was
Grmss recenabie Imparment alowance Carrying valus
2015 2014 2m5 2014 s 04
€m £m €m m £m £m
Not past cue 2 39 ~ - 22 39
Past due 0 - 30 days 4 B - - 4 [¢]
Past due 31 - 60 days 3 3 - - 3 3
Past due 61 - 90 days 2 1 - - 2 1
Mcre than 90 days 6 3 @ 2 4 1
37 52 2 2 35 50
The movement in the allowance for imparment in respect of trade recewables dunng the year was as follows
2ns 201
£m £m
Balance at 1 January 2 2

Imparment recognised - -
Balance at 31 December 2 2
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Cortractual matunbes of financil assets 2015

5§ months 8 morths 15 More than
Total orless - 1year years Syears
£m £m tm £m €m
Financial Assets
Fixed Rate
US dalar 14 14 - - -
Korean Won 2 2 - - -
Singapore doliar 37 37 - - -
New Tawan dellar B B - - -
Australian dollar 7 7 - - -
New Zealand doar 36 36 - - -
Mataysian Ringgit 13 1 - - -
Euro 1 11 - - -
Chingse Renminbt 15 15 - - -
Non Interest Beanng
Stertng 39 39 - - -
US doflar 36 36 - - -
Singapore dallar 21 21 - - -
Malaysian Ringgit 1 1 - - -
Euro 4 a - - -
Japanese 12 12 - - -
Other a 3] - - -
Interest Bearing Cash Pool deposits
Singapore dollar g1 g1 - - -
Total cash and other financial assets 353 353 - - -
Interest Bearing Cash Pool Overdrafts
Stering 33 33) - - -
Euro @ (5) - - -
Japanese Yen {13 (13) - - -
Hong Kong dollar {28} (28) - - -
Non Interast Beannig Cash Pool Overdrafts
Stering (28) 28 - - -
Japanesa Yen ()] (8) - - -
Total overdrafts {Nate 20} (115) (113) - - -
238 238 - - -
Represented by
Cash and cash equnalents (Note 20) 238
23
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Cantractual matunies of financial assets 2014

6 months. B months 1-5 More than
Total orless 1 yoar years Syears
£m £m £€m £m £m
Financial Assats
Fixed Rate
Stering 4 4 - - -
US dollar 22 22 - - -
Korean Won 7 7 - - -
Singapore doflar 175 175 - - -
New Tawan doltar 6 <] - - -
Austrahan dotlar 12 12 - - -
New Zealand doliar 47 47 - - -
Malaysiars Ringgit 16 16 - - -
Euro 7 7 - - -
Others 16 16 - - -
Non Interest Bearing
Sterling 23 23 - -
US dollar 30 25 - - 5
Korear Won - - - - -
Singapare dallar 25 25 - - -
NMalaysian Ringgit 1 ] - - -
Euro 4 4 - - -
Cthers 16 16 - - -
Interest Bearing Cash Pool deposits
Singapore dollar 111 m - - -
Total cash and other financial assets 522 517 - - 5
Interest Bearing Cash Pool Overdrafts
Stering {a4) {44) - - -
US dodlar @ @ - - -
Euro 12 {12) - - -
Japanese Yen 20 (20) - - -
Hong Kong dollar 30) (30) - - -
Non Interest Bearing Cash Pool Overdrafts
Sterling {7 (17) - - -
Total overdrafts (Note 20} (129) {125) - - -~
397 392 - - 5
Represented by
Cash and cash equwalents (Note 20) 392
Other financial 2ssets (nan current) {Note 16) 5

367
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{b) Liguwdity nsk

Lauidiy nsk 1s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obigations as they fall cue The Group's approach to managing
Iiguidity 1S to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its labiltres when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without Incurmng unacceptable losses or nsiing darmage o the Group's reputation

The followsng are the centractual matunties of financial habilities, ncluding estimated interest payments using the interest rates prevailing as
at the reporting date

Contractual matuntes of firancial kabates.

Camyng Contractusl 8 months 512 1-2 2% Morg than
armount cash fowe o less morths Veirs yearg 5 years
31 Becember 2015 £€m £m £m tm m £m £m
Floating rate financial iabilities
Secured loans 67 74 3 3 38 30 -
Unsecured foans 313 322 22 £3 64 153 -
Secured bonds 16 16 - - - 16 -
Unsecured bonds 140 144 35 40 ] 68 -
Fixed rate financial habilities
Secure bonds B0 61 - - - 61 -
Unsecured loans 190 213 3 3 6 201 -
Unsecured bonds 57 80 - 1 1 58 -
Trade and othet payables
Trade payables 22 22 20 2 - - -
Other creditors 3 31 31 - - - -
Non-current labilities
Other non-current kabiities 12 12 - - - 3
908 955 114 132 110 580
Conlractual matunbes of financr kabdlies
Camymng Cortractual & months 6-12 1-2 25 More than
arnotnt cash flows o lass months YeRrs years S years
31 Dacember 2014 £m €m £m £m £m £m £m
Floating rate financial iatulities
Secured loans 67 72 2 2 5 63 -
Unsecured loans 526 540 56 265 57 162 -
Unsecured bonds 166 17 kv ] 74 66 -
Bank gverdrafts 3 4 a - - - -
Fixed rate financial habihties
Unsacured loans 97 165 2 51 1 51 - -
Unsecured bonds 58 63 - 1 1 61 - z
Trade and other payables H
Trade payables 23 23 19 a - - - 5
Other creditors 16 16 16 - - - - g’
Non-current Hablities 5
Other non-current kabilties 11 n - - i 2 8 a
967 1,005 129 328 139 405 8 &
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Undrawn committed borrowing facilsies
At 31 Decemnber 2015, the Group had £406m (2014 £255m) of undrawn and committed faciites avallable, compnsing committed
revolving credt facihties which provide the Group with financial flexioiity Matunties of these faciities are set out in the fokowing table

The conditions precedent to the avaliability of these facilties are all satisfied at the balance sheet date

205 2014

£m 3m

Expinng n one year or less 128 165
Expiring after more than one year but not mere than two years 112 16
Exc ring after more than twe yeal s but not mare than five years 166 70
Exp ring after ~ore than five years - -
Total undrawn committed borrowing faciiies 408 255

Secunty
included within the Group's total bank loans and overdrafts of £570m (2014 £693m) are £67m (2014 £70m} of secured loans and
overdrafts Total bonds and notes payable of £197m (2014 £224m) are unsecured

Loans, bonds and notes are secured on land and buldngs with a camying value of £263m (2014 £283m) and an assignment of nsurance
proceeds In respect of insurances aver the morgaged progerties

Of the Group's total faciities of £1,297m, £351m matures within 12 months compnsing £73m unsecured bonds and notes, £67m
committed revolving credd faciities, £45m uncormmitted faciities and overdrafts subject to annual renewal, £163m unsecured term loans
and £3m secured term loans  Plans for refinancing the faciities are underway

(c) Market nsk
Market nsk 1s the nsk that changes in market prces, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity pnces will affect the Group’s
income or the vaiue of its holdings of financial instruments

The pnmary objectives of the treasury function are lo provide secure and competittvely priced funding for the actvities of the Group and to
identify and manage financial nsks, ncluding exposure to moverments in interest and foreign exchange rates ansing from those actvties If
appropnate, the Group uses financial instruments and denvatives to manage these nsks, as set out below

() Foreign currency nsk

The Group i$ exposed to foreign currency nsk on revenue, purchases, borrowings and cash deposits denominated In currencies other than
the functional currencies of the respective Group entities The currencies giving nse to this nsk are pnmarily US dollars, Singapore dolars,
New Zealand dollars, New Tawan dollars, Korean won, Chinese renminbi, Japanese yen and Euro

The Group's pnncipal palicy, wherever possible, 1s 1o maintain a natural hedge whereby labilites are matched with assets denominated in
the same currency Foreign currency Investment exposure 1S also mnimised by borrowing in the currency of the investment

To mitigate foreign currency translabion exposure, an appropnate proportion of net assets are designated as hedged aganst corresponding
financial habiities N the sarme currency

Net investment hedging

The Groug has US$167m (2014 115$429m) US dollar loans and overdrafls, €61m (2014 €61m) Euro loans and overdrafts, and
JPY3,704m (2014 JPY3,704m) Japanese yen overdrafts designated as hedges of corresponding respective proportions of its net
investrment in foreign operaticns whose functional currencies are US dollars, Euros and Japanese yen The nsk being hedged 1s the foreign
currency exposure on the carrying amount of the net assets of the foreign operation upon consolidation The far value of the hedging
instruments as at 31 December 2015 was £178m {2014 £343m)
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There was no neffectiveness recogrised in the consolidated income statement that arcse from hedges of net Investments in foreign
operations

An analysis of borrowings by currency and ther far values as at 31 December 1s given below

31 Dacember 2013 a1 Decomber 2013 !

Book value Fair value Biock value Far value

£m tm £m £m

Stering 84 64 - -
Singapore doliar 199 199 204 204
Australa dollar 48 46 49 43
US dollar 303 303 438 438
New Zealand dollar a4 34 34 34
Chingse renminta 33 33 36 36
Japanese yen o4 94 83 8%
New Tawan dollar 10 10 10 10
Korean Won 20 20 21 21
Euro 40 40 36 36
843 83 a17 a1y

Exchange differences ansing on foreign currency loans dunng each accounting penod are recognised as a component of equity, to the
extent that the hedge 1s effective The foreign exchange exposure ansing on the Group's net investment I s subsidiares 1s expected to be
highly effective in offsetting the exposure ansing on the Group's foreign currency borrowings

Foreign curmrency transaction exposure 15 prmanly managed through funding of purchases from operating income streams ansing In the
same curmency

Hedging of transaction exposure 15 undertaken with approved counterparties and within designated imits, using spot or short-term forward
contracts to buy or sell the curency concerned, once the timing and the undertying amount of exposure have been determined Foreign
exchange denvatives may also be used to hedge specfic transacticn exposure where appropnate There are no foreign exchange
denvatives in place at 31 December 2015

The following significant exchange rates apphed dunng the year

Average rate Closing rate

2058 2014 2085 2014

US doliar 1532 1645 1 480 1556

Singapore doliar 2101 2087 2103 2059

New Tawan dallar 48.623 49938 48923 49 419

New Zealand dollar 2176 1890 2187 200
Malaysian nnggt 5934 5391 6403 5442 3
Korean won 1,730.23 1,727 98 1,742.09 1708 55 =
Chinese renrminbi 9640 10138 9668 9584 @
Euro 1375 1240 1368 1278 3
Japanese yen 185.880 173950 178 411 187 334 Z
[
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Sensitivity analysis

With respect to the Group's foreign currency exposure, and assuming that all other vanables, in particular interest rates, reman constant, it
I estimated that a 10% strengthening of stering against the following currencies at 31 December 2015 (31 Decemier 2014 10%) would
have increased/{decreased) equity ang profit before tax by the amounts shown below

31 Decembar 2015 31 Dacember 2014
c Protit Profit
Equity before tax Equrty before tax
£m £m £m £m
US dottar 28 1 B m
Austrabian dollar ] - m -
Singapore dollar 4 5 4 @
New Taiwan dollar - 1
New Zealand dollar 5 2 - @
Malaysian nnggit - - - -
Korean won - - - -
Eure 8 1 12) -
Chinese renminbi @ - )] -
Hong Keng dollar - (1} - @
Thai baht - - @ -
Japanese Yen 3 )] - @
Philppines pesc - 2 - -
Other - (1) - -
33 m 2 (8)

A 10% weakening of sterling against the above currencies at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014 10%) weould have had the equal but
opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other vanables reman constant

() Interest rate nisk and interest rate swaps

The Group adopts a policy of ongoing review of its exposure to changes in interest rates on its borrowings, taking into account market
expectations with regard to the perceved level of nsk assoctated with each currency, the matunty profile and cash flows of the undertying
debt, and the extent to which dett may potentially be ether prepaid prior to its matunty or refinanced at reduced cost

The Group's policy 1s e maintain a mixture of its financial labilites on a fixed and floating-rate basis with a greater emphasis on floating
rates presently as this flexibiity is considered to be appropnate in the context of the Group's overall geographical dversity, nvestment and
business cycle and the stability of the incorme streams, cash balances and loan covenants

Interest rate dervatives are used 1o manage interest rate nsk, 1o the extent that the perceived cost 15 considered tc outweigh the benefit
from the flexibility of vanable rate borrowings, and the Group actively monitors the need and timing for such dervatives Where used,
Interest rate denvatives are classified as cash flow hedges and stated at fair value within the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position Further detals of interest rate dervatives in place at 31 December 2015 are provided hereafter
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for vanable rate instruments

Assuming that all other vanabies, n particular foreign currency rates, remain constant, a change of one percentage pont in the average
interest rates applicable to vanable rate instruments for the year would have increased/{decreased) the Group's profit before tax for the year
as shown below

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
1% Increaae 1% decrease 1% Increase 1% decrease !
£m £m £m £m
Variaple rate “nancial asse:s 2 2 3 @
Vanable rate na~cial labilties s3] 9 {8) 8
Cash fiow sensimty (net} m 7 5 5

(d) Farvalue
Set out below is a companson of the far and bock values of all the Group's financial nstruments by category Far values are determined by
reference to market values, where avalable, or calculated by discounting cash flows at prevailing interest rates

2:m5 2015 2014 2014

Book value Fair value Book value Farr value
£m €m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hard 235 235 228 228
Short-term deposits 118 118 289 289
Cash pooi overdrafts (115} {115) (125) (125)
Available-for-sale financial assets
tnguoted equity investments avalable-for-sale - - 5 5
Loans and recewables
Trade recewvables 5 35 50 50
Other recenables Ll 41 24 24
4 314 471 471
Financial habihities
QOvercrafts and borrowings (843) (843} @) @17
Trade payables @2 22) 23 (23)
Other creditars 31} 31 (18 (16)
Other non current habilities 12 12 (11 11
(908) (908} (©967) (967,

Estimation of fair values
The fallowing summanses the mayor methods and assumptions used in estimaing the far values of financial Instruments reflected in the
table

Derivatives
Forward exchange coniracts are aither marked to market using hsted market prices or by discountng the contractual forward pnce and
deducting the current spot rate For interest rate swaps, bank valuations are used

o
]
a
&
w
4
5
2
)
=
&
E
S
w

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Far value 1s calculated based on discounted expected future pnncipal and interest cash dows
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Finance lease habilities
The farr value 1s estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at market interest rates for similar lease agreements The
estimated far values reflect changes in interest rates

Trade and other receivables/payables
For recevables/payables with a remaining life of less than one year, the notional amount 1s deemed to reflect the far value All other
recenvables/payables are discounted to determine the fair value

Interest rates used for determining fair value
Prevailing market interest rates are used to discount cash flows to determine the far value of financial assets and habilities

Avaitlable-for-sale finanocal assets - unquoted equity (nvestments
Farr vaiue 1s estmated usng appropnate valuation techriques

Fair value hierarchy
As at 31 December 2015, the Group held certan financial Instruments measured at far value

The Group uses the following higrarchy for determining and disclosing the farr value of financial instruments ty valuation technique
Level 1 quoted (unadjusted) pnces n active markets for dentical assets or iabilties

Level 2 other techniques for which all nputs which have a significant effect on the recorded farr value are observable, ether directly or
incirectly

Level 3 techniques that use iInputs which have a significant effect on the recorded far vaiue that are not based on observable markst data

2ns Lavel 1 Laval 2 Level 3

Assels measured at far value £m £m £m £&m

Investment properties 493 - - 499

499 - - 496

2014 Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3

Assets measured at far value £m £m £m Em

Investment properties 473 - - 473
Avalable-ior-sale financial assets

Unquoted equity iInvestments avalable-for-sale 5 - - 5

478 - - 478

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2015, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Levei 2 far value measurerments, and no transfers
into and out of Level 3 far value measures
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Caprtal management

The Board's policy 1s 1o maintain a strong capital base s¢ as to mantan Investor, creditar and market confidence and to sustain future
devetopment of the business The Company’s objective for managing its capital 1s to ensure that Group entties will be able to continue as a
gaing concem while maximising the retum to shareholders, as well as sustairing the future development of its business In order to maintain
or adjust the capial struciure, the Group may aiter the total amount of dvidends pad to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders, 1ssue
new shares, draw down adaitiona debt or reduce dett

The Group’s capita! structure consists of debt, which includes the lcans and borrowings disclosed in Note 21, cash and cash equnvalents
disclosed n Note 20 and the equity aitnbutable to the parent, compnsing share capital, reserves and retaned earnings, as disclosed in the
consoldated statement of changes in equity The Group seeks to maintan a balance between the higher retums that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and securty afforded by a sound capital positicn

One of the Group's subsidianes, COLHT which is a slapled group comprising CDL Hospitalty Real Estate Investment Trust {"M-REIT"} and
CDL Hospriaity Business Trust {*HBT), a business trust, 15 required to mantain certain minimum base capital and financial resources
H-REIT is subject to the aggregate leverage mit as defined in the Property Fund Appenidix of the Code on Collective Investment Schemes
(*CIS Code”) issued by Monetary Authonty of Singapore The CIS Code stipulates that the total borrewings and deferred payments
{together the “Aggregate Leverage”) of a property fund should not exceed 35 0% of its Deposited Property except that the Aggregate
Leverage of & property fund may exceed 35 0% of its Deposited Property (up o a maximum of 60 (%) If a credit rating of the property fund
from Fitch Inc , Moody’s or Standard and Poor's s cbtaned and disclosed to the public The property fund should continue to maintain
and disclose a credit rating so long as its Aggregate Leverage exceeds 35 0% of its Deposited Property

For ths financial year, H-REIT has a credtt rating of BBB- from Fitch Inc The Aggregale Leverage of H-REIT as at 31 December 2015 was
36 4% (2014 31 7%) of H-REIT's Deposited Property This comphed with the aggregate leverage lmit as descnbed above

HET, H-REIT and CDLHT have comphed with the borrowing Wit requirements Mposed by the relevant Trust Deeds and all extemally
imposed capttal requirements for the financial years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014

Except for the above, neither the Company nor any of its subsichanes are subject to extemally Impcsed capital requirements

23 Employee benefits

Pension arrangements

The Group cperates vanous funded pension schemes which are established 1n accordance with local conditions and practices within the
countnes concemed The most significant funds are descnbed below

Uruted Kingdom

The pensicn arrangements in the United Kingdom operate under the 'Milenrium & Copthome Pension Plan’, which was set up in 1893
The plan cperates a funded defined benefit arrangement together with a defined contnbution plan, both with different categones of
membership The defined benefit section of the plan was closet 10 new entranis In 2001 and at the same tme nghts tc a guaranieed
minimurn pension (“GMP*} under the defined contribution scheme also ceased The plan entitles a retred employee to receve an annual
pension payrnent

The contributions required are determined by a quatfied actuary on the basss of tnennia valuations using the projected unit credit method
The last full actuanal valuation of this scheme was carred out by a qualfied ndependent actuary as at 5 Apnl 2014 and thws has been
updated on an approximate basis to 31 December 2015 The contributions of the Group dunng the year were 249 {2014 24%) of
pensionable salary

As the defined benefit section 1 closed to new entrants, the current serce COS!, as a percentage of pensionable payroll 1s tkely 1o increase
as the membership ages, although it will be applied 1o a decreasing pensionable payrall The assumptions which have the most significant
effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to the discount raie and the rates of increase in salanes and pensions

SjUAWDIRLS jeloueLd
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South Korea

The Group cperates a defined bensfit pension plan for its employees in South Korea The coninbutions required are determined by an
extemnal qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method Tne mest recent valuation was camed out on 31 Decemnber 2015 The
assumptions which have the most sigrificant effect on the results of the valuatons are these relating to the discount rate and rate of
increase in salanes

Tarwan

The Group operates a defined benefit pensicn plan for its employees in Tawan The coninbutions reguired are determined by an external
qualfied actuary using the projected unit credit method The mest recent valuation was camed cut on 31 December 2015 The
contnbutions of the Group were 6% (2014 6%} of the employees' eamings The assumptions which have the most significant effect on the
results of the valuations are those relating to the discount rate and rate of increase in salanes

The defined benefit plans are admimistered by pensicn funds that are legally separated from the Group The boards of the pension funds
are reguired by law to act in the best interests of the plan participants

These defined benefit plans expose the Group to actuanal nsks, such as longewvity nsk, currency nsk, interest rate nsk and market
investment nsk

The above plans are substantially funded by the Group's subsidianes The funding requirernents are based on the pension funds' actuanal
measurement framework set out In the funding policies of the plans

The assets of each scheme have been taken at market value and the labilities have been calculated using the following pnncipal
assumptions

2015 2014

2015 South 2015 204 Soutn 2034

UK Korea Taiwan UK Korea Taman

Inflation rata 3.2% 30% - 32% 30% -
Discourt rate 3.6% 2.8% 16% 37% 28% 20%
Rate of salary ncrease A% 40% 3.0% 37% 50% 3 0%
Rate of pension ncreases 2% - - 32% - -
Rate of revaluation 22% - - 22% - -
Annual expected retum on plan assets 3 6% 2.8% 16% 37% 28% 20%

The assumptions used by the actuanes are the best estmates chosen from a range of possible actuanal assumptions, which due to the
timescale covered, may not necessanty be bome out in practice The present values of the schermes’ latilities are derved from cash flow
grojections over long penods and are inherently unceriain The expected annual retum on UK defined benefit plan assets for 2015 was
36% {2014 37%)

Reasonably pessible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuanal assumptions, holding other assumptions consistent,
would have altered the defined benefit obiigation by the amounts shown below

Dafined kenefit obkgation
2015 2015 2014 2014
Incranse Dacrease Increase Decrease
fm £m €m m
Drscount rate (1% movement) ) 14 {1 14
Rate of salary increase (1% movement) 2 ] 3 2

Although the analysis does not 1ake account of the full distnbution of cash flows expected under the plans, it does prowvde an
approximation of the sensivity of the assumptions shown
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Amounts recogrised on the balance sheet are as fallows
2015 2014
2015 South 2ms 2018 2015 2014 South 2014 014 2014
UK Koraa Talvean Other Total UK Korea Taiwan Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
Present value of funded abligatons a1 4 9 1 75 60 7 8 1 76
Far vaiug of plan assets (55) %) 3@ - 62} (54 [k} ] - 61)
Plar deficit -] - 6 1 13 3] 4 4 1 15
Changes n the present value of defined benefit ctligations are as follows
2ms 2014
2015 South 205 2ns 2015 2014 Sauth 2014 2014 2014
UK Korea Taiwan Other Total UK Korea Tanwan Cther Total
£m £m £m €m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 60 7 8 1 76 55 4 g 1 69
Current service cost 1 1 - - 2 1 1 - - 2
Interest cost 2 - - - 2 3 - - - )
Benefits paid death n service nsuLrance
premiums and expenses 7] (1) 1 - 2 U] - m - @
Remesasurement losses/ (gamns) ansing from
- Financial assumptions 1 (1) - - - 4 - - - 4
— Demcgraphic assumptions {1} - - - ) - - - -
- Experience adjustment - - - - - {1} - - - 1
Foreign exchange adjusiments - @ - - @ - 2 _ 2
Balance at 31 December 61 4 9 1 75 80 7 8 1 76
Changes in the farr value of plan assets are as follows
25 2014
2015 South 2ms 2015 2014 South 2014 2ma
UK Korea Taiwan Tatal UK Korea Tawan Total
£m £m £m £m £m £€m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 54 3 4 61 45 3 3 51
Interest income 2 - - 2 2 - - 2
Greup contnbutiens 4 - - 4 2 - 1 3
Benefits paid O] - 1 {3 ] - 1 4]
Remeasurement gans ansing from
- Return on plan assets excluding interest ncome 1] - - [il] 6 - - 6
Foreign exchange adjustments - 1 @ (1) - - 1 ]
Balance at 31 December 55 4 3 62 54 3 4 81
Actual return on plan assets 1 - - 1 7 - - 7
The far values cf plan assets in each category are as follows
205 2014
2015 South 205 2415 2014 South 2014 2014
UK Koren Tatwan Total tm Komea Tarwan Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Equites 8 - - 8 21 - - 21
Bonds 1 - 1 2 - - 2
Cash and cash equvalents 46 - 3 53 kil 2 4 38
55 4 3 82 54 3 4 61
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The expense recegrused N the income statement 1s as follows

205 2014
2015 South 2ms 2015 205 2014 South 2014 204 2014
UK Korea Taiwan Other Total UK Korea Tanwan Other Total
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m £m £m
Curreni service cost 1 1 - - 2 1 1 - - 2
Interest cost 2 - - - 2 2 - - - 2
Interest income 2) - - - @ 2 - - - 2
1 1 - - 2 1 1 - - 2
Total cost 1s recognised within the followng items in the ncome staterment
2018 2m4
£m £m
Cost of sales 1 1
Administrative expenses 1 1
2 2
The gains or losses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are as follows
2015 204
2015 South 2015 2015 25 2014 South 2014 2014 2014
UK Kotea Talwan Other Total UK Korea Taman Cther Total
£m £m £€m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Actual return less expected return on plan
asSSEets 1) - - - 1)) 5] - - - 8
Remeasurement (lossesy gains anaing from
- Financial assumptions {2) 1 - - 1)) ) - - - @)
- Demographic assumptions - - - - - - - - - -
— Experence adjustrment - - - - - 1 - - - 1
Definec benefit plan remeas. ~ement
gans/ (losses) k1] 1 - - @ 3 - - - 3
2ns 2014
Agtuaral losses recogrsed drectly in eguty are as follows £m £m
Cumulatve as at 1 January 15 18
Remeasurament losses recognised dunng the year 2 %))
Cumulative as at 31 December 17 15

Mortality rates used reflect an industry wide recognition that Ife expectancy has increased The ife expectancies undertying the value of the

accrued habiities for the UK Plan, based on retirement age of 85, are as {oflows

2ms 2ma

Yoars Years

Males 24 25
Females 27 27

The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligations as at 31 December 2015 was 26 years {2014 26) The Group expects

£0 8m in contnbutions to be pad to the defined benefit plans In 2016
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Share-based payments
The Group operates a number of share option schemes, a majonty being designed to link remuneration to the future performance of the
Group Details of these schemes are given in the Remuneration Committes report

In accordance with the Group's accounting policy 2 3N{v) on share-based payment transactions, the far value of shara options and long-
term ncentive awards 1S recogrised as an employee expense with a comesponding increase in equity The far value 1s measured at grant
date and spread over the penod dunng which the emplayees become unconditionally entitled to the share options and long- term incentive
awards

The charge to the mcome statement for the year was £2m (2014 £nily

The Group has applied IFRS 2 to its active employee share-based payment arangements from 1 January 2005 except for arrangements
granted before 7 November 2002

(0 Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan
Periormance Share Awards under this scheme are awarded to Executive Directors and senior management of the Group

Awards Awards Awards Awards Awards Awards Credited

outstanding awarded vested forfered expred outstanding Credited 1o to share
asat durnng the dunng the duning the dunng the asat share capital pramium Vasting
Date of Award 1.Jan 2015 yaar year year year 31 Dac 2015 £m £m date
16 08 2012 491 335 - - (491 335) - - - - 18 08 2015
11092013 407,211 - - {44 246) - 362,965 - - 11082016
21112013 21085 - - - - 21,055 - - 21 11 2018
04 04 2014 848 610 - - (122 825) - 525,785 - - 0404 2017
02082015 - 251122 - - - 251,122 - - Q308208
1009 2015 - 11 867 - - - 11,867 - - 1009 2018

1568,211 262 889 - {658 406) - 1,172,794 - -

{n} Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc 2003 Executive Share Option Scheme
Share options under this scheme were granted to the Executive Director anct senior management of the Group

Proceeds on exarcise
of options during the year
Exercise Cphons Optons Cphions Options Options Credited Cradited
prca outstancing exercised expred forfeted  outstanding 1o share to shars
per share asat dunng durmyg dunng asat captal premium
BDate of grant of options £ 1 Jan 2015 the year the year theyear 31 Dec201$ £m £m Exarcrsa period
Part I| (Unapproved)
2403 2005 39842 10581 (10 581) - - - - - 24032008-23032015

n
=
=
=3
2
2
@
=
=
2
e
2
2
=1
w

IR LT RTTI




M Millennuum & Copthome Hatets plc Financial statements 124

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

{m) Millenmium & Copthorne Hotels pic 2006 Sharesave Scheme
Share options under this scheme are granted to UK based employees

Proceeds on axencise of
optians dumny the year
Exerizso £ptions Options Options Options Options Options Creditec Credred
price  outstanding granted exercisad forfeitad expred  outstanding fo share o share
Date of grant of per share asat during gunng durnng during aaat capral premurm
options. £ 1Jan 2015 he year the year the year thayear 31 Dec 2018 £m £m Exercise penod
0104 2010 3 3000 2166 - {1878 (188) - - - - 01082015- 3101 2016
1904 2011 4 1800 2848 - 2 762) - (86} - - - 01082014 - 31 01 2015
1904 2011 41820 7,349 - - (309) - 7,040 - - 01082016 - 3101 2017
1904 2012 38820 43 298 - KRR LY {1.680) - 2,502 - - 01082015- 31012016
1904 2012 38800 98156 - - - - 8,816 - - 0108207 -31012018
1904 2013 44800 41264 - (v 283) {4 295} - 35,688 - - 0108201531 012017
1904 2013 44800 6694 - - {3,348 - 3,946 - - 01082018 -31012019
0605 2014 4 4800 84,168 - 2.521) (18 533) - 63,108 - - 01082017 -31 012018
06052014 4 4800 7 665 - - {1,344) - 8321 - - 01082019-31012020
14 04 2015 4 G800 - 68 243 - (9 358) - 58,885 - - 01082018-31012019
14 04 2015 4 6300 - € 649 - - - 6,648 - - 01 08 2020 - 31 C1 2021
205 268 74,892 (47 BEQ) (39 061) &6) 183,354

The weighted average share pnce at the dates of exercise of share options in the year was £5 54 (2014 £5 84)

The options outstanding at the year-end have an exercise prce in the range of £3 30 to £4 69 (2014 £3 30 to £4 48) and a weighted
average contractuai iife of 1 6 years (2014 1 7 years)

The following awards/options were granted in the current year and comparative year

Awards/options granted Share price

pravaiing
on dete of Expreisa 1 Expected Expectec Risk free
Date of Non grant price value tarm Expected dnndend witerest
2015 Awards/opions. grant Dimectors Directors [ £ T {years) voiatidty yekd rates
LTIP - EPS 03 08 2015 80645 70,028 555 - 5186 300 25% -
LTIP—EPS 1008 2015 - 7120 553 - 513 300 - 25% -
LTIP - TSR {FTSE 250) 03 08 2015 13 441 11,671 555 - 122 228 195% 25% 08%
LTIP - TSR (FTSE 250} 1009 2015 - 1187 553 - 136 218 195% 25% 07%
7 7T%
LTIP - TSR (hotets} C3 08 2015 13,441 167N 555 - 228 228 to 49 8% 25% 08%
17 6%
LTIP — TSR (hotels) 1008 2015 - 1187 553 - 283 218 to 52 5% 25% 07%
LTIP - NAV 03082015 26 882 23 343 555 - 516 300 - 25% -
LTIP - NAV 1009 2015 - 2373 553 - 513 300 - 25% -
Sharesave Scheme (3 year) 14 04 2015 - 68 243 875 469 121 355 217% 24% C8%

Sharesave Scheme (5 year) 14 04 2015 - 6649 575 469 145 555 252% 24% 11%
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Awards/opticns granted Share prce

p g
on date of Exarcise Far Expected Expected Risk free
Date of MNon- rant prica value term Expected dividend erest
2014 Awards/options gam Dwactors Diractors ® £ £ fyears) volgity yeid ratas
LTIP - EPS 04 04 2014 86 898 242,616 557 - 517 300 - 24% -
LTIP - TSR (FTSE 250) 04 04 2014 26 069 72785 557 - 181 300 16 5% 24% 10%

22 4%

LTIF - TSR {hotels) 04 04 2014 25069 72785 557 - 246 300 10435% 24% 10%
LTIP - NAV 04 04 2014 34 760 97,045 557 - 517 300 - 24% -
Sharesave Schema (3 year) 06 05 2014 - 96 757 556 446 128 325 22 9% 24% 14%
Sharesave Schemne (5 vear) 06 05 2014 - 7834 556 448 180 525 33 1% 24% 20%

{iv) Annual Bonus Plan ("ABP")
Under the ABP, deferred share awards are granted annually to sefected employees of the Group Shares in Millenrmium & Copthome Hotels
plc are transferred to participants at the end of three years i they coniinue to be employed by the group throughout that perod

The far values for the deferred share awards were determined using the market prce of the shares at the date of grant The weighted
average share price for deferred share awards granted 0 2015 was £5 51

Awards Awards Awards
awarded forfeted outstanding Credited Cradited
during the during the as ot Dec 1 shara capttal  to share premium Vesting
Data of Award year year 2ms £m £m date
Q809 2015 78442 {1574) 76,868 - - 08 09 2018
06112015 4325 - 4,325 - - 06 11 2018
82 767 {1574} 81,193 - -

The following awards were granted for the first ime in the current year

Awards granted Shara pnce

pravasing on
date of grant Fair value
2015 Awards Qate of grant Directors Non-Clraciors £ T
Deterred share awards 08 09 2015 - 78,442 555 585
Deferred share awards 06 11 2015 - 4325 476 476

Measurement of farr value

The LTIP anc Sharesave awards, which are subject to an EPS performance condition, were valued using the Black-Scholes valuation
method The LTIP awards which are subject 1o a share pnce related performance condition (i e TSR) were valued using the Monte Carlo
valuation method

The option prcing model Involves six vanables

* Exercise price

* Share pnce at grant

* Expected term

* Expected volatiity of share pnce

Risk-free inlerest rate
» Expected dvidend yeld

S
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24 Provisions
Dilapeciation Legal Beging rdemnity Total
ai £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 2015 1 5 7 13
Released/utiised W] @ - 14
Foreign exchange adjustments - - 1 1
Balance at 31 December 2015 - 2 8 1c
Analysed as
Non-current provsion - - 8 8
Current prowsion - 2 - 2
Total provision - 2 a8 10
Provision for legal fees as at 31 December 2015 of £2m (2014 £5m) relates to disputes in several hotels The Beying indemnity of £8m
(2014 £7m} relate to the tax ndemnity to the former shareholders cf Grand Millennium Hotel Benng in which the Group acgured an
additional 40% interest In 2010 Durng the year, a £1m cilapidation provision relating to the cost te be incurred on termination of a
leasenold asset has been released
25 Other non-current habilities
2ms 2014
€m £m
Other habilities 12 i
26 Deferred taxation
Movements in deferred tax habiliies and assets {pror to offsetting balances) dunng the year are as follows
Charged/{creditad) to sxsome statement
Other
At adpstment At
1iJanuary Change n 10 openng Current year Chamged 1o Exchange on 31 December
s tax rate provsicn movemant reserves transiation M5
£m £m em £m tm £m Em
Deferred tax liabilities
Property assets' 248 @ 5 (10 - 4 243
246 @ 5 (10 - 4 243
Deferred tax assets
Tax losses (16) - @ () - @ (25
Ermployee benelits? %) - - - - - i)
Others (9) - () 2 - - )
25) - 3) 3) - @ (33)
Neot deferred tax liabilities ral 2 2 (13 - 2 210

1 Property agsets compnse plant property anc equipment lease premeum prepayment and ywvestmant properties
2 Fmployes banefts comyyise def~ed benefit peacn schiarmes and snara-sed payment arangemes 5.

Deferred tax assets and habiliies are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax kabiites

and when deferred taxes refate to the same {axation authonty
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Deierred tax assets have not been reccgnised in respect of the following items because 1t is not probable that future taxable profit wilt be
avalable aganst which the Group can utiise the benefits
2015 214
£m £m
Tax losses - 1
Adjusiments due to
- Deductible temporary differences in respect of pnor year - 1
- Tax losses in respect of pnor year 13 i2
13 14
The deductiale temporary differences do not expre under current tax legslation The tax losses are subject to agreement by the tax
authonties and compliance with tax regutations in the respective countries 1 wiveh certain subsidhanes operate
The gross tax losses with expiry dates are as follows
205 204
tm €m
Expry dates
—within 1 10 S years 6 A
- after 5 years 4 -
- no expury date 59 62
&9 73
At 31 December 2015 a deferred tax habikty of £9m (2014 £10m) relating to undistributed reserves of overseas subsidianes and jont
ventures of £662m (2014 £1,440m) has not been recognised because the Group determined that the distnbutions will not be made and
the liability will not be incured in the foreseeable future
27 Trade and other payables
2015 2014
£m tm
Trade payables 2 23
Other creditors inclucing taxaton and sooal secunty
- Social securty and other 1axes 9 5
- Value acded tax and simlar sales taxes 12 14
- Other creditors 3 16
Accruals 90 115
Deferred sncome 19 20
Rental and other depasis 4 a4
187 197

The Group's exposure to currency and iquidity nsks related to trade and other payables are chisclosed in Note 22
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continued
28 Dmwidends
2015 204 s 2014
pence pence Em £m
Final crdinary dnadend paig 11.51 1151 k14 37
Final special ddend paid - 915 - 30
Intenm orclinary dradend pasd 2.08 208 7 B
Total dradenas pad 13.59 2274 44 73
Subseguent to 31 December 2015, the Directors declared the following final diviciends, wiich have not been provided for
2015 a4 2015 2014
pence pence £€m £m
Final ordinary dradend 4.34 1151 14 41
Final specal dmdend - - - -
All dvidends paid dunng 2015 and 2014 were in cash
290 Share capital
MNumber of
30p shares
aliottad
caled up
and fully paid
Balance at 1 January 2015 324 672,061
Issue of ordinary shares on exercse of share oplions 58 240
Balance at 31 December 2015 324,730,301

Al of the share capital 15 equity share capital

At the year end, options over 193,354 ordinary sharas remain outstanding under the Sharesave Scheme and are exercisable between now
and 31 January 2021 at exercise pnces between £3 30 and £4 83 In addition, awards made under the LTIP up to 1,172,794 orcinary
shares remain unvested and may potentially vest between 11 September 2016 and 10 September 2018 Finally, 81,193 options under the

Annual Bonus Plan may potentially vest between 8 September and 6 November 2018

Dunng the year Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc issued invitations to UK employees under the Sharesave Scheme to enter Into a three-
year savings contract or a five-year savings contract with an option to purchase shares at an cption prce of £4 69 on expiry of the savings

contract

30 Resarves

Cash flow hedge reserve

The hedging reserve compnsas the effective portion of the cumutatve net change in the fair value of cash flow nstruments related to the

hedged transactions that have not yst occumred (net of tax)

Translation reserve

The translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations, as well as from the translation of abiities that hedge the Group's net investment in foreign operations {net of tax)

Treasury share reserve

An employee benefit trust established by the Group held 5,758 shares at 31 December 2015 (2014 5,758) to satsfy the vesting of awards
under the LTIP Bunng the year no shares {2014 252,590 shares) were purchased by the trust At 31 December 201 5, the cost of shares

held by the trust was £33,153 {2014 £32,093), whist the market value of these shares at 31 December 2015 was £26,683
(2014 £33,843) Shares purchased by the trust are treated as treasury shares which are deducted from equity and excluded from the

calculations of earnings per share
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31 Financial commitments

2015 2014
£m £m
(a) Capital commitiments at the end of the finarcial year wn ¢h are contracied but not proviged for a4 25
The Group’s share of the capital cormmitments of joint ventures and associates 1s shown in Note 15
(b) Total commitments under non-canceliable operating lease rentals are payable by the Group as follows
2015 2014
£m £m
—less than cne year 11 g
- bewwesn one and five years 33 30
—-1more thar five years 14 140
185 179

{c) The Group leases out certain of its propertias under operating leases The future minmum lease rentals recevable by the Group under
non-cancelable leases are as follows

2015 2014
£m £m

—less than one year 30 30
— oecween one and five years 91 96
- more thar five years 55 75
176 201

Future minimum lease rentals recevable under non-cancellable leases incluges all future rentals recevable up to the penod when those
leases expire or become cancellable

During the year enced 31 December 2015, £42m was recognised as rental income in the ncome statement (2014 £37m) and
£1m (2014 £1m) in respect of repars and mantenance was recognised &s an expense in the INcome statement relating to nvestment
properties

32 Contingencies and subsequent events

In the course of its operations the Group 1s routinely exposed to poiential labiliies for clams made by employees and contractual or
tortious clams made by third parties No matenal losses are anticipated from such exposures There were no contingent habiities or
guarantees cther than those ansing in the ordinary course of business and on these no matenal losses are anticipated The Group has
msurance cover up to certain imits for maor nsks cn property and major clams in connection with legal habities ansing in the course of its
oparations Otherwise the Group generally carres its own nsk The Group believes thak the accruals and provisions camed cn the balance
sheet are sufficient to cover these nsks

Other than the above transactions, there are no events subsequent to the balance sheset date which require adjustments to or disclosure
within these consolidated financial staterments
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33 Related parties

Identity of related parties

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes have been eiminated on consalidation and are not disclosed in this note Cetails of
transactions between the Group and other related parties are disciosed below All transactions with related parties were entered iNto.n the
normal course of business and at arm's length

The Group has a related party relationship with its joint ventures, associates and with 1ts Directers and executive officers
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
contnued

Transactions with uttimate holding company and other related companies

The Group has a related party relatonship with certain subsidianes of Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Ltd (*Hong Leong™) which s
the ultimate holding and controling company of Milennium & Copthome Hotels pic and holds 65% (2014 61%j of the Company’s shares
via City Developments Limited (“CDOL"), the intermediate holding comparty of the Group During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group had the following transactions with those subsidianes

The Group deposited certain surplus cash with Hong Leong Finance Limited, a subsidary of Hong Leong, on normal commercial terms As
at 31 Decermnber 2015, £3m (2014 £30m) of cash was deposited with Hong Leong Finance Limited

Fees paid/payabte by the Group to CDL and its other subsidianes were £2m (2014 £2m) which included rentals pad for the Grand
Shanghai restaurant and Kings Centre, property management fees for Tanglin Shopping Centre, charges for car parking, leasing
commission and professional services

As at 31 December 2015, City e-Solutions Limited {*CES"), a subsichary of COL held 1,152,031 (2014 1,152,031) ordinary shares in M&C
CES through its subsidianes proviced consultancy, management and reservation services to M&C for the year ended 31 December 2015
for atotal of £1m (2014 £1m)

Transactions with joint venture

City Hotels Pte Lid, a 100% subsidiary of the Group, provided a shareholder loan facility of 550m Than Baht (£10m) to Fena Estate
Company Limited {(“Fena™, its 50% owned join venture At 31 December 2015 and 2014 all of this facility was fully drawn The loan attracts
interest of 4 5% (2014 4 5%) per annum This interest was rolled up into the camying value of the loan The total loan outstanding as at

31 December 2015, including rolled up interest, was 754m Thai Baht {£14m;) (2014 730m Tha Baht {£14m))

The Group provided a further US$2m (£1m) operator loan facility to Fena which was fully drawn down This loan together with interest
charged at 2 2% per annum was fully settled in 2015

Transactions with key management personnel
The beneficial iInterest of the Directors and their connected persons in the ordinary shares of the Company was 0 16% {2014 0 16%)

In addrticn o therr salares, the Group also provides non-cash benefits to Directers and executive officers and contributes to a post-
employment definad contribution plan depending on the date of cormmencement of employment The defined contabution plan does not
nave a specified pensicn payable on retirement and benefits are determined by the extent to which the ndwdual’s fund can buy an annuty
In the market at retirement

Executive officers also participate n the Group's share option programme, Long-Term Incentive Plan and the Group's Sharesave schemes

The key management personnel compensation 15 as follows

2015 a4
£m £m
Shor*-terrm erployes benefts 5 6

Share-based payment

Directors
Executves
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34 Related undertakings

Financial statements

The full st of the Company’s related undertakings as at 31 December 2015 are set out below

131

Sharehokding Country of
Full Name percantage Type Incorparation Registered office address. Prncpal Actiaties
Arrcoa Equity Interests inc 100% Indirect subsichary USA 7600 E Orchard Rd  Sute 230 5 Halding Company
Greenwood Vilage CO 80111
Aurcca GP Corporation 100% Indwect subsdiasy UsA 7600 E Orchard Rd  Sute 230 S Hoted gwnershp
Greenwood Vitage COB0111
Aucoa tLC 100% Indirect subsckary USA 7600 E Orchard Rd Sute 230S Holding Comparty
Greenwood Vilage CO 80111
All Seasons Hotels & Resorts Lamited 100% Indrect subsihary New Zealand Level 13, 280 Queen Street Dormant
Auckiand 1140 New Zealand
Anchorage Lakefront Limited Partnership 100% Indirect subsichary usa 760C E Orchard R Sute 230 S Hoted cwner
Greenwood Village, COBO111
Archyieid Lirnited 100% Indirect subsidiary Unied Kingdom  Victona House, Victona Road Hotel owner and operator
Horley, Surrey RHE 7AF
ATOS Holdings AG 100% Direct subschary Austng Scrulhot 8/1st floar 10 0Venna investment holding
Austna
Aurora Inn Operacng Parinership L P 100% indhirect subsiary USA 7600 E Orchard Rd Sute 2305 Hatel ownership
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Avon Winfield Inn Lid 100% Indrect subsxdiary usa 7600 E Orchard Rd Sute 236 S Hotel cvwnership
Greenwood Vilage CQ 80111
Avon Wy-nglg LLC 100% Incirect subsidiary usa 7600 E Orchiard Bd, Swte 230 S, Hotel cwner
Greenwood Vilage CO BO111
Beijing Fortune Hotel Co Ltd 70% indirect subsichary Feople's Repubkc  Budaing No 5 7 DongSanHuan Hotel owner and operator
of China Mucidle Roag Chaoyang Dhstnct
Bejing, PR China 100020
Bittmore Place Operations Corporation 100% Indirect subskliary UsA 7600 £ Orchard Rd , Sute 230 S, Liquor licence holder
Greenwood Vilage CO 80111
Birrkenhead Holdings Pty Lig 100% Indirect subsichary Australia Sutte 7B, Zenth Residences B2 94 Holding cornpany
Darnghurst Road, Potts Point,
Sydney 2011, Austraia
Brrkenhead Investments Pty Lid 100% Indrect subsidiary Australia Surte 78, Zenth Residences 82 94 Property Investment &
Darknghurst Road, Potts Pont, Management
Sydney 2011 Austraia
Bostenian Hotel Limted Partrership 100% Incliract subsciary USA 7600 E Orchard Rd , Sute 230 S Hotel cwner
Greenwocd Vilage CO 80111
Buffalo Operating Partnership L P 100% Incirect subsidiary USA 7600 E Orchard Rd Sute 2305 Hotel ownership
Greenwood Vilage, CO 80111
Butfalo RHM Cperating LLG 100% Indirect subschary USA 7800 E Orchard R Surtte 230 S Hotal owner
Greenwood Vilaga COBO111
COL (New “York) LLC 100% inclrect subsickary usAa 7500 E Orchand R, 5018 230 S Hotel cwner
Greenwoed Vilage CO 80111
COL (NYD) Limited 100% Inchrect subschary usa 7600 E Crchardt Rd , Sute 230 5, Investment holding
Greenwood Vilage CC 80111
COL Entertainment & Lessure Pte Ltd 100% Indirect subsdiary Repubic of 36 Robinson Road #04-01 City Provision of management
Singapore House Singapone 058577 services and investment
holding
COL Hosputalty Trusts' 35% Assocated undertakngs  Republic of See note below* See note below'
Singapore
CDL Hotels (Chelsea) Lenned 100% tnckrect subsickary Unitedd Kingdom. VAictona House Victora Road, Hatel owner and operater
Horley Surmey AHE 7AF
COL Hotets {Korea) Limted 100% Incwect supsdsary Repubtc of Korea  Chunggu Sowolro 50 Seout Hotel owner and operator
Korea 04637
CDL Hotels (Labuan) Limited 100% Incirect subschary Malaysa Tiara Labuan Jalan Tenpung Batu Hotel owner and operator

57000 FT Lablan Maaysa
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4
Sharehokiing Country of
Ful Name percentage Type wicorporaticn Hegstered office address Principal Actvities
CDL Hotets (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd 100% Indirect subsicary Malaysia Level 8 Symphony House Pusat Hotel pwner and operator
Dagangan Dana 1 Jalan PJU 1A/46
47301 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
COL Hotels (U K ) Limited 100% Indirect subsiciary United Kingdom  Victora House Victona Road Hotes owner and operator
Horley Surey RHB 7AF
CDL Hatels Holdings Japan Limited 100% Indirect subsiciiary Hang Kong 2803 Great Eagle Centre 23 Investment Heldng
Harbour Road Wanchar Hong Kong
CDL Hetels Holdings New Zealand Limited  100% Indirect subsichary New Zealand Level 13 280 Queen Street Investment holding
Atickland 1140 New Zealand
CDL Hotels Japan Pte Ltd 40% Associated undertakings Republic of 36 Robinson Road #04-01 City Investment Holdng
Singapore House Singapere 068877
CDL Hotels USA Inc 100% Indirect subsidiary usa 7600 E Orchard Rd , Suite 230 3 Hatel nvestment holding
Gresnwood Village GO 80111 compary
CDL Investments New Zealand Uimited 67% Inckrect subskdiary New Zealand Level 13 280 Queen Street, Investment and property
Auckland 1140 New Zealand management company
CDL Land New Zealand Limited 100% Inchrect subsdiary New Zealand Level 13 280 Queen Street Property investment and
Auckland 1140 New Zealand development
CDL West 45th Street LLC 100% Indirect subsidiary USA 7600 E Orchard Rd , Sute 230 S Hotel Owner
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Chicage Hotel Holdings Inc 100% Indirect subsiciary usa 700 E Orchard Rd Sute 230 S Hotel ownership
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Cinonnan 81 Co 100% Indirect subsiiary usa 7600 E Orchard Rd  Surte 230 S, Hotet owner
Greenwood Vilage, CO 80111
City Century Pte Ltd 100% Indirect subsidiary Republic of 36 Robinson Road #04 01 City Restaurateur
Singapcre House Singapore 068877
City Elite Pte Ltd 100% Indirect subxsichary Republic of 36 Robmngon Road #04-01 City Restaurateur
Singapore House Singapore DBBE77
City Hotels Pte Lid 100% Indirect subsidiary Republc of 36 Robinson Road #04-01 City Hotel owner
Singapore House Sngapcre 068877
Context Securibes Lirnited 100% Indrect subsdiary New Zealand Level 13, 280 Queen Street Investment holding
Auckland 1140 New Zealand
Copthome (Nominegs) Lirmited 100% Indrect subsdiary United Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road Investment holding
Horey, Surmey RHE TAF
Coptherne Aberdeen Limited B83% Indirect subsidiary United Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road Hotet management
Horley Sumey RHE TAF
Coptherne Hetel (Birmingbham) Limited 100% Inchrect subsdiary United Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road, Hotet owner and operator
Horley Sumey AHG TAF
Caopthorne Hotel (Cardiff) Limited 100% Indirect subsidiary Urited Kingdom  Victoria House Victona Road Hotel owner and operator
Horley Sumey AHE 7AF
Coptrorne Hotel (Effingham Paik) Lmited  100% Indirect subsidiary United Kingdom  Victora House Victona Road Hotel owner and operator
Horley Surrey RHB 7AF
Copthorne Hotel (Gatwick) Lirmited 100% Indirect subsidiary Untted Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road, Hotel owner ang operator
Horley Surrey RHE 7AF
Copthome Hotel {Manchester) Limited 100% Indirect subsidiary Unted Kingdom Victona House, Victona Road Hotel owner and aperator
Horey Surrey RHE 7AF
Copthorne Hotel {Merry Hil} Construction  100% Indirect subsichary United Kingdom  Victena House Victona Road, Hotel cwner and operator
Lirmited Horley Sumey RHE 7AF
Capthorne Hatel (Merry Hill) Bmited 100% Indirect subsidiary United Kingdom  Victena House, Victona Road Hoted owner and operator
Horley Suney RHE 7AF
Copthome Hotel (Newcastle) Limited 96% Indirect subsichary Unitect Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road Hotel owner and operatar
Horey Surrey RHB 7AF
Copthome Hatel (Plymouth) bimited 100% Indirect subsiary Unted Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road Hotel owner and operator
Harley, Surrey RHE 7AF
Copthorne Hatel (Slough) Limitedt 100% Inclirect subsiciary Unted Kingdom  Victona House Viciona Road Hatel owner and operator
Horley, Surrey RHE 7AF
Coptharne Hatet Heldings Limited 100% Orect subsichary United Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road Investment holding

Horley Surrey RHE 7AF
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Copthome Hotels Limited 100% Indirect subsichary Unttegt Kingdom  Mictona House, Victong Read Hotelinvestrment holding
Horley, Surrey RHE 7AF
Copthorne Orchid Hotel Singapere Pte itd 100% Indirect subsichiary Republic of 36 Robinson Read #04-01 City Property owner and
Singapore House Sngapeore 068877 developer
Coptherne Orchid Penang Sdn Bhd 100% Indrect subsciary Malaysa Level 8 Symphony House Pusat Hotel awner
Dagangan Dana 1, Jalan PJU 1A/46
47301 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Dipicmat Hotel Holding Limited 100% Indirect subsichary United Kingdam  Victona House Victona Road Investrnent holding
Horley Surrey RHE 7AF
Durham Qperating Partnership L P 100% Indrect subsidiary Usa 7600 E Orchard Rd  Sute 230 S, Hotel ownership
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Elte Hotel Management Services Pte Lid  100% Indirect subsiciary Republic of 36 Robinson Road #04-01 Crty Hotel Management
Singapore Haouse Singapore G6BE77 Consultancy Services
Fena Estate Company Limited 2 50% Associated undertakings  Thaland No 188 FiCO Flace Bulding Foor Investrment holding
10 Sukhurmat 21 Road [Asoke) COmpAny
Klongteuyneur Sub-distnct Wattana
Distnct Bangkok Thaland
Fergurscn Hotel Management Umnited 50% Associated undertakings  Hong Kong Unit 606 6th Foor, Allance Bulding investment holding
133 Cennaught Read Central Hong
Kong
First 2000 Limited 100% Indirect subsidiary Herg Kong 2803 Great Eagle Centre 23 Investment holding
Harbour Road \Wancha, Hong Kang
First Sponsor Group Limited (fk 2 Idea 3B% Associated undertakings  Cayman Isiands 190 Elgin Avenue Gecrge Town Investment Holding
Vallay Investment Heldings Ltd) 2 KY1-8005 Grand Cayman Cayman
Islands
Five Star Assurance Inc 100% Indlirect subsichary USA 1401 Eye St NW Sutte 600 Captwve insurance
Washington D C 20005 company
Four Peaks Management Company 100% indirect subsihary usa 7600 E Orchard Rd  Sute 230 S, Anzona condorminium
Greerwood Vilage, CO 80111 management
Gateway Holdings Corporaton | 100% Inchrect subsdiary Usa 76800 E Orchard Rd Sute 2305 holdig campany
Greenwood Vilage CC 80111
Gateway Holel Holdings Inc 100% Inchrect subsidiary Usa 7600 E Orchard Rd Sute 230 S Hatel ownership
Greenwood Vilage CO 80111
Galeway Regal Hotdings LLC 100% Indirect subsidiary usa 7600 E Orchard R, Sute 2305 Hotel owner and operater
Greenwood Vilage CO 80111
Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation 87% Incirect subsdiary Phipines 10 Floor Hentage Hotel Manila Hotel ownes and operator
EDSA comer Roxas Boulevard and investment helding
Pasay City Phifppines 1300 company
Harbour Land Corporation 100% Assocted undertalings  Phibpoines 10 Floor Hertage Hotel Marda Land owner
EDSA comer Roxas Boulevard
Pasay Gity Phiippines 1300
Harbour View Hotel Pre Lid 100% Indiract subsichary Republc of 36 Rabinscn Roac #04-01 iy Hotel operator
Singapore House Singapore 068877
Harrow Entertanment Pte Ltd 100% Indirect subsdiary Repubic of 36 Rotwnson Road #04-01 City Investment holding
Singapore House Singapore DESE77
Hong Leang Ginza TMK 70% Indirect subsidiary Japan 4 1 Nihcnbashi 1-chome, Chuo-ku, Property owner
Tokyo, Japan
Hong Leong Hotet Development Limited  86% Indirect subsidiary Taan 2 Song Shou Road Xiry Dhstnet Hotei owner and cperator
Taper 11051, Tawan
Hong Leong Hotels Pte Lid 100% Inctrect subsidiary Cayman Islands PO Box 308 Ugland House Grand Investment holding
Cayman, KY1 1104 Cayman Islands company
Hong Leong International Hotel (Singapore) §7% Inchrect subsichary Repubhc of 36 Robinson Road #04-07 City investment holdng
Pte Ltd Singapore House Sngapore 068377
Hospitality Group bimsted 100% Indwect subsichary New Zealand Leved 13 280 Queen Street Holding Company
Aucidang 1140 New Zealand
Hospitalty Hokings Pte Ltd 3100% Indirect subschary Repubbe of 36 Acbnscn Road #0401 City Investment holding
Singapore House Singapore 068877 company
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Hospitality Leases Limited 100% Indirect subsidiary New Zezland Level 13, 280 Queen Street, Lessee company
Auckland 1140, New Zealand
Hospitality Services Limited 100% Indirect subsdiary New Zealand Level 13 280 Queen Street Hotel cperatiory
Auckiand 1140, New Zealand management
Hospitality Ventures Pte Lid 100% Indirect subsdiary Repubic of 36 Raobinson Road #04-01 City Investment holding
Singapore House Singapore 088877
Hotel Liverpool Limited 100% Indirect subsidiary United Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road Property leting
Horey Surrey RHB 7AF
Hotel Liverpool Managernent Limited 100% Incirect subsidiary Unted Kingdem  Victona House Victona Road Operating comparry
Horey Surrey RHB 7AF
Hotelcorp New Zealand Pty Ltd 100% Indirect subsidiary Australia Sune 7B Zenth Residences 82 94 Holding Company
Daringhurst Road Potls Pant
Sydney 2011, Australia
Intematicnal Cesign Link Pte Ltd 100% Indirect subsichary Repubic of 36 Robinson Road #04-01 City Property project design
Singapore Housa Singapore 088877 consuttancy services
{currently dormant)
KIN Holdings Limited] 100% Indirect sutsichary New Zealand Level 13, 280 CQueen Street Holding compariy
Auckland 1140 New Zealand
King's Tangln Shopping Pia Lid 100% Inchrect subsiary Republc of 36 Robinson Road #04-01 City Property Owner
Singapore House Singapore 068877
Kingsgate Holdings Pty Lid 100% Inchirect subsichary Austrakia Suite 78, Zenith Residences 82 94 Helding company
Daringhurst Road Potts Paint
Sydney 2011, Australiz
Kingsgate Hotel Pty Ltd 100% Indirect subsichary Australia Suite 7B Zenth Residences, 82-94 Sersce company
Daringhurst Road Potis Pont,
Sydney 2011, Austraha
Kingsgate Hotels and Resoris Lirnited 100% Incirect subsichary New Zealand Level 13, 280 Queen Strest, Franchise holder (Qualty)
Auckland 1140 New Zealand
Kirgsgate Hotals Limited 100% Indirect subsihary New Zealand Level 13, 280 Queen Street Hotel owrer and cperator
Auckiand 1140 New Zealand
Kingsgate International Corporation Limited  100% Inclirect subsiiary New Zealand Level 13 280 Queen Street Investment hoiding
Aucklanc 1140 New Zealand
Kingsgate Investments Pty Ltd 100% Inclirect subsiciary Australia Sute 7B Zenith Resicences 82 84 Irmvestrment comparty
Darlinghurst Road, Potts Pont
Sydney 2011 Australia
Lakeside Operating Partnership L P 100% Increct subscary USA 7600 E Crchard Rd |, Sute 230 S Hotel ownership
Greenwood Village CO 80111
London Britannia Hotel Limited 100% Indirect subsiiary Urited Kingdom  Victena House, Victona Road Hotel owner and operator
Horley Surrey RHB 7AF
London Tara Hotel Limited 100% Indirect subskliary United Kingdom  Victona House, Victoria Road, Haotel owrer and operator
Horley Surrey RHE6 7AF
M&C Asia Finance (UK) Limitec 100% Direct subsidiary Unied Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road, Finance company
Horley, Surrey RHE 7AF
M&C Asia Holdings (UK) Limted 00% Direct subsihary United Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road Investment holding
Horey Surrey RHS 7AF
M & C (CB) Lirmted 100% [nclirect subsicliary United Kingdom  Victena House Victona Road lnvestrnient company
Horley Surrey RHE 7AF
M & C (CD) Limited 100% Inchrect subsiiary United Kingdom Victona House, Victona Road Investment holding
Horley Surmey RHEG 7AF
M & C Management Services (USA) inc 100% Indiirect subsichary usa 7600 E Orchard Rd Suite 2305 Management services
Greenwood Vitage, CO 80111 company
M & G NZ Limited 100% Indirect subsiciary United Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road, Holcing company
Herley Surrey RHE 7AF
M & C Reservations Services Limited 100% Incirect subsickary United Kingglom  Victona House Victoria Foad Prowder of reservation
Horley Surrey REG 7AF senices to hotel owners
and operators
M&C (India) Heldings Pte Ltd 100% Incirect subsidiary Republic of 36 Robinson Road #04-01 Cry Investment Holding

Singapore

House Singapore 088877
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ME&C (Maunius) Holdings Limited 100% incirect subsiadary Mauntius 3rd Floor Standard Chartered Tower Investment Holding
19 Cybercity Ebéne, Maumius
MAC Business Trust Managerment Limited  100% Indwect subsidiary Republe: of 36 Robinson Roag #04-0% City Provision of property fund
Singapore House Singapore 068877 management Senices
M&C Colorado Hotel Corporation 100% Indwect subsihary usa 7600 E Orchard Rd Sute 230 5 Holdng Company
Greenwood Vilage CCQB0111
MAC Crescent Corporation 100% incirect subs:chary usAa 7600 E Orchad Rd  Suite 230§ Investment Holding
Greenwocd Vilage COB0111
M&C Crescent Interests LLC 100% Indirect subsidiary USA 7600 E Orchard Ad Sute 2305 Property owner
Greenwood Vilage CO 80111
MB&G Finance (1} Lirmited 100% Inchrect subsickary United Kingaom  Victona House Victona Road Finance compary
Horey Surmey RHB 7AF
MA&C Holdings (Thatand) Lid 100% indirect subsichary Thaland 75 White Group Tower || 11th Investment Hokding and
Floor, Sor Rubia. Sukhurmat 42 Hotel Management
Road Kwaeryy Phrakanong Khet
Wongtoey Bangkok 10110 Thaldand
MAC Holdings Delaware Partnership 100% Indwect subskliary UsSA 760C E Orchard Rd  Sutte 230 S, Property Investment
Greenwood Vilage COB0111
MAC Holdings LLC 100% Indirect subsichary usA 7600 E Orchard Rd , Surte 230 S Helding Company
Greenwocd Vitage COBO111
MA&C Hatel Enterpnses (Asia) Limited 100% indirect subsiciary Hong Kong 2803 Great Eagle Cenire 23 Investment holding
Harbour Rgad Wancha,
Hong Kong
MAC Hotel Interests Inc 100% Incirect subsiary USA 7600 E Orchard Ad , Sute 230 S Hatel Management
Greenwood Vitzge, COBO111 senace:s Company
MA&C Hotel Investments Pte Ltd 100% Inchrect subsiciary Republiic of 38 Robminson Road #04-01 City imvestrnent holding
Singapore House Sngapore 068877
M&C Hotels France Management SARL 100% Indirect subschary France 12 boulevard Haussmann 75008 Managerment Company
Fans France
MAC Hotels France SAS 100% Indwect subsidiary France 12 boutevard Haussmann 75009 Hotel Owner
Pans, France
M&C Hotels Holdings Japan Pte Lid 100% Indirect subsichary Repubéc of 36 Robinson Road #04-01 City Investment Holding
Singapore House Sngapore 068877
MA&C Hotels Holdings Limited 100% Direct subs:ciary Unted Kingdorm  Victaria House, Victona Road Investment helding
Horley Surrey RHB 7AF
MAC Hotels Holdings USA Limited 100% Cwect subsidiary Cayman slands PO Box 309 Ugland House Grand Investment holcing
Cayman €Y1-1104 Cayman Istands
MEC Hotels Japan Pte Lid 100% indirect subsichary Repubéc of 36 Robinson Road #04-01 City fnvestment Holding
Singapore House Sngapere 068877
MA&C Hatels Partnershipy France SNC 100% Indirect subsdiary France 12 boulevard Haussmann, 75009 Investment holdng
Pans, France
MA&GC Hospitaity Holdings {Asia) Limited 100% Inchirect subsciary Heng Kong 2803 Groat Eagle Centre 23 Investment holding
Harbour Road Wancha
Heng Kong
MA&C Hospitality intermnatonal Limitec 100% Indirect subscliary Hong Kong 2803 Great Eagle Centre 23 Investment holding
Harbyour Road, Wancha,
Hong Kong
M&C Management Holdings Limited 100% Dwect subsidiary Umted Kingdom  Viciona House Victona Road Invesirment holding
Horley Surrey RHB 7AF
MAC REIT Management Limited 100% Indrect subsichary Republic of 36 Robnson Road #04-01 Crly BET nvestment
Singapore House Sngapore 06B877 maragement Serces
MAC New York (Times Square), ULC 100% Inciwect subslary Delawars USA 7600 E Orchard Rd Swte 220 5 Imvestiment holding
Greenwood Vilage CO 80111
MA&C New York Finance (UK) Limited 100% Incirect subsschary United Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road Finance Company
Horley, Surmey RME 7AF
M&C New York (Times Square) EATULLC  100% Inchrect subsidiary USA 76800 E Orchard Ad Sunte 230 S, Hotel owner

Greenwood Vilage COB0111
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M&C Singapere Finance (LK) Lymited 100% Direct subsichary United Kingdom  Victona House, Victona Road, Finance Company
Horley Sumey RHG TAF
M&C Singapore Holdings (LK} Limited 100% Dwect subsidary Urdted Kingdorn  Victona House, Victora Road Investment holdng
Horley, Sumey RHE 7AF
McCormick Ranch Operating Partnership 100% Indirect subsickary usa 7600 E. Orchard Rd Suite 230 S Hotel ownership
LP Greermwood Vilage CO 80111
MHM Inc 100% Indect subsidiary Usa 7800 € Orchard R Suite 230 5, Hotal management
Greenwood Vilage CO 80111
Milennium Bostorman Inc 100% Incirect subsiciary usA 7600 E Orchard Rd , Surte 230 S, Holding Company
Greenwood Vitage CO 80111
Millennium & Coptherne (Austran Holdings) 100% Direct subsichary United Kingdom  Victona House, Victona Road imvestment holding
Lmited Horley Surrey RHE 7AF
Milennium & Copthome (Jersey Haldings)  100% Indirect subsidiary Umited Kingdom  Victona Housa Victona Road Holding company
Lmited Horley Surrey RHB 7AF
Millennium & Copthorne Hotel Holdings 100% Indirect subsdiary Hong Kong 2803 Great Eagle Centre 23 Investroent and
{Hong Kong) Liemited Harbowr Road Wancha development of hotels and
Hong Kong hotel management
Milleniuum & Copthorne Hotets {Hong Kong) 100% indirect subsiiary Haong Kang 2803 Great Eagle Centre 23 Provimien of hatel
Lirnited Harbour Road, Wanchar management and
Hong Kong consuftancy seraces
Millennium & Cepthorng Hetels Limited 100% indirect subsiiary New Zealand Level 13 280 Queen Street Narme hoiding
Auckiand 1140, New Zealand
Millenrium & Copthorne Hotels New 75% Incirect subsidiary New Zealanc Level $3, 280 Queen Strest Hotel nvestment halding
Zealand Limited Auckland 1140, New Zealand comparty
Millenmium & Copthorne Hotels Pty bid 100% Indirect subsidiary Austraia Surte 7B Zendth Resxdences 82-84 Nare holding
Daringhurst Road  Potts Pount
Sydney 2011, Ausiralia
Millenniurn & Cepthorme International 100% incirect subsidiary Republic of 36 Robnson Road #04-01 City Hotels and resorts
Limited Singapore House Singapore 068877 management
Millennium & Coptherne Middle East 51% Indirect subsichary Hong Kong 2803 Great Eagle Cenire 23 hotel management
Hoidings Limited Harbour Road Wancha BEIVCES Company
Hong Kong
Millennium & Copthome Pension Trustee 100% Dwect subsciary United Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road, Pension trust acting
Limited Horley Surrey RHE 7AF on behalf of company
trustees
Millenmium & Copthome Share Trustees 100% Dwect subsidiary United Kingdom  Victona House Victora Foad Share Trustee Comparny
bimited Horley Surrey RHE 7AF
Mikenrium COG Pans SAS 100% indirect subsdiary Frence 12 boulevard Haussmann 75009 Haotel cperator
Pans France
Milenmum Hotel Holdings EMEA Lirited  100% Direct subsichary United Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road, Investment hokdng
Horley Surrey RHEB TAF
Millennium Hotels & Resorts Services 100% Indirect subsilary United Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road, Managemert Contract
Limited Horley Surrey RHE 7AF holding comgany
Miiennium Hotels Europe Holcings Limied  100% Dwect subsiliary Ursted Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road Investment holding
Horey Sumey AHG 7AF
Millenuurn Hotels taly Holdings S ¢l 100% Inctrect subsxfiary lay Via Vittona Venetc n 70 Roma Hotellene Sector
00187, haly
Millenmum Hotels Limited 100% Indirect subsihary United Kingdom Victona House Victora Road, Investiment holding
Herley Surrey RHG 7AF
Millennium Hotels Hotel Patace Hoidings  100% Indirect subsichiary ttaly Via Vittona Venato n 70 Roma Hotel owner and cperator
Srl 00187 ftaly
Mitenrium Hetels {West London) Lmited  100% Indwect subschary Unted Kingdom  Victona House Victona Foad Property lettng
Horley Surrey RHE 7AF
Millenmiurm Hotels (West London) 100% Indrect subsxiary United Kingdom  Victona House, Victona Road Hotel operator
Management Limited Hovley Surmey RHB 7AF
Millennium Hotels London Limited 100% Drrect subsdiary Unsted Kingdom  Victona House Victona Road Imvestment holding

Horley Surrey RHE 7AF




Annual eport and accounts 2015

Financial statements

137

Shareholding Coumtry of ¢
Fult Name percentage Tyre NCOIporation Regustered cifice address Principal Acthties
Millenmium Qpera Panis SAS 100% Indirect subsdiary France 12 boulevarg Haussmann, 75009 Hotel operator
Pans France
New Unity Holdings Lid 2 50% Assocated undertalkangs BVI PC Box 146 Road Town Tortola, Irvestment holdng
Brtsh Virgn Islands
New York Sign LLC 50% Assocated undertalangs USA 7800 E Orchard Rd Sute 230 S Tolease manage, and
Greenwood Vilage, GO 80111 oihenmsa deal with certam
advertising signage space
at the Novatel hotel
Newbury Investments Pte Lid 100% Indrect subsidiary Republic: of 35 Robinson Road #0401 Ciy Investment holdng
Singapore House Singapore 068877
Park Plaza Hotel Corporation 100% Indwect subsichary UsA 7800 E Crchard Rd Suite 230 S, Hedding Compary
Greenwood Village CO 80111
FT Millennium Hotels & Resaris 100% Indirect subsidiary Indonesia Jalan Fachmudin 3 Jakarta 10250, Management serces
ingornesia
PT Milennwm Sinh Jakarta BO% Indirect subsidiary Indonesa Jalan Fachrudin 3, Jakarta 10250 Hotel owner
indonesa,
QINZ (Anzac Avenue) Limited 100% Indwect subsichary New Zeatand Level 13 280 Queen Steet Hotel owner
Aucidand 1140 New Zealand
QINZ Holdings (New Zealand) Limited 100% Indlirect subschary New Zealand Level 13, 280 Queen Street hokding cormparty
Auckland 1140, New Zealand
Cuantum Limited 100% Inciirect subsichary New Zealand Level 13 280 Queen Street Holding company
Auckland 1140 New Zealand
Regal Grand Holdings Corporaton | 100% Indhrect subsdiary usa 7600 E Orchard Pd , Sute 2305 Hokding company
Greenwood Vilage CO 80111
Regal Harvest House L P 100% Indirect subschary USA 7600 E Orchard Rd Sute 230 S Hotel ownership
Greenwood Vilage, CC 80111
Regal Hotel Managemant Inc 100% Indirect subsiciary UsA 7600 € Orchard Rd Sute 23CS Holding company
Greenwood Vilage, CO 80111
Repubic Hotels & Resorts Limited 100% Indrect subsdiary Republic of 36 Aobinson Road #04-01 Caty Hatel operator and
Sigapore House Sngapore 068877 nvestment Rolding
comparny
Republic Hotels Suzhou Pte Lid 100% Indirect subsdiary Repubc of 36 Robnson Road 40401 City Dormant
Singapore House Singapore 0685677
Republic Iconic Hotel Pte Ltd 100% Inchrect subsidiary Republic of 36 Robmsen Roac #04-01 City Hotel operator
Singapore House Singapore 063877
RHH Operating LLC 100% Indwect subsxhiary Usa 7600 E Orchart R Sute 2303, Hotel owner
Greermwvood Vilage, CO 80111
RHI Boston Hokdings Comaration | 100% Incirect subsdliary usa 7600 E Orchard Rd Sutte 230 S Holding company
Greerwood Vilage CO 80111
RHI Boston Holdings Corperation |l 100% Indirect subsciary USA 7600 E Orchard B3 Suite 230 8, Helding company
Greernwood Village CC 80111
AHM Aurora LLC 100% Inclrect subsidiary USa 7600 E Crchard Rd , Sute 230 S Hotel ownership
Greenwood Vitage CO 80111
RHM Holgings Corporation | 100% Indrect subsidiary USA 7600 E Orchard Rd Sute 230 S Holding cormparty
Greenwood Village, CO BO111
AHM Management LLC 100% Indirect subsciary usa 7600 £ Crehard Rd Surte 230°S, Hotel ownership
Greenwood Vitage CC 80111
RHM Ranch LLC 100% Indirect subsidiary usa 7600 £ Orchard Rd  Sute 2305 Hotel owner
Greerwood Vilage CO 80111
RHM wWynfelo LLC 100% Inctrect subsichary usa 7600 E Orchard Rt Sute 230 S Hotel ownership
Greenwood Viltage CO 80111
RHM-88 LLC 100% Indirect subsidliary usa 7600 E Orchard Rd Sute 2305 Hoted pwner and operator
Greenwood Vilage CO 80111
RHR Capital Pte Ltd (in the process of 100% Inchirect subsciary Repubic of 36 Robwnson Road #0401 City Financial and treasury
striking off) Singapore House Sngapore 068877 Servces
R chfeld Foidngs Ccrooratand 100% Incirect subschary UsAa 7600 E Crchard Rd  Sutte 2305 Hokding Company

Greenwood Vitage CO 80111
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Richfield Hold ngs Corperanon fl 100% Indirect subsictiary LSA 7600 E Orchard Rd  Surte 230 S Holding Comparnty
Greenwood Vilage CO 80113

Richfield Holdings In¢ 100% Indirect subsidiary USA 7600 E Crchard Rd Suits 2308 Holding Comparty
Greenwood Vilage, CO 80111

Rogo Realty Carporation 40% Assocated underiakings  Fhilippines 10 Figor Hentage Hoted Mania Real estate owner
EDSA cormer Roxas Boulevard,
Pasay City, Phifppines 1300

5 S Restaurant Corporation 100% Indirect subsdiary USA 7600 E Orchard Rd  Suite 230 5 Liquer icense holder
Greernwood Vilage COC 80111

Sunnyvale Partners Lid 100% Indiect subsdiary USA 7600 E Orchard Rd  Sinte 2305 Hotel ownership
Greenwood Village, CO 80111

Tara Hotels Deutsehland GmbH 100% Indirect subsiciary Germarry Registered at the Trade regster at Hotel nvestment noxing
the local court of Hannaver with the company

legal form of Private limited company
(nurmber HRB 208133)
The Phiippine Fund Limited 60% Indirect subsidiary Bermuda C/o Coson Carporate Serwces Investment hoiding
Lmited Cumberiand House 9th
Floor, 1 Victona Street Hamitton HM

11, Bermuda
TOSCAP Limited 100% Indrect subsidiary Repubiic of 36 Robnson Road #04-01 Gity Investrnerit holding
Singapore House Sngapore 063877
Tnmark Hotel Corporatian 100% Indirect subsdiary USA 7B00E Orchard id , Sure 2308, Hatel owner and operator
Greenwood Vilage CO BO111
WHB Bittmore LLC 100% Inchrect subsidiary usa 7600 E Crohard R, Swie 230§ Hotel owner and operator
Greenwood Village CO BO111
WHB Corparation 100% Incwect subsiiary usa 7600 € Orchard Rd Sute 230 S Holding company
Greenwood Vilage CO 80111
Wy eld GP Corporanon 100% Indrect subsihary USA 7600 E Orchard Rd Sute 230 S Hotet ownership
Greenwood Village CO 80111
Wynfiela Ona i 100% Indirect subsadiary USA 7600E OrchardRd Suite 230 S Holcing company
Greenwood Vilage CO 80111
Zawno Pte Ltd 100%: Indirect subsidiary Republic of 36 Robinson Read #04-01 City Investment holdng
Singapore House Sngapore 0GBE77
Zilion Holdings Limited 100% Inciirect subschary Barbados The Phoenix Centre George Streat, Investment hokdng

Bellevlle St Michael Barpadcs

1 COL Hospiatty Trusts s a stapled group comprsing COL Hosprally Real Estate investiment Trust (H REMT] a raal estara nvestment trust anc COL Hospdalty Busness Trust CHETY 2 busngss
st 1T 1 an ~vestmont W'rateqy of meosng drectly of ndvectly N 3 Jvertlee portfobo of necmaeroducny at estale wegh § pranly wid for hospda ty andsor ~ospralty retatec
pUIPGSes whether wholy or parially and el estate reated assets n miion to e foregong HET 15 a Dusness trust wheh was actvated n Decemper 2013 In agdtion to is functon as @
master lessee HBT may alsa undertahe Gertan haspla ty and hospratty-refaled deveiopinent prects acqustonsand vgstrants wech may nal be suravte tr + 00T The registered othco
acdress of M&C RET Managament Limted Manager of H REIT and MAC Busness Trust Managemant Limted Trustee Manager of HBT 5 36 Robinson Road #04-01 City House Sngapore
068877

As dislosed i Nota 310 the consolicta ed fmancial stataments tha Gioup has corciugad that under IFRS1D has do tacto cormval cver COL Horpriakty Trists

The Groun har asserred the ciase fication of i nvestmente n Fir 15ponsar Coun Limted New Loty Holdinge | i ted andd Fend Friata Compary Limisd in actanding s st IFRS 10 and
concludad that it does not have controy

(5]

Exemption from statutory audrt

Listed below are subsidianes controlied and consolidated by the Group, where the Drectors have elected to take the exemption from /
having an audit of ther financia! statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 This exemptien 1s taken in accordance with Companies

Act s479A

Archyield Limited (1747079) Copthorne Hotel {Merry HIY) Limited (2590620}
CDL Hotels (Chelsea) Limited (2845022) Copthorne Hotel (Plymouth) Limited (3253120}
CDL Hotels (U K ) Lireuted (2729520) Capihorne Hotel (Slough) Limited (2300992)
Copthome Hotel (Birmingham) Lemited (1816493) Copthome (Nominees) Limited (2574042)
Copthome Hotel (Cardiff} Lirmited {241 1296) Drplomat Hotel Holding Limited {1527463)
Copthame Hotel {Effingharn Park) Limited (1423861} Hotel Liverpool Limited (963654 1)

Capthorme Hotel (Gatwick} Limited (994968) Hatel Liverpoot Management Limited (963@6)/
Copthome Hotel (Manchester) Limited (1855800} London Brtannia Hotel Limited (744379)

Copthome Hotel (Merry Hill Construction Limited (2649367) Londen Tara Hotel imited (1085558}
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MBC Asia Finance (UK) Limited {8391037) Milenmium & Copthome (Austnan Holdings) Limited (3757378}
MBC Asia Holdings (UK} Limited (8382946) Millernium & Copthome (Jersey Holdings) Limited (5846574)
MB&C (CB) Lirnited (3846711} Millennium & Copthome Pension Trustee Limited (8662791}
MEC (CD) Lirmited (3846704) Millenmium & Copthome Share Trustees Limited (3320990)
MAC Finance (1) Livited (6783896) Millenriurn Hote! Holdings EMEA Limited (4592877)
MRC Hotels Holdings Limited (4407581) Millennium Hotels Limited {314 1048)
ME&C Management Holdings Lirmited {(5832248) Mdlennium Hotels Europe Holdings Limited (8844747)
MEC New York Finance (UK) Lirmited (9060415) Millennium Hotels London Limited (3691885)
MEC NZ Limited (5159722) Millenrium Hotels (Wast London) Limited (8599282)
M&C Singapore Finance (UK) Limited (8381052) Millenmium Hotels {west London) Management Limited (B891908)
M&C Singapore Holdings (UK) Limited (8382985} Millenmium Motels & Resorts Services Limited {(4601112)
Each company’s registered number 1s shown In brackets after iis name
35 Non-controiling interests {“NCI")
The followng subsidianes have matenal NCI
) Ownership interests
held by NCI
Prncipal place of business/ Country of
Name Incorporabion Prncipal actuvity 2ns 2014
Miermum & Cepthome Hotels New Zealand
Urnited ("MCHNZ") New Zealand Haotel mrvestment holding comparny 25% 25%
GCDL Hospitality Trusts ("COLHT™) Singapore Real estate investment trust 64% B4%
The folkowing 1s summansed financial nformation for MCHNZ and CDLHT, prepared in accordance with local accounting standards The
information 1s before inter-company eiminations with other companies 1N the Group
MCHNZ Subgroup CDLHT Subgroup

2m5 2014 2015 24
Namo £m £m Em £m
Revenue 63 65 82 8
Frofit after tax 13 18 ) a2
Profit attibutatie to NCI 3 18 39
Other comprehenswe INcome 2 5 - -
Total comprehensive income 15 23 28 g2
Total comprenensne ncome attnbutable to NCI 3 5] 18 a9
Current assets 60 S 44 48
Non-current assets 212 217 1,168 1143
Curent kabiies (14) (18) (120} (174}
Non current iabilites {53 523 (344) (231
Not assets 205 224 748 786
Net assets atinbutable to NCI 28 56 479 503
Casn “ows ram ocperat.ng actv s 3 10 63 70
Cash *ows from mves'ng actv tias @ 79 72 (48)
Cash fows from fnancng actv- es 1 40 6 (20)
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents @) (25 3 4
Dradends pad to NCI dunng the year* 1 1 49 33

| Incluciod n £ash flows hom Lnneng ot atics.
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Company statement
of financial position
As at 31 December 2015
Restated
2015 2014

Notes £m £m
Non currant assets
Property plant and equipment © 3 c}
Investments and cther inancial assets (3] 1,803 1,689
Deferred tax asset 2 2

1,908 1894
Curraent assets
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings falling due within ane year 18 14
Other recewvables 1 2
Cash and cash equivalents - 9
19 25

Other current liabiities G (202) (368)
Net current liabdites (183) (341)
Other non current habilittes H (391) (398)
Net assets 1,334 1,157
Equity
Called up share capitat m a7 g7
Share premum 843 843
Retained earnings 398 221
Own share reserve 4 (@)
Total equity 1,334 1157

These financial statements were approved by the Beard of Directors on 18 February 2018 and were signed on its behalf by

Kwek Leng Beng Aloysius Lee
Chairman Group Chief Executve Officer

Registered No 3004377
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Company statement
of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 Decermnber 2015
Share Share Ownshare Retaned Towat
capital premim Bseve 8arnnNgs eoquity
€m £m £m £m £m
Restated batance at 1 January 2014 a7 843 {2 210 1148
Profit - - - 83 83
Other comprehensie ncoma - - - 2 2
Total comprenensive INcome - - - 85 a5
Purchase of own shares - - @ - @
Cradends - - - 74) 74)
Restated balance at 31 December 2014 97 843 (1] b i) 1,157
Balance at 1 January 2015 a7 843 (4) 221 1,157
Proft - - - 221 221
Other comprehensve expensa - - - @2 2)
Total comprehensive Ncome - - - 219 219
Share based payment transactions [net of tax) - - - 2 2
Dradends - - - (84) (44)
Balance at 31 Dacember 2015 a7 843 )] 3988 1,334

The notes on pages 142 to 145 are an integral part of these Company's financial statements
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Notes to the Company
financial statements

A Authorisation of financial statements and statement of complance with FRS 101

The parent company financial statements of Milennium and Copthorne Hotels plc {“the Company") for the year ended 31 December 2015
were authonsed for issue by the board of Directors and signed on its benalf on 18 February 2016 The Company is incorporated and
domvalled in England and Wales The Company’s ordinary shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework
(FRS 101) The financial statements are prepared under the histoncal cost convention

The Company will prepare its accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 in accordance with, and rely on the disclosure exemptions
set out n, FRS 101 If any shareholders of the Company object to this they should inform the Company in wnting 10 its registered office,
marking ther letters for the attentien of the Company Secretary, by no later than 30 Apnl 2016

As permitted by Section 408 of the Comparies Act 20086, the income statement of the Company 1s not presented as part of the financal
slatements

The Company's results are ncluded I the consclidated financial statements of Millennium and Copthome Hotels pic which are avalable
from the Group's website www millenniuminctels com

The accounting poiicies which follow set cut those policies which apply in preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 The financial statements are prepared in Stering and are rounded to the nearest millon except when otherwise
indicated

B  Accounting policies

The parent company financial statements of Millennium and Copthorne Hotels plc have been prepared in accordance with the Comparues
Act 2006 and Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (*FRS 1017, which was first applied this year after
notifying sharehoiders of the proposed change FRS 101 enables the financial statements of the parent company to be prepared n
accordance with EU-adopted IFRS but with certain disclosure exemptions The main areas of reduced disclosure are in respect of equity
settled share based payments, financial instruments, the cash flow statement, and related party transactions with Group companies

The Company eady adopted FRS 101 amendments before the effective date of 1 January 2016 regarding the presentation of financial
statements In compliance with the IAS 1 format

An explanation of how the transiion to FRS 101 has affected the reporied financial position of the Company Is provided in Note K

The accounting policies adopted for the parent company are otherwise consistent with those used for the Group which are set out cn
pages 79 tc 139

C Dwvidends
Detalls of dvdends paid and proposed (n the current and pror year are gven in Note 28 to the consohdated financial statemnents

D Profit attnbutable to members of the parent company
The profit dealt with i the financial statements of the parent Company i1s £221m (2014 £84m)

E Property, plant and equipment

Capital work n

progress

em

Cestat 1 January 2015 3
Addmions ~
Cost at 31 December 2015 3
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F Investments and other financial assets

Sharesm Loans o Groug

subsidzry subsidary sottiac
undertakings undertakings arrangements Total
Em £Em £m £m
Cost and net bock value at 1 January 2015 1854 25 6 1883
Reductiens (342) 16) - (348)
Addiions 355 2 i 358
Foresgn exchange adjustrments 5 (1 - 4
Cost and net book value at 31 Decembaer 2015 1,872 29 7 1,803

There were no provisions made against nvestrents In subsidiary undertakings Reductions and additions relate to intemnal restructunng
transacticns

The Company's subsidiary underlzkings at 31 Decernber 2015 are listed in Note 34 to the consolidated financal statements

G  Other current liabiltres

Restated
205 2014
£m £m
Bark loans and overdrafis 60 203
Bonds payable 34 2G
Amcunts owed 10 subsichary undertakings 105 130
Other payables 1 2
Accruals and deferrad income 2 2
202 365
H Other non current llabiities
Restated
2015 2014
£m £m
Bank loans ksl 74
Bonds payable &7 a6
Amounis cwed to subsidiary undertakings 247 220
Net amoloyes cefned cene't bablbes 8 5]
3 396
Other non current labities are repayable as follows
Reswed
2015 2014
£tm £m
Between ong and two years - [
Between two ang five years agl a3z
3N 396

| Share capital
Detals of the Company's share capital are given in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements

J  Related parties

For the year ended 31 December 2015, fees paid/payable by the Company to Hong Leong Management Services, a subsidiary of Hong
Leong Investment Holdings Pte Ltd amounted to £nil (2014 £1m} At 31 December 2015, £nil (2014 E£nil) of fees payable was
outstanciing
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K Transition to FRS 101

Financial statements

144

Ag stated in Note B, these are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with FRS 101 The accounting policies set
out in Note B have been applied in prepanng the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, the comparative information
presented In these financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 and in the preparation of an operming FRS 101 balance shest

at 1 January 2014 (the Company's date of transition)

In prepanng its FRS 101 balance sheet, the Company has adusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in

accordance with its old basis of accounting (UK GAAP)

The transition from UK GAAR to FRS 101 has affected the Company’s financial position with the recognition of a net employee defined

benefit liabiity and relating deferred tax asset

Detalled impacts are as follows

31 December Effact of 31 Decamber
2015 transiion 1o 2015
UK GAAP FRS 101 FRAS 11
£m £m £m
Non current assets
Property plant and equipment 3 3
nvestments and other financial assets 1,803 1,903
Deferred tax assat - 2 2
1 906 2 1,908
Current assets
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakngs faling due within one year 18 18
Other recewvables 1 1
Cash and cash equialents _ _
19 19
Other current habihties {189) {3 {202)
Net current habilties (180) €3] 18y
Other non current habilities (385) B 391)
Net assets 1341 N 1,334
Equity
Called up share capital 97 a7
Share prermium 843 843
Retained earmings 405 G| 398
Qwn share reserve 4) 4
Total equity 1,341 ) 1,334
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il
31 December Etfact of 31 Decarmber
2014 transton ta 2014
UK GAAP FRS 101 FRS 101
£m £m £m
Nen current assets
Property plant and equipment 3 3
Investrents and other iinancral assets 1889 1888
Deferred tax asset - 2 2
1892 2 1894
Current assets
Amounts owed by subsidary undertakings faling due within cne year 14 14
Cther receivables 2 2
Cash and cash equivalents g 9
25 25
Other current lizbilities {365} {1 {366)
Net current habiities {340) m (341)
Other non current habilities {390) ) (398)
Netassets 1162 {5} 1157
Equity
Called up share capital g7 a7
Share premium 843 843
Retaned garnings 226 5) 221
Cwn share reserve (@) 4
Total equity 1,162 [5)] 1157
1 January Effect of 1 January
014 transition o 014
UK GAAP FRS 101 FRS 10%
£m £m Em
Non current assets
Property plant and eguipment 2 2
imvest~ents 2rc orer fnancizl assets 1602 1602
Deferred tax asset - 2 2
1804 2 1,606
Current assets
Amounis ewed Dy subsidiary undertakings faling due within one year 13 15
Other recervables 1 1
Cash and cash equivalenis 16 16
a2 32
Other current habiliies 74 2 72
Net cusrent iabites 42) 2 [Cle]
Other non current liabilities 1408) (o {818)
Net assots 1154 (5] 1,148
Equity
Called up share cagstal 97 97
Share premum 823 B43
Retzined eamngs 218 1) 210
Cwn sharereserve @ (2)
Total equity 1154 (] 1148

]
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Key operating statistics
Yaar ended ‘Yeas ended Yoar ended
2015 2014 204
Reported Constant Reparted
Owned or faased hotets currency curency cuTency
Occupancy [%)
New York 821 B67
Regional US 58.2 602
Total US 66.1 685
Londen 80.2 857
Rest of Europs T2.7 B8G 1
Total Europe 76.5 774
Singapore 871 BR3
Restof Asa 84.5 72
Total Asia 732 781
Australasia 71 737
Total Group 718 742
Average Room Rate (£)
New York 17399 17495 162 93
Regional US 84 00 7879 7337
Total US 120 84 11673 108 70
London 135 51 13123 13123
Rest of Europe 7068 56 82 6916
Total Europe 105 72 102 33 103 38
Singapore 21867 S7 79 9840
Rest cf Asia 843 8423 8378
Total Asia 8770 20 41 o045
Australasa 56 18 9221 5709
Total Group 100 19 2831 96 46
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Yoar ended Year ended Yaar ended
25 2012 2Ma
Reported Constamt Reported
Ownad orisasad hotels surency cumency curTency
RevPAR (L)
New York 142.92 15173 141 30
Regional US 4892 47 46 4419
Total US 79.89 7984 74 44
Londen 10868 112 47 13247
Rest of Europe 5156 46 16 4778
Total Eurcpe 8092 7918 7997
Singapare 7945 B6 34 B6 88
Rest of Asia 5435 5995 59 84
Total Asia 64.23 7059 7082
Australasia 43.33 38 ag 4210
Total Group 7188 7290 7155
Gross Operating Profit Margin (%)
New York 239 280
Regional US 212 201
Total LIS 27 243
Londen 508 509
Rest of Europe %7 249
Total Europe a7 415
Singapore 443 474
Rest of Asia 31 351
Total Asia 381 408
Australasia 425 412
Tatal Group M1 360

For comparability, the 31 December 2014 Average Room Rate and RevPAR have been translated at average exchange rates for the year

ended 31 December 2015

exclucng managed franchesed and envestment hotes

n
c
5
-
]
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Group financial record

Restatad Restated
2015 2014 2m3 2012 201
£m £€m £m €m £m
income statement
Revenue 847 826 1,064 768 a1
QCrerzting profit 112 195 294 140 180
Net “rance expense (20} a7 (13 ] @
Incarne tax expense (12 37} 30 {25) (28)
Proft for the year a7 151 265 147 165
Cash flow
Cash generated from operations 20 330 204 196 216
Statement of financial position
Property plant eguipment and lease premium prepayment 2,858 2851 2457 20% 2091
tnvestment properties 506 479 414 169 74
Investment and loans In jont ventures and associates 255 235 203 440 423
Loans due from asscoiate - - - 29 51
0 her financ al assets - 5 5 -] 8
Non-current assets 3,619 3570 3,079 2,742 2747
Current assets excluding cash 163 182 259 284 242
Net cash/{debt) (605) (525) [215) 52 (100)
Deferred tax labiibies 210) 221) (208} (228) (236)
Provisions and other iabilies 255 (271) (236) [467) (405)
Net assets 2,12 2735 2679 2383 2248
Share capdal and share premmurn 840 940 940 940 940
Reserves 1,338 1,323 1236 1236 1127
Total equity atinbutable to equity holders 2,276 2283 2176 2176 2 067
Non-controling interests 438 a72 503 187 181
Total equity 2,712 2,735 2679 2363 2248
25 2018 2013 2m2 201
Key operating statistics
Gearing 21% 23% 10% - 5%
Earnings per share 19.6p 340p 69 4p 42 0p 510p
Drvdends per share’ 642p 13 59p 22 74p 13 59p 16 50p
Heotel gross operatirg proft ~argn 34 1% 36 0% 350% 38 5% 387%
Occupancy 71 8% 74 2% 72 3% 7C 8% 708%
Average room rate (£) £100 19 £96 49 £96 25 £95 08 £91 48
RevPAR (E) £71 08 £7155 £69 58 £67 32 B4 81

1 Dmidends per share inCludas ordinary dradends and specal amdends
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Major Group properties
Asia

Apprranate Number Effactive

Slg area of Group
Hotels Tenure [sq metras) rooms  interast (%)
Grand Millennium Beying Leasehold 1o year 2046 (hotel), 9,268 514 70
Fortune Plaza 7 Dongsanhuan Middle Road Leasehold to year 2056
Chaoyang Distngt Beying 100020 PRC {uncerground car park)
New World Millennium Hong Kong Hotel 75-year tarm from 28 11 1984 and may be 2850 464 50
{Owned by New Unity Holdings Limied] renewabile far a fucther 75 years
72 Mody Road  Tsimshatsw East
Kowloon Hong Kong
JW Marriott Hotel Hong Kang 75-year tarm from 18 04 1985 and may be 10,690 802 26
{Owned by New Unity Holdings Lirnited) renewabla for a further 75 years {Part)
Pacific Flace 88 Queensaay
Hong Kong
Miltennium Hotel Sirnh Jakarta The title 1s hedd under a Hak Guna 7349 401 80
Jalan Fachrudint 3 Bangunan (e Fught to Build) and a 40 year
Jakarta 10250, Indenesia iease wef 14 04 1984 and 22 01 1986 for
approxmate site area of 7137 sq metres
and 212 s metres respectvely

Hotel MyStays Asakusabash Freehold 567 138 36
1-5-5, Asakusapashi Taro ku
Jokyo 111-0053 Japan
Hotel MyStays Kamata Freehcld 497 16 36
5 46 5 Kamata Ota-ku,
Tokyo 144 0052, Japan
Copthorne Orchid Hotel Penang Freehoid 10329 307 100
Jalan Tanung Bungah 11200 Penang, Maiaysia
Grand Millanmium Kuala Lumpur Freehekd 7670 459 100
160 Jalan Bukit Bintang
55100 Kuala Lumpur Malaysa
Angsana Valavaru 50-year Title commencing from 26 08 1997 BT 717 113 36
South Nilandhe Aol
Republic of Maldves
Jumeirah Dhevanafushi 50-year lease commencing from 53576 37 36
Meradhoo Island 15 06 2006
Gaatu Ay Aol
Republic of Maldves
The Heritage Hotel Manila Fee smple 9888 450 66
Raxas Soulevard at corner of EDSA Pasay Cay,
Metropolian Marda Phifppines
Copthorna King's Hotel Singapore 99 year lease commencing from 5637 310 36

403 Havelock Road Singapora 0102 1968

e
2
g
z
El
=]
=
3
z




Wil sireroum & Copthome Hotets plc

Further information 152

Major Group properties
continued

Approximate Number Effectiva

site area of Group

Hotals Tenurg (sQ. metras) ooms  nterest (%)
Grand Copthome Waterfront Hotel Singapors 20 year ieaser commencing 19 072006 and 10 860 574 36
392 Havelock Road Sexjepore extendable for a further 20 years
M Hotel Singapore Freehold 2,134 a13 36
81 Anson Road  Sngapore
Novaotel Singapore Clarke Quay 97 years and 30 days Leasehold merest 12925 403 36
177A Raver Valey Road  Sngapore cormumencng from 0204 1980
Orchard Hotel Singapore Freehold & 5Ba# 856 36
442 Orchard Road Singapore
Studio M Hotel Singapore 99-year lease commencing from 2932 380 36
3 Nanson Road Singapore 26 Q2 2007
Millennium Seoul Hilton Freehcid 18787 680 100
50 Sowokro, Jung gu,
Seou South Korea 100-802
Land Site i Seoul Freehold 1564 - 100
Located at Chung-gu Namdasumem S Ga 8521
Pultman Bangkok Grande Sukhumvit Hotel 30 year term from 02 02 2005 with opticn 5052 325 50
(Owned by Fena Estate Comparty Limited) to renew for a further termn of 30 years
Sukhurrat Son 21 Asoke Road
Banghok, Thatand
Grand Hyatt Tawpe: 50 years starting from 7 March 1930 14183 as3 83

2 SongShou Road
Tape:, Tawan 11051

The lease agresment 1s extendible for ancther 30 years

% Inchiges Claymons Connect
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site area of Group
(sq metres) rooms  intorast (%)

Copthorne Hotel Aberdasn
122 Huntty Street,
Aberdeen AB10 18U, Scotland

Freehald

1302 a7 a3

Copthome Hotel Binmingham
Paradise Circus
Birmingharn B3 3HJ, England

Freehald

2188 21 100

Caopthorne Hotel Cardift-Caerdydd
Conthome Way Cubverhouse Cross
Cardi#t CF5 6DH, Wales

Freehold

25 306 135 100

Copthorne Hotel Effingham Gatwick
West Park Road Copthorne,
Wast Sussex RH10 3EU, England

Freehokd

161,878 122 100

Copthaorne Hotel London Gatwick
Capthorne Way Copihorne West Sussex
RH10 3PG, England

Freehold

404 694 227 100

Copthore Hotel Manchester
Clppers Quay, Salford Quays
Manchester M50 35N England

Leasehold to year 2135

9 800 166 100

Copthorne Hotel Merry Hill-Dudley
The Waterfront, Level Street Brerey Hill
Dudley West Midlands D5 1UR England

Freehold

13,734 138 100

Copthorne Hatel Newcastle
The Close Quayside Newcastie upon Tyne
NE1 3RT England

Freehokd

9200 136 96

Copthorne Hotei Plymouth
Armada Way Plyrnouth PL1 1AR England

Leasehold ic year 2110

1,853 135 100

Copthorne Hotel Slough-Windsor
Cippenham Lane, Stough Berkshire
SL1 2vE, England

Freehold

6880 219 100

Copthorne Tara Hotel London Kensington

Scarsdale Place Kensington London
W8 S8R England

Freghold
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Major Group properties
continued

Approximaete Number Effective

sita ama of Group

Hotels Tenuse {sq maires) roms rterest (%)
Hard Days Night Hotel Liverpool Leasehold to year 2129 275 10 100
Central Busdings North John Street
bverpool L2 8RA England
Hilton Cambridge City Centre Hotel 125-year lease commencing 3,600 198 38
Grand Arcade Downing St from 25 12 1980 and extendable
Cambndge CB2 30T Englarxd for a further 50 years
Millennmium Gloucester Hatel London Kensington Freehold 6,348 610 100
Harnngton Gardens
London SW7 4L.H England
Millennium Hotel Glasgow Leaseheld to year 2109 9398 116 100
George Square Glasgow G2 108 Scotland
Millennium Hotel London Kmghtsbridge Leasehold to year 2091 B9 222 100
17 Sloane Street, Knightsbrndge
London SW1X 9NU England
Miltennium Hotel London Maytair Leasehold 1o year 2096 4260 336 00
Grosvenor Square, Mayfar,
London W1K 2HP England
Millennium Hotel Pans Opéra Freencid 1083 183 100
12 Boulevard Haussmann,
75009 Pans France
Millennium Hotel Paris Charles de Gaulle Fraenold 11657 234 100
Zone Hotelere Allée du Verger, 95700
Roissy-en france, France
Grand Hotel Palace Rome Freehold 801 87 100
Via Veneto 70, Rome 00187 haly
The Bailay's Hotal London Freehold 1,523 21 100
140 Gloucester Road
London SW7 4QH England
The Chelsea Harbour Hotel Leaseheld to year 2112 2 561 157 100
Chelsea Harbour, London SW10 OXG, England
North America

Approximete Numpes Effective

steares of Group

Hotels Tenure {sq metres) moms  irterest (%}
The Lakefront Anchorage Freehold 20,639 248 100
4800 Spenarc Read, Anchorage
AK 99517, USA
Millennium Biltmore Hotel Los Angeles Freehold 1331 683 100
506 South Grand Avenue Los Angeles
CA 80071 USA
The Bostoman Boston Freehold 2796 204 100

26 North Street
At Faneut Hall Markatplace Boston
MA 02106 USA
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i i - Approomate Number Effective .1
site area of Group f

Hatels Tenure {sq metres) fooms nterest (%}

Millenmum Buftalo t easehold to year 2022 31726 am 100

2040 Walden Avenue {with one 10-year cption)

Buffalo NY 14225 USA

Millenmium Harvest House Boulder Freehold 64 019 262 100

1345 28th Street

Boulder CO 80302 USA

Miltennuurn Knickerbocker Hotel Chicago Freehoid 2007 306 100

163 Easl Waltan Place Chicage IL 80611

usa

Millenmum Hotel Cincinnat) Freehold 6838 872 100

150 West Ffth Street Cincinnat OH 45202,

USA

Millennium Hotel Durham Freehold 42 814 224 100

2800 Campus Walk Avenue Durham

NC 27705 USA

Millantuum Hotel Minneapohs Leasehold to year 2030 4,537 321 100

1313 Nicallet Mall Minneapalis, MN 55403

usa

Millenmium Maxwell House Nashwlle Leasencld 1o year 2030 36,421 287 100

2025 Rosa L Parks Boulevard Nashwille (with two 10-year opticns)

TN 37228 USA

Millennium Broadway Hotel NewYork Freehold 1762 525 100

145 West 44th Street New York

NY 10036 USA

The Premier Hotel NewYork Freehold 360 125 100

133 West 44ih Street New York

NY 10036 USA

ONE UN NewYork East wower freehold/ 4 554 439 100

1 UN Plaza, 44th Street at 15t Avenue West tower leasehold to

New York NY 10017 USA year 2079

Millennium Hote! St Louis (closed) Freehold 17 033 780 100

200 South 4th Street St Louis,

MO 63102 USA

The McCormick Scottsdale Leasehold to year 2033 32819 125 100

7401 Nerth Scottsdale Boad {(with two 10-year options}

Scottsciale AZ 85208, USA

Millennium Hilton Freehold 1,680 569 100

55 Church Street New York, NY 10007, USA

Novotel New York Times Square Fee simple estate a leasehoid interest 1977 480 100

228 W 52nd Street New York NY 10019 USA

and & leased fee interest
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Major Group properties

continued

Approximate Nurnber Effactive

site area of Group

Hotels Tenure {sg metres) rooms  Interest (%)
Marngate Lakesids Resort Freehold 93798 a75 100
7769 W Irc Bronson Memcnal Hghway
Kissimmee, FL 34747 USA
Comtfort Innt Near Vail Beaver Creek Freehold 11208 146 100
161 West Beaver Creek Boutevard Avon
CO 81820 USA
Pine Lake Trout Club Freehold s 6 100
17021 Chilicothe Read Chagnn Falis
Ot 44023, USA
Australasta

Approamate Number Effective

sne area of Group

Hotels Tenure {sq metres} mooms  werest (%)
Copthorna Hotel & Apartments Queenstown Lakeview Freehold/Strata titke 4713 5] 75
88 Frankton Road
Queenstown, New Zealand
Capthorne Hotel & Resort Bay of Islands Leasehold Land 1o year 52834 180 kY
Tau Henare Drive Pashia, 2021 {with a 30-year option)
New Zealand
Capthorne Hotel & Resort Queenstown Lakefront Freenold 18 709 240 75
Correr Adelaide Street & Frankion Road,
Queenstown, New Zealand
Copthorne Hotel Auckland City Perpetual/Leasehold Land 2495 110 75
150 Anzac Avenue
Auckland, New Zealand
Caopthorne Hotel Auckiand Harbour City Freshold 2407 187 75
{closed for refurbishment}
196 200 Quay Street
Auckand New Zealand
Copthorne Haotel Paimerston North Freehoid 15514 ag 75
110 Fitzherbert Avenue
Palmerston Narth, New Zealand
Copthorne Hotel Rotorua Freehoid 35935 10 75
Fenton Street
Rotorua, New Zealang
Capthorne Hotel Wellington Oriental Bay Freehold 39804 118 75

100 Criental Parade,
Welingten, New Zealand
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Approxmats Nurmnber Effectve
sile arsa of Group ¢

Hotels Terure {sq metres} rooms  terest (%)
Ibis Perth Fraehold 1480 182 36
334 Murray Strest
Perth Western Austraka, Australig
Kingsgate Hotel Dunedin Freenold 2,193 55 75
10 Smith Street
Dunedin New Zealand
Kingsgate Hotel Greymouth Freehold/Perpetual 2 807 98 75
32 Mawhera Quay leasehold land
Greymouth, New Zealand
Kingsgate Hotel Te Anau Freehold 8819 94 75
20 Lakefront Drive
Te Anau, New Zealand
Mercure & Ibis Brisbana Interconnected at greund 3845 1947218 36
85-87 North Quay/ level situated on one
27-35 Turbot Street freehold title
Bnsbane Queensland Australa
Mercure Perth Strata freehoid 757 239 36
10 Irwin Street
Perth Western Australia, Australia
Millenmium Hotel Queenstown Freehold 7 453 220 75
Corner Frankton Road & Staniey St
Queenstown, New Zeaiand
Millenmiusm Hotel Rotorua Freehold/Perpetual 10,109 227 75
Comer Eruera & Hinemarnu Streets leasehold land
Rotorua New Zealand
Novotel Brisbane Strata volumetne freehold 8235 218 3B
200 Creek Street
Bnsbane, Queensiand Australa
Randezvous Grand Hotel Aucktand Freehold 5910 452 36

71 87 Mayoral Drive Aucidand New Zealand
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Major Group properties
continued

Approxmate
leitable Cffactve
strata area Group
Irvestment Properties Terure {sq metres}  nterest (%}

Tanglin Shopping Centre Freehold 6285 100
A shaopirg-cum-office comuiex siua ed at

Tanghn Road Singapcre wittun the Orchard Aoad tounst district
The Graup owns 83 out of 362 strata-tiled units and 325 car park lots

Millennium Mitsui Garden Hotel Tokyo Freehold/ 1040/ 70
5-11-1 Ginza Chue-Ku Leasehold - 30 years from 25 March 2009 130

Tokyo 104-0061 (site area)

329 bedroom hotel

Biltmore Court & Tower Freehoid 34 249 100
Situated at 500/520 South Grand Avenug

Los Angeles, CA 90071

Campnsing the Court which has 22 133 square metres Class ‘B’

lettable office space wihi- the Biltr-cre notel struc ure and the Tower

which has 2118 3g creme res of Class A office space

Land site in Sunnyvale Freehold 35717 100
City of Sunnyvale
Calfornia USA

Owned by First Spansor Group Lirmted  an associate of the Company

Humen International Clath Centre Leasehokd to year 2063 3,467 36
Located in Humen Town Dongguan Guangdong Provinge the PRC
Compnsing 145 cormmeraial units and 11 senaced apartments

Chengdu Cityspring Leasehold ¢ year 2049 27 522 36
Located in Gaoxin District Chengdu Sichuan Province

the PRC

Compnsing 21 875 s5q metres commaercial space in the

same bullding as M Hotel Chengdu {level 3 17) and

5647 sq metres of commercial and retail spaces

Zwderhof | Perpetual Leasencld Ground rent pad urtil 2050 12538 12
Located in the Scuth Axig Amsterdam the Netherands
Compnising office space  arcrwe space and 111 car park lots

Arena Towers Perpetual Leasehold 17 396 36
Located in Amsterdam Southeast the Netherlands Ground rent pad uritd 2063

A hotel property cormpnging 443 hotel rieoms and 509 car

park lots

M Hotel Chengdu* Leasehold to year 2048 18,228 36
Located in Gaoan Distnet Chengdu, Sichuan Province Gross floar area)

the PRC

Comprising 196 hotel rcoms and suites

Milfenmum Waterfront Chengdu Hotel (under development) Leasehold to year 2051 122 683 36
Lecated in Wenpang Distrnct Chengdu Sichuan Province {Gress foor areal

the PRC

Expected to have 510 hatel rooms on completion

Hotel maneged by the Milannium & Copthorne Hotels Group
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Millennium & Copthome hotels worldwide

ASIA

China

Copthorne Haotel Qingdac

Grand Millennium Beyng

Grand Milenmum Shanghal Hongaro
M Hotel Chengdu

Milerrium Residences @ Beyng Fortune Plaza
Millennurm Hotel Chengdu

Millennurn Harbouniew Hotef Xiamen
Millennium Hotel Fuaing

Milenmum Resort Hangzhou
Millenrium Hotel Wux

Hong Kong
New Warld Millenniurm Hong Kong Hatel
Jw Marnott Hotel Hong Kong

indonesia
Millenmiurm Hotel Sinh Jakarta

Japan

Hotel MyStays Asakusabashi

Hotel MyStays Kamata

Millennium Misin Garden Hotel Tokyo

Malaysia

Copthormne Orchid Hotel Penang
Coptharne Hotel Camercn Highlards
Grand Millennium Kuala Lumpur

Maldives
Angsana Velavaru
Jumerah Dhevanafushi

Philppmes
The Hertage Hatel Manila

Singapore

Capthorne King s Hotel Singapere

Grand Copthome Waterfront Hetel Singapore
M Hotel Singapore

Orchard Hotel Singapore

Novotel Singapore Clarke Quay

Studio M Hotel Singapore

South Korea
Millennium Seout Hiten

Tawan
Grand Hyatt Tampes
Milenrium Vee Hotel Tachung

Thailland
Pultman Bangkok Grande Sukhurmvt
Millenmum Resert Patong Phuket

AUSTRALASIA

Australia

ltns Perth

Mercure & Ibis Bnsbane
Mercure Perth

Novotet Brisbhane

New Zealand

Copthorne Hotel Auckland City

Copthorne Hotel Auckland Harbour Ciy

(closed for refudmshment)

Coptharne Hotel Grand Central New Plymouth
Copthorne Hotel Weltngton Onental Bay

Copthorne Hotel 8 Resort Bay of slands

Copthorme Hotel & Resert Hokianga

Copthorne Hotel Palmersten North

Copthorne Hotel & Resort Queenstown Lakefront
Coptharne Hotel & Apartments Queenstown Lakeview
Copthorne Hotel Ratorua

Copthorne Hotel & Resort Solway Park Warrarapa
Kingsgate Hotel Autolodge Paihia

Kingsgate Hatel Dunedin

Kingsgate Hotel Greymouth

Kingsgate Hotel Hamitan (franchise ended 11 February 2018)
Kingsgate Hotal Te Anau

Kingsgate Hotel The Avenue Wangar

Kingsgate Hotel Whangare (franchise ended 25 January 2016)
Millennium Hotel Queenstown

Millennium Hotel Rotorua

Millenmum Hotel & Resort Manuels Taupo
Rendezvous Hotel Auckiand

MIDDLE EAST

Irag

Copthome Hotel Baranan

Grand Millennium Sulaman Hotel

Millennium Kurdistan Hotel and Spa (closed for maintenance)

Jordan
Grand Millennum Hotel Amman

Kuwait
Al-Jahra Copthome Hotel & Resort
Milennum Hatel and Corveniion Centré Kuwait

Oman
Millenmumn Executrve Apartments Muoscat
Millenmurm Resort Mussanah

Qatar

Copthorne Hotel Deha
Kingsgate Hotel Doha
Millenniurn Hotel Coha
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Millennium & Copthome hotels worldwide

continued

Saudi Arabia
Millenriurm Taiba Hotel Madinah
Millermurm Al Ageeq Hotet

United Arab Emirates

Coptheme Hotel Dubai

Coptheme Hotel Shanah

Grand Millennium Dubai

Grand Miflennium Al Wahda
Kingsgate Hotel Abu Dhabx
Millenmium Airport Hotel Dubai
Mitlenmum Corniche Hotel Abu Dhabi
Millennium Plaza Hotel Duba
Mikenmium Hotel Fujairah

EUROPE

France
Millenrium Hetel Pans Charles de Gaulle
Millennium Hotel Pans Opera

Italy
Grand Hetel Palace Rome

UK

Copthorne Hotel Aberdeen

Copthorne Hotel Birmingham

Conthorne Hotel Cardiff-Caerdydd
Copthorne Hotel Effingham Gatwick
Caopthorne Hotel London Gatwick
Copthorne Hotel Manchester

Copthorne Hatel Merry Hill-Dudley
Copthorne Hotel Newcastle

Copthorne Hotel Plymouth

Copthome Hotel Sheffield

Copthorne Hotel Slough Windsor
Copthorne Tara Hotel London Kensington
Hard Days Night Hotel Liverpocl

Hiten Cambriige City Centre Hotel
Millernium Gloucester Hetel London Kensington
Mikennmium Hatel Glasgow

Millerimum Hotel London Knightsondge
Millerrum Hotel Loncon Mayfar
Milenmum & Copthome Hotels at Chelsea Foatball Club
Millenmurm Madejske Hotel Reading

The Bailley s Hotel Londan

The Chelsea Harbour Hotel

THE AMERICAS

USA

Comfort Inn Near Vall Beaver Creek
Maingate Lakeside Resort

The McCarmmick Scotisdale

The Lakefront Anchorage

Millenmiurm Bilimore Hotel Los Angeles
The Bostoran Boston

Millenmum Broadway Hotel New York
Millenmum Harvast House Boulder
Milermum Hotel Buffalo

Millennuim Hotel Cincinnat

Millenmum Hotel Durham

Millenmum Knickerbocker Hotel Chicago
Millennim Mazwell House Hotel Mashwille
Millennium Hotel Minneapols

Millenamum Hotel St Lows {closed)
Millersiurm Hilton

Novotet New York Times Square

ONE UN New York

Pine Lake Trout Club

The Premier Hotel New York

CORPORATE OFFICES

Asia

Millenmum & Copthemne Intemabonal Lirmited
390 Havelock Road

#02-01 King's Centre

Singapcre 169662

Tel + [B5] 6664 8888

Fax +[B5] 6732 5435

Emat sales@milenniumnotels com

Australasia

Millenniurm & Copthorne Hotels

New Zealand Limted Level 13

280 Queen Strest

Auckland 1010 New Zealand

Tel + [B4] (8) 353 5010

Fax + [B4](9) 308 3244

Email sales marketng@milenniumhetels co nz

Middle East

Millenmum & Copthome Middle East & Afnca
H Hotel Office Tower (3rd floor)

Sheikh Zayed Aoad

PO Box 119666

Dubai

Urited Arab Emwrates Tel + [971] {4} 309 9000
Fax +[971] (41351 0508

chemry tangpcs@miienniumncteals com

Europe

Millenrmum & Copthome Hotels plc
Corporate Headquarters

Scarsdale Place Kensington

Lordon W8 55R UK

Tel +[44) {0y 20 7872 2444

Fax -+ [44] (0) 20 7872 2460

Ermal marketng su@milenmiumbotels com

North America

Millennium Hotels and Resons

7600E

Orchard Road Ste #2305

Greenwoad Vilage

Crolerado 80111 USA

Tei +[1]303 779 2000

Fax +[1] 303 77¢ 2001

Emal guestcomment@millenniumhctels com
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GLOBAL SALES

Asia

Chine Beiing + [86] 106533 0748
China Chengdu + [86] 28 8517 2000
China Guangzhou + [B52] 286218328
China Shanghat + (86] 21 6468 8099
Heng Kong -+ [B52] 2021 8328
Singapore + [65] 6664 BAGE

Tape +[886] (2) 2729 3299

Australasta

Sydney -+ [61] (2} 8258 5080
Auckland + [64] (9 353 5010
Wellington + [84] (4) 382 0770

Europe

Frarce +[33](C) 1 4845 1617
ltaly + [39} (0) 6 4201 2198
UK. + [44i (0) 20 7872 2444

North Amenca
New York +1 212 788 7860

Further information

International reservations

Asia

China North +108 0065 00556 (talk free)
Chena South +108 0026 52531 (ol free)
Hong Kong +800 96 2541

Indonesa +0Q1 803 65 6541

Malaysia +1 800 80 1053

Singapore +65 6736 7575

Tawan +008 01 65 1505 (toll free)
Thalang +001 800 65 6544 (toli free)

Australasia
Australia +1 800 124 420
New Zealand +0 B0OO 808 228

Middle East

UAE + [971] {4) 309 8096
{Sunday - Thursday)

8 0Cam - 5 00pm

Eurcpe

Whean m the following countnes please usa this toll fres number
00 800 86 86 80B6

Austra Belgum Denmark Finland (prefix 920 insteac 00
Germany Irefand ltaly The Nesherlands Norway, Portugal, Spain
Sweden & Switzerland

France 0BOC 909 586

UK 0BOOD 41 47 41 Man reservations

0845 30 20 001 Lesure bockings

0845 30 20 002 Meetings and Events bockings

North Amenca

When i the following countnes please use this toll free number
+1 866 BEG BOBG

Canada Puerto Rico USA & US Virgin Islands
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Shareholder information
Analysis of shareholders as at 31 December 2015
Forak number

Number  Percentage of shargs of issued
Number of shares of holders of halders held share caprtal
1-10000 635 1898% 847,195 0 26%
10001-25000 44 547% 681263 021%
25,001 -50 000 28 3 48% 995,992 031%
50001 - 100 000 24 299% 1750926 054%
100,001 - 500 000 42 522% 9,748 500 300%
500,001 - 1000000 8 075% 4235154 130%
1000001 - Highest 25 311% 306471271 94 38%
Total 8c4 100 00% 324 730301 100 C0%

Sharehclders can find a wealth of information on the Company at
www millennwumhotels com including

» regular updates about our busIness,

= hotel and other property information,

the abiity tc book a room at one of our hotels around the world,

share pnce information,

financial results and invester Information, and

* our financial calendar which includes dividend payment dates
and amounts

Electronic shareholder communications

Registenng for online communication gives sharehclders more
control of therr sharenolding The registration process 1s via our
registrar's secure website www shareview co uk

Cnce registered shareholders are able to

* clect how we communicate wath them,

= amend their detalls,

= amend the way dividends are receved, and
¢ buy or sell shares online

This does not mean shareholders can ne longer recene paper
copies of documents We are able to offer a range of services and
talor communication to meet their needs

Managing your shares
Please contact cur registrar, Equiniti, 1o manage your shareholding
if you wish {o

¢ ragister for electronic communications,

transfer your shares,

« change your registered name or address,

register a lost share certificate and obtan a replacement,
consohdate your share holdings,

= manage your dwvdend paymenis, and

notify the death of a shareholder

You can also manage your shareholding online by regisienng for
Shareview at www shareview co uk When contacting Equiniti or
registenng onting, you should have your shareholder reference
number at hand This can be found on your share certificate or
latest dandend tax voucher

Contact details for our registrar

Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex
BNG9 6DA, United Kingdom

Telephone 0371 384 2343
and outside the UK +44 121 415 7047
Textphone 371 384 2255"
and outside the UK +44 121 415 7028

Lines 2m opan from 8 30 am to 5 30 prm Monday 1o Fday UK tme

ShareGift

It rmay be that you have a small nurnber of shares which would cost
you more 1o sell than they are worth It 1s possible to donate these
to ShareGift, a registered chanty, who provide a free service o
enable you to dispose chantably of such shares More information
on this service can be obtained from www sharegift org or by
calling +44 () 207 930 3737
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Be aware of share fraudsters

Shareholders are cautoned to be vary wary of any unsoleited
advice, offers to buy shares at a discount, sell your shares at a
premium or offers of free reports on the Company

If you do receive such an approach, you are encouraged to take
the following steps

obtan the full name of the person and organisation and make a
record of any other information they give you, for example
telephone number, address or webs address,

« if the caller persists, simply hang ug, and

« report the matter to the Financial Conduct Authonty (*FCA") s
that they can investigate

if you suspect that you have been approached by fraudsters please
tell the FCA using the share fraud reporting form at www fca org uk/
scams, where you can find out more alout nvestment scams You

can also call the FCA Consumer Helpine on 0800 111 6768

You are advised to deal only with financial services firms that are
authcnsed by the FCA Check the firmis properly authonsed by the
FCA before getting mvolved by visiting www fea org ukiregister If
you do deal with an unauthonsed firm you will not be ehgble to
receve payment under the Financial Services Compensation
Scheme If anything goes wreng

if you have lost money to Investment fraud, you should report it to
Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040 or onbne at www actionfraud
paolice uk

Find out more at www fca org uk/scamsmari
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Shareholder information
continued

Contacts and advisers

Registered office

Victona House, Victona Road, Horey, Surrey RH6E 7AF,
United Kingdom

Registered in England and Wales No 3004377

Corporate headquarters
Scarsdale Place, Kensington, London W8 55R,
United Kingdom

Stockbroker
Credit Suisse Secunties Limited

Auditor
KPMG LLP

Solicitor
Hogan Lovels Intemational LLP

Pnncipal bankers

Bank of Amenca Memll Lynch

DBS Bank Ltd

Mizuha Bank, Ltd

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corperation Limited

Royal Bank of Scotland plc

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsutnsht UFY, Ltd

The Hongkong and Shangha Banking Corporation Limited

Registrar
Equiritr Limited
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